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Axel & Associates, Inc.

by FedEX

Ms. Courtney Avery
Administrator
Illinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, [L 62761

Dear Ms. Avery:

Enclosed please find two copies of a Certificate of Need application being filed on
behalf of Memorial Group, Inc. and MHE, Inc., proposing the establishment of a
hospital in Shiloh, Illinois. The proposed hospital will operate as a satellite of
Memorial Hospital in Belleville: Also enclosed is a check in the amount of

$2,500.00 as a filing fee.

Sincerely,

cob M. Axel

enclosures

cc Mark J. Tumer

MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

RECEIVED

MAR 3 0 201i

HEALTH FACILITIES &
SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

March 28, 2011

675 North Court, Suite 210
Palatine, [llinois 60067

Phone (847) 776-7101
/ ) Fax (847) 776-7004
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" ORIGINAL

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION (e TH FACILITIES &
SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Memorial Hospital-East

Street Address: legal description attached

City and Zip Code: Shiloh, lllincis 62269

County: St Clair Health Service Area Xl Health Planning Area: F-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Memorial Group, Inc.

Address; 4500 Memorial Drive Belleville, IL 62226

Name of Registered Agent:

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Mark J. Tumer, President & CEOQ

CEQ Address: 4500 Memorial Drive Beileville, IL 62226

Telephone Number:; 618/257-5642

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
1 For-profit Corporation {1 Governmental
] Limited Liability Company UJ Sole Proprietorship ] Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o

FAPPEND DOCUMEN
¥APPLICATION FORM

Primary Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Mark J. Tumer

Title: President & CEO

Company Name; Memorial Hospital

Address: 4500 Memarial Drive Belleville, IL 62226

Telephone Number:  618/2567-5642

E-mail Address: miurner@memhosp.com

Fax Number: 618/257-5658

Additional Contact
[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: none

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:

RECEIVED

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT MAR 3 0 2011




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Memorial Hospital-East

Street Address: legal description attached

City and Zip Code: Shiloh, llinois 62269

County: St. Clair Health Service Area XI Heaith Planning Area: F-01

Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Metro-East Services, Inc. d/b/fa Memarial Hospital-East

Address: 4500 Memaorial Drive Belleville, IL 82226 (current mailing address)
Name of Registered Agent.

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Mark J. Tumer, President & CEQ

CEO Address: 4500 Memorial Drive Belleville, IL 62226

Telephone Number: 618/257-5642

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

X Non-profit Corporation U Partnership
[l For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
] Limited Liability Company O Sole Propristorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each pariner specifying whether each is a general or limited pariner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]
Name: Mark J. Tumer

Title: President & CEQ

Company Name: Memorial Group, Inc.

Address: 4500 Memorial Brive Belleville, IL 62226
Telephone Number:  618/257-5642

E-mai! Address: mturner(@memhosp.com

Fax Number: 618/257-5658

Additional Contact
{Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: none

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number;




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE

EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Mark J. Turner

Title: President & CEQ

Company Name: Memorial Hospital

Address: 4500 Memorial Drive Belleville, IL 62226
Telephone Number;  618/257-5642

E-mail Address; mturmer@membhosp.com

Fax Number: 618/257-5658

Site Ownership

[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Regions Bank, N.A., Trustee
Address of Site Owner: South Church Street Belleville, IL 62220

Street Address or Legal Description of Site: legal description attached
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attestmg to ownersh|p, an ophon to 1ease a Ietter of intent to lease ora Iease

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS A'ITACHMENT-2 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
' APPLICATION FORM. e R

Operating Identity/Licensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: Metro-East Services, Inc. d/b/a Memorial Hospital-East

Address: (temporary) c/o Memarial Hospital 4500 Memorial Drive Believille, IL 62226

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
O For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an llinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

ownershlp

i T T

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-a IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER T!'IE LAST PAGE OF THE
' APPLICATION FORM. j - NP , N

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

i APPEND DOCUMENTAT!ON AS |TACHMENT-4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE N
-APPLICATION FORM. - - v, . - i




Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of |llinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illincisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. in addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the

requirements of illinois Executive Order #2005-5 {http:/iwww.hfsrb.illinois.gov).
“APPEND. DOCUMENTA '
- APPLICATION FORM.

g

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources

Preservation Act

iy

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20(b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification: [Check one only.]

[] Part 1120 Not Applicable
[ Category A Project

O Nan-substantive X Category B Project
[] BHS or DVA Project

X Substantive




2, Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief namrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board
defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a lega!
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

The project addressed in this Application for Permit is designed to allow Memorial
Hospital in Belleville to operate with all of its beds located in private rooms, consistent with the
practice of many Illinois hospitals over the past five years.

The applicants propose to build a 94-bed hospital on land they own in Shiloh, Illinois.
The hospital will operate as a “satellite” of Memorial Hospital, which is located approximately 5
miles away, in Belleville. Memorial Hospital-East will include the following IDPH-designated
“categories of service”. medical/surgical beds, obstetrics beds, ICU beds and cardiac
catheterization services. In addition, the hospital will have an Emergency Department to be
designated as “comprehensive” by the Illinois Department of Public Health, an imaging
department, a surgical suite and other diagnostic and treatment modalities to support the inpatient
and outpatient care to be provided at Memorial-East. To the extent practical, and to avoid
unnecessary duplication, many administrative and support functions will be provided by or
through Memorial Hospital-Belleville. The two hospitals will operate with a common Medical
Staff, common policies and procedures and common management.

The hospital will be configured in the following manner:

LL: pharmacy, materials mgt., environmental services, plant operations,
laboratory, kitchen, IT, sterile processing and biomedical engineering

1* Floor: surgery, recovery, cath , GI lab, lobby and public areas

2" Floor: imaging, non-invasive cardiology, ED, PT/OT, and observation

3 Floor: OB/Gyn services and nursery

4" Floor; ICU and medical/surgical

5" Floor: medical/surgical

Upon the opening of Memonal-East, Memorial Hospital-Belleville will be re-configured,
with existing semi-private rooms being converted to private rooms, and the licensed bed capacity
of the hospital being reduced, consistent with need at the time and applicable IHFSRB rules.
The “re-configuration” of Memorial Hospital-Belleville will be addressed through a separate
Certificate of Need application (if required), because the two hospitals will be on different sites.
At the conclusion of the two projects, net reductions in medical/surgical/ pediatrics beds and
obstetrics beds are antictpated.

This is a “substantive” project because it proposes the establishment of a new licensed
health care facility.




Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) asscciated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be inciuded in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, compiete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $1,180,000 $435,000 $1,615,000
Site Survey and Soil investigation $30,000 $20.,000 $50,000
Site Preparation $2,450,000 $1,240,000 $3,690,000
Off Site Work $3,600,000 $2,400,000 $6,000,000
New Construction Contracts $46,390,169 $23,445185 $69,835,354
Modemization Contracts
Contingencies $3,552,000 $2,205,450 $5,757.450
Architectural/Engineering Fees $2,640,000 $1,350,000 $3,990,000
Consulting and Other Fees $240,000 $160,000 $400,000
::Ao?\\;?:clfs;}r Other Equipment (not in construction $20,023,000 $3,533,000 $23,556,000
Bond Issuance Expense (project related)
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project
related) $2,656,527 $1,079,127 $3,735,654
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment
Other Cosis To Be Capitalized
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding
land}
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $82,761,696 $35,867,762 $118,629,458

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $7,000,000 $3,000,000 $10,000,000
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond issues (project related)
Mortgages $75,761,696 $32,867,762 $108,629,458
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources

$82,761,696

$35,867,762

$118,629,458

AR




O

Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project [JYes X No
Purchase Price:  $ acquired in excess of 24 months prior
' Fair Market Value: $ CON application filing

| The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
X Yes [ No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:

[C] None or not applicable X Preliminary

[ ] Schematics [ ] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140):_June, 2017 (1/16 const mid-point)

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ ] Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

X Project obligation will occur after permit issuance.

"'APPEND DOGUMENTA
: FORM.

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
X Cancer Registry
X APORS
X Al formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted
X All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for permit being
deemed incomplete.




Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department’s or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_lt_ih'gtt)::! Gross Square Feet

o New : Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE
Medical Surgical
Intensive Care
Diagnostic
Radiology

MR

Total Ciinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL




Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicabie. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include chservation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the
application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Memcrial Hospital-East CITY: Shiloh, lllinois

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: N/A new facility From: to:

Category of Service Authorized | Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
| Beds Changes Beds

Medical/Surgical 0 +72 72

Obstetrics 0 +16 16

Pediatrics

Intensive Care 0 +6 6

Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation

Acute/Chronic Mental lilness

Neonatal Intensive Care

General Long Term Care

Specialized Long Term Care

Long Term Acute Care

Qther ((identify)

TOTALS: 0 +34 94




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized ropresentative(s) are.

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors,

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general pariners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of ___METRO-EAST SERVICES, INC. *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lilinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended.hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifles that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upen request

o)) Zo, @ﬂfw

SIGNATURE ¢ SIGNATURE
Mark J. Turner Joe H. Lanius
PRINTED NAME ' PRINTED NAME
President & CEO Vice President - Finance
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization; Notarization:
Subiipa' Ed and swomto befpre me Subgcp and sworyto befpre me
this day of ﬂ ‘f‘a- lhisif?’qgaay of MWL
Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
[
Seal OFFICIAL SEAL $ e oRoRL s
JUDY L LYNCH $ JUD :
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS  § NOTARY PU Y L LYNCH {
*Insert EXAUH CONMSHIONEXPRES O0ENt § M ‘
WA, ‘_"‘_‘-‘ "_‘ ‘_ _A'A-A_- .-'-v""A-"‘ "




CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the soie
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist};

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of ___Memorial Group, Inc.
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lltinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

SIGNATURE ' {/ SIGNATURE

Mark J. Turner Joe H. Lanius
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

President & CEO Vice President - Finance
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before e Subscribed and swora to bejore me
this A8t day of Meseh, EOII thisZFkaday of MH&E l5-0:!/

%J"-m"iww O«MXXW

¥ sigfature of Notary

Signattre o¥ Notary

’ OFFICIAL SEAL
3 JUDY L LYNCH

applicant b NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS  §
3 My COMMISSION EXPIRES 0

LAl




SECTION lil - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project

costs.

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

1

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

A listing of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including ficensing, and cerfification if
applicable.

A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and CPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations, Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

L.

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition,

ldentify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

Provide goals with quantified and measurabfe objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.




ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL of the afternatives to the proposed project:
Altemative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost:
8) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or

entities to meet all or 2 portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet alf or a portion of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected,
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to altemative options. The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
bensfits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS

REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED,

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved guality of care, as available.




SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. W the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due 1o the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

¢. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPQOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUME
:-,‘..APPI-.'ICRTION FO
l');‘l .« P

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 {ll. Adm. Code 1100,

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION

DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MET

SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)

(TREATMENTS)




UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:

Provide the following information;
I

2.

4. Provide:

N/A—no shell space being provided

Total gross square footage of the proposed shell space;

The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF tot be allocated to each
department, area or function;

Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or

b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed
to occupy the shell space.

a. Historical utilization for the area for the iatest five-year penod for which data are
available; and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future

utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation,

1.

ASSURANCES:

Submit the following:

Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the

shell space, regardless of the capital thresholds in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application {to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted: and

The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.




SECTION VI - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

This Section is applicable to ali projects proposing establishment, expansion or modernization of
categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the Hlinois Health Facilities
Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960]. It is comprised of information requirements for each category of

service, as well as charts for each service, indicating the review criteria that must be addressed
for each action {establishment, expansion and modernization). After identifying the applicable review
criteria for each category of service involved , read the criteria and provide the required information, AS
APPLICABLE TO THE CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

A. Criterion 1110.530 - Medical/Surgical, Obstetric, Pediatric and Intensive Care
1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize Medical/Surgical, Obstetric,
Pediatric and/or Intensive Care categories of service must submit the follawing
information:
2, Indicate bed capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of beds changed by action(s):

# Existing
Beds

# Proposed
Beds

Category of Service

X Medical/Surgical 0 72
X Obstetric 0 16
[ Pediatric 0 0
LX Intensive Care 0 6
3 READ the applicable review criteria outlinad below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.530(b)(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 X
(formula calculation)
1110.530(b)(2} - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.530(b}(3) - Pianning Area Need - Service Demand - X

Establishment of Category of Service

1110.530(b)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - Expansion X
of Existing Category of Service

1110.530{b)(5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X

1110.530(c)(1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X

1110.530(c){2) - Maldistribution X X
1110.530(c}(3} - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X

1110.530(d){(1) - Deteriorated Facilities X

1110.530(d)(2) - Documentation X




APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA

1110.530(d}(3) - Documentation Related to Cited Problems

1110.530(d)(4) - Occupancy

110.530(e) - Staffing Availability

1110.530(f) - Performance Requirements

1110.530(g) - Assurances

:APPEND DOCUMENTATIO J AS
“APPLICATION FORM:" 1=

TI_‘CHMENM ; IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER A




F. Criterion 1110.1330 - Cardiac Catheterization

This section is applicable to all projects proposing to establish or modernize a cardiac
catheterization category of service or to replace existing cardiac catheterization equipment.

1. Criterion 1110.1330(a), Peer Review
Read the criterion and submit a detailed explanation of your peer review program.

2, Criterion 1110.1330(b), Establishment or Expansion of Cardiac Catheterization Service
Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the foliowing information:

a. A map (8 1/2" x 11") showing the location of the other hospitals providing cardiac
catheterization service within the planning area.

b.  The number of cardiac catheterizations performed for the last I2 months at each of the
hospitals shown on the map.

¢.  Provide the number of patients transferred directly from the applicant's hospital to
another facility for cardiac catheterization services in each of the last three years.

3. Criterion 1110.1330(c), Unnecessary Duplication of Services
Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information.

a. Copies of the letter sent to all facilities within 90 minutes travel time which currentfy
provide cardiac catheterization. This letter must contain a description of the proposed
project and a request that the other facility quantify the impact of the proposal on its
program.

b. Copies of the responses received from the facilities to which the letter was sent.
4. Criterion 1110.1330(d), Modernization of Existing Cardiac Catheterization Laboratories

Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the number of cardiac catheterization procedures
performed for the latest 12 months.

S, Criterion 1110.1330(e), Support Services

Read the criterion and indicate on a service by service basis which of the listed services are
available on a 24 hour basis and explain how any services riot available on a 24 hour basis will
be available when needed.

6. Criterion 1110.1330(f), Laboratory Location
N/A—one procedure room
Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit line drawings showing the location of the proposed
laboratories. If the laboratories are not in close proximity explain why.

7. Criterion 1110.1330(g), Staffing
Read the criterion and submit a list of names and qualifications of those who will fill the
positions detailed in this criterion. Also provide staffing schedules to show the coverage
required by this criterion.

8. Criterion 1110.1330(h), Continuity of Care

/?




Read the criterion and submit a copy of the fully executed written referral agreement(s).

9. Criterion 1110.1330(i), Multi-institutional Variance

N/A—no variance

Read the criterion and, if applicable, submit the following information:

a.

b.

A copy of a fully executed affifiation agreement between the two facilities involved,
Names and positions of the shared staff at the two facilities.

The volume of open heart surgeries performed for the latest 12-month period at the
existing operating program.

A cost comparison between the proposed project and expansion at the existing
operating program.

The number of cardiac catheterization procedures performed in the last 12 months at
the operating program.

The number of catheterization laboratories at the operating program.

The projected cardiac catheterization volume at the proposed facitity annually for the
next 2 years.

The basis for the above projection.
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R. Criterion 1110.3030 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
Categories of Service must submit the following information:
2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s):

# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms

m
m

please see table in ATTACHMENT 37

3. READ the applicable review criteria outiined below and submit the required documentation
for the criteria:

PROJECT TYPE REQUIRED REVIEW CRITERIA
New Services or Facility or Equipment by - Need Determination -
Establishment
Service Modernization (e)1) - Deteriorated Facilities
andfor
(e)2) - Necessary Expansion
PLUS
(CH3)A) - Utilization ~ Major Medical
Equipment
Or
(c}{3XB) - Utilization — Service or Facility

..,;- - i j R ..._ ‘._,. . s 3 7 ] - .- T T a '7. - - T .“i' -_:.: e - - - : - —
. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE -
CAPPLICATIONFORM. .~ .~ 7 o e FOF THE .




The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or ¢o-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application}:

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
= Section 1120.130 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
s Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection (a)

Vill. - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resourcas shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the doilar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a)
_$10,000,000__

b)

c)

d)
$108,629,458

e)

)}

Cash and Securities — statements {e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial
institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depregiation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anticipated
receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraising
expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience,

Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of use, and the
estimated time table of receipts;

Debt — a statement of the estimated terms and conditions {including the debt time period, variable or
permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for any
interim and for the permanent financing propesed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the doltar amount of the issue, including any discounting anticipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectation
of making the loan in the amount and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the govermmental unit. If funds are t¢ be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of the governmental unit
attesting to this intent;

Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

All Cther Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$118,629458 | TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

PPEND BOCUMENTA

AT




IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viabitity

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

“APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-40. IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. . -

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years fotlowing project completion. When the applicant's
facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the facility is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. [f the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

. Provide Data fc-)r Projects Ciaééiﬁed Category A or Cat-egllmt;r; B (Iast thn:ee years) o .Ca.tegory B
ass _ | (Projected)
' *Enter Historical andfor Projected 2007 2008 2009 Yr 212018
| Years: SRR
Current Ratio 1.31 1.42 1.66 1.52
Net Margin Percentage 4.86% -4.42% 3.28% 0.49%
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization No LTD No LTD No LTD 31.3%
Projected Debt Service Coverage No LTD No LTD No LTD 1.96
Days Cash on Hand 334 206 208 202
Cushion Ratio No LTD No LTD No LTD 12.38

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate tabte for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Varance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,

public or private, shall assume the |egal responsibility o meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41. IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

"APPLICATION FORM. " .




X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to ali projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project costs and related costs wili be funded in tofal with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the fotal estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
I available;
2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required morigage,
access to additional indebtedness, term {years), financing costs and other factors;

3) That the project invoives (in lotal or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with |easing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment,

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:

1. Identify each depariment or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/ar modemization using the
following format (insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE _
A B C D E F G H

Department Total
(list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross 8q. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.” | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) {Bx E) (G +H)

Contingency

TOTALS
* Inciude the percentage (%) of space for circulation
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years

following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefils and supplies
for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent

patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years foltowing project
completion.

-APPEND-DOCUMENTATION AS'ATTACHMENT -42, IN NUMER]C SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE B

APPLICATION FORM




Xl Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's materlal impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, to the extent that it is feasih

have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care ¢

to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service mi
known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include all of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describin
calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the re,

Benefits Act. Non-
Board.

le for an applicant to

ystemn to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably known
ght impact the remaining safety net providers in a given community, if reasonably
g the amount of charity care provided by the applicant. The amaunt

porting requirements for charity ¢are reporting in the Minois Community
hospital applicants shail report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by the

2, For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaidpsatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the Information reported each year to the lllinols
Department of Public Health regarding Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Source" and “Inpatient and Qutpatient Net Revenue

by Payer Source” as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant belleves is directly relevant to safe

any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Aftachment 43.

Memorial Hospital-Belleville

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031

CHARITY CARE

Charity (# of patients) 2007 2008 2008
Inpatient 998 632 720
Outpatient 2,382 2,224 2,725
Total 3,380 2,856 3,445

Charity (cost In dollars)
Inpatient 1,832,575 2,398,566 2,445,491
OQutpatient 674,417 942,164 821,826
Total 2,508,992 3,340,730 3,267317
MEDIGAID

Medicaid (# of patients) 2007 2008 2009
Inpatient 2,032 2,207 2,258
Outpatient 26,643 28,796 31,852
Total 28,675 31,003 34,110

Medicaid (revenue)

Inpatient 19,987,588 20,699,889 19,565 636
Outpatient 4,338,276 3,855,378 4,276,224
Total 24,325,864 24,555,267 23,841,860

ty net services, including information regarding teaching, research, and




Xh. Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost of
charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in {llinois. if
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care;
the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement: the allocation of charity care
costs; and the ratlo of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facifity, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated charity
care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second vear of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from the

patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

Memorial Hospital-Belleville

CHARITY CARE
2007 2008 2009
Net Patient Revenue 210,623,425 226,604,410 238,765,471
Amount of Charity Care {charges) 6,395,215 8,310,114 7,664,384
Cost of Charity Care 2,506,992 3,340,730 3,267,317




File Number 5399-918-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinots, do
hereby certify that

MEMORIAL GROUP, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER THE
LAWS OF THIS STATE ON OCTOBER 08, 1985, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL
THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT OF THIS
STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 3RD

day of MARCH AD. 2011

' T i b
Authentication #. 1106201632 M

Authenticate at. hitp:/Awww.cyberdriveillinois.corn

SECRETARY QF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
27




File Number 6775-531-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

L, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do bereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

METRO-EAST SERVICES, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MARCH 17, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. :

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 17TH

dayof ~ MARCH AD. 201
Q 2 20 W(,ZZ
Authentication #: 1107601347 . . '
Verify at www:cyberdriveillinois.cam SECRETARY OlASTTKCIMNT 1

>9




LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF SITE
and
PROOF OF OWNERSHIP

Seven adjacent parcels of land have been acquired for the future site of the
proposed hospital. The full site is triangular in shape, and bordered by Interstate 64 on
the north, South Lincoln Avenue on the west/southwest and North Main Street on the
ease/southeast. The individual parcels, identified by the names they are commonly
referred to by the applicants, along with the acreage of each parcel are provided in the
table below. The legal description of each parcel follows.

Parcel Acres
Sportsman’s Club 20
Rasp 52
Cross Street 13
Ettling 1
Korte 1
Whobrey 5
Baptist Church 2

94
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Part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 2 North. Range 7 West of the
Third Principal Meridian, County of Si. Clair, State of HHingis and bemyg more
particularly described as follows:

Commencing al a concrete monument that marks the sauthwest comer of said Southeast
ng’;mrﬁSec;ion 321, thence North 06 deurees O3 nunutes 27 secands West an the cast
line of said Southwest Quarter of Section 32, @ distapce of 142 80 feet w0 the northeast .
comer of a tract of land deseribed in Document Number Af1 771273 and e Point of
Beginning.

From said Point of Beginning: thence North 82 degrees 06 minutes O8 seconds West, an
the northerly tines of said tract of Jand described in Document Number AJ177127] and a
tract of (and described in Deed Boak 2745 on page 639, a distance of 264 00 feer 10 the
northwest corner of said traci of tand described in Deed Book 77435 on page 689; thence
Sout 00 degrecs 03 minutes 27 seconds East. on the westerly line of said vact of land
described in Deed Book 2743 on page 689. a distance of 47 64 feer 10 the porthesst
carner of @ tract of land described in Deed Baok 1839 on page 3i4: thence Nornh 89
degrees 06 minutes 08 secands West, on the nantherly line of said tract of land described
in Deed Book 1834 on page 314, a disance of 293,16 feet (o the northwes! carner of said
tract of land described in Deed Book 1834 on page 314 thence South 00 degrees (3
minutes 27 seconds East, on the weslerly line of caid tract of land described in Deed
BooK 1834 an page 344. a distance of 240,79 faet 10 the nunheasterty nght of way line of
Courity Highway 43 (A K A. Cross Sireet. S.A. Route No 2. Shiboh-Q"Fallan Road),
réference being had 1o the plat thereof 1 the Si. Clair County Recorder's Office in Plag

Book 43 on pages 12¢ and 121 thenee North 43 degrees 36 minutes 53 seconds West, on

said 'n'or:heast.‘erl}-' nght of way line of County Highway 43, 3 distance of 133241 feet o a
'nonhcrjy tine of a tract of land described in Deed Book 1195 on page 33; thepce

Norih 89 degrees 26 minutes 42 seconds East, on said northerly line of a tract of fand
described in Deed Baok 1395 an page 33, a distance of 1491.06 feet 10 s1id east line of
the Southwest Quarter of Section 32:  theace South 0 degrees 03 minutes 27
seconds East, on ‘said east line of the Sauthwest Quanter of Section 32, a distance of
713.92 feet 10 the Point of Beginning.

Said parce) comains 19.97 acres, more or less,
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2 PTAX-203
} illinois Real Estate
- Transfer Declaration

Pleaﬂ reaa the Instructions batore completing this Jorm.
This forrn can bs complatedt eteciranisally at fax.ilinoks goviratd,

Stap e bdohliﬁr‘lha propérty and sale faformation.
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SHILOH _ _ 62269
Chy o vilege ' P

. EHILDH ‘.'M.LEY
Townsip

2 . Write the touf number of parests to ba rancterod. ____ %
3 Write the parcsl rdnmdvha nustirars and 1ot 1568 or pemsge.

Parcel identitying nambar Lot sizu or acrooge
a G-~ 32-0 300*526 131.52
b. 04-32-0- -300- ~027 10..20
¢_-D04-32-0-400-001 10,20

d_04-32-0+400-002 20,00
", Waile additisnat pareyl Konliiers and So! atzes oracreaps in Stap 3.
4 Datoolinarumen:: _ 0 8 / 2 0 0 8
. M:v‘.'m Year

5 Twpe ofinstrumend pamk wih pn X y: Warranty daed

__ Cun claim deed _X _ Executor dood . Trustee desd

— BaneficslInfacest ___ Other gpeoty:
6 . Vet X _No munpmmmmmmrm1
T o Yes_X_ No \Was tho propenty advgriized loe 2ale?

.- {ta, mody, kN, nowgpapey, reakior)

8. Idarnrry tha- rironww‘s currant and intenddd primary use.

" Cercent tntonckad (Mark Dty OHE: IWM Pt COIUMIN wih 3n Y

a.X. X Landfatonly

-Commartial bolding ety :
e U218l bLABTING

. _ . Fam

| — . Othar ety

b . Pofidence jngi-tamby, conosminkem, (om:me. b dipe)
6 ___ -Mcble homa residunce

9  ___ Ageriment bwiding b umts o i) He obendti:
€ s o Bparinient DIIAING (Geer Guni)  No ot vuims; .
f . e Office

O— ___ Rotad establishmast

b____

[ —

. County;

> Date:

gg Qot. Ko
2
53

Razeived by.

8 ldenrdy any significar physicat changes inthe proparty sinte

Jangary 1 0f he pravicus year and wtite the date of the change,

Daeofcigniicantchange:___ _ /s

b an S penth You
—-Domoitontamage: ... Adfbes ___ Myjorremodag
—_ Newoonitrgction ___ Othar topmctit;

10 ldenmy only tha flems that apply-10 this 8ai8, ndork wmh pe )

P s, Fulfimenil of inerafiment conlract — yerr correct
leed s _ o e

b Sale botween refatad indhiduass of corportls affitiales
B e Tanaler of Mase Man 100 parcont iImeras?

d _ . Court-ordorod sale

e ___ Sale In liey of loreciogure

t ... Condamnation

9 o Aucton sale

h ___ Salletbuyer is a rolocalioh company

V. Sefiarfouyar ks g Hinancin) ingitiion ar govemmen agancy
S

k

t

m___

n__

|-

P o

Buyar i5 a cael 651510 imvastment tnugl
e BMYUF it @ pEngion UNG

— Byyer Iz an adjacen proparty cwnar

. Buyer 5 exercising in option (D prchiase
Treds of propacty {(aknulianqous)
Sala-ieasaback

_Olhor porcty:

q ___ Homestead semplikms oa mast croent 1ax Dl
1 GenemyARamative $orn 2200
2 Soréor Cikzens $ 0.a¢0
3 Senlor Citizens Assosmnent Freers § ¢.q0

Step 2: Calculato the amount of transfer tax due.

Note: Roung Uines 11 through 18 to the nexd highast whots dolar, I the amountion Line 11 i owar $1 milfon and b property/s cument use ont Lno 8
anene i imeided "o 70" h 1 o0 K oompista Forn PTAX-203-A, finols Red Estsie Trensler Daclaration Suaplamental Form AL If you are reconding
& banelidal itores! fransher, 02 Nl cosmpiele: 12 2tep. Camplale Form #TAX-203-8, Minois Finat Exsir Trareer Declgration Supplemental Form &

11 Full actual considesalion
12a Amount of personal property induded in the purchase
12D Was the wvalve of & rabida homs included on Line 12a?

13 Sublract Ling 12a from Ling 11. This & ihe nel cansiceration for real propeety.
14 Amouwnt for ofher real proparty trangterred e the geler (in 8 simultanacus gxchange)
as part, of ke Jull actual consideratiba on Line $1

15 Outstanding mortgage sreunt o which e transfarred roal properly remaing stbject
16 111 trareter ls exempl, use @ "X ta ideelly tha pravision.
17 Sublraci Lines 14 anit 15 Irom Lne 13. Thiz is the net conaideration subject to transfer tax.
18 Dwie Line 17 by 500. Round te rosult io the next highes! whele ntxmbes {ag., 6002 rowsds 1o 62
19  Niinols tex Gtamps « multiply Line 18 by 0.50.

0 Counly 1ax stamps — mulliply Ling 18 by 0,25,
<Y Addlines 19 and 20. This = the folal amount of transter tax due.

™ LM % Jirhoe i g in oihrdncE mih 35 H..GS 300~ o7 s Olsmlotyrt <F By arlderaaitrd

FIAR-203 (RHLSY i AFOLIAED. This Gammr Nae boen sppAsedty tho Fomp SMEImAM Corfdl,  L.aiZaes

ID: INT, Declaracion Numbar: TiX4-Ps536-V44B-0734%

2

11 s Y,350,000.90
128 $ 0.00
120 ., vem _X No
13 § 1,250,000.00
4 {.ada
15 § 0.00
16 b ok ___.m
17 % 1.350,000.00
18 2,700.00
19 s 1,150.00
20 $ §75.00
21 3 2,025 00
Fagetel 4
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Step 3: Write the-legal déscription from the deed. Wk, yps (minmuim 10-polri font requised), or aniach the legal Saseription
fram tha doed. H you'prater, submi an g‘l "x 11" copy of tha exanded tegal dascilpion with (his fonm, You may also use-Iha Space balow 1o
writs soidlionl parte] ideniiers and #s sicas or g’ﬁag&' from Step 1, a0 3. o ' N I

'EE- EXHISET *AY RYTACHED HERETO.

Sellor Informialion (Pleese print)
ESTATE OF LOUIA L. RASP, DECEASED

Soibery g mumbe (Y appiioeiy - ool on S5 o FEIN)

Satkr’s of Fuzira's rome
O FALLON IL 62269

1612 CROSS STREET

ey (WVL/_ ' ’ Clry Eavi P
: { G368 3 6§32-280%7 Ext.
Sasers ornmﬁs !.Mw Eofert duysma nfing
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ERcs e fu RNy M aptiicatie - nal sn S8+ of FEIN)

gy Of ltutiogs narg
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4153 tg bit to: _
REGIONS BANK, TRUSTEE 1 S50UTH CHURCH STREET BELLEVITLLE i), 62220
Hame o coxpay Bhiad adireT: cay swe  ur
Preparer Infonmation (Pleass print,)
KURT &. SCHROEDER . )
Fromarefs wid SOMpary's apne Proparecs e acmbar (7t ancltobie)
QLIC SQUART, SUITE 200 BELLEVILLE IL 62220
SR M ’ ) ity Slue pad
o LA [ 6la }234-9800 Bxt .
T Prpiny's Ayl (hore

kschrcéderimrq . COMm

Proparers e-mpl o035 (H oveablnt

Identify any requirad documents submitied vith this torm, (e it e %2 Extanded kegat descriptign Fotm PTAX+2Q3-A
: _Itemirad list of personal propesty Fotm PTAX-203.B
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Part of the Southwest Quarter and pan of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Towmh:p 2 North,
RﬁngeT West of the Third Prmclpat Meridian, County of $1. Clair, State of Iliinois and being more
pMGuIarly described as follows: :

) COmm¢nc1ng al a concrete mohument that marks the southwest correr of said Southeast Quaster of

_Section 32: thence North 00 degrecs 03 minutes 27 seconds West, on the east Jine of said Southwest
: Quarte:of Section 32, a distance of 67243 feet 1o the northwest corner Lot 9, reference being bad to
the assessor's plat thcrcuf in the S1, Clair County Recorder's Office in Assessar's Plat *Lands North
No:2" on. page 27 and the Point of Beginning.

From, saxd Point.of Beginning; thence continuing North 00 degrees 03 minutes 27 scconds West, on
the. east lme of said Southwest Quarter of Seclion 32, 2 distance of 384.29 feet to the northeast corner
“ofatractof land described in Deed Book- 1395 on page 53 thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 42
seconds West, on the northerly line of said tract of land dcscnbod in Deed Book £395 en page 53,4
distance of 1251.34 feet to the southeast corner of a tract of land described in Document Number AQ
1969751 (Parcel 2); thence North 03 degrees 51 minutes 06 seconds West, on the casterly line of said
tract of Jand described in Document Number A01969751 (Parcel 2), a distance of 385.02 feet 1o the
northeast comer of a tract of land described in Dieed Book 2102 on page 266, also being described as
the northeast corner of Parcel | in Documicnt Number A01969751; thence North 68 degrees 19
minutes 47 seconds West, on the northeasterly line of tract of land described in Document Number
A01969751. (Parcel 3), a distance of 695.95 feet to the ntersection of the southeriy right of way fine
of F.A.L Route 64, reference being had io the plat thereof in the S1. Clair County Racorder's Office
in Plat Book 64 on page 22 and the northeasterly right of way line of County Highiway 43, reference
being had to the plat thcwof in the S1. Clair County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 64 on page 22;
thence on.said southerly right of way line of F.A.L Route 64 the foflowing eight (8} courses and
distances; 1.) North 87 degrees 45 minutes 11 seconds East, 400.00 feet; 2. } South 89 degrees 23
mintites 05 seconds East, 200.25 feet, 3.} North 84 degrees $3 minutes 26 seconds East, 100,]2 feet:
4.} North §9 degmes 30 minutes 55 scconds East, 1300.62 feet; 5 South 57 degrees 13 minutes 18
seconds East, 24413 fect; 6.) North 87 degrees 45 minutes 11 scconds East, 500.00 feet; 6.) North
49 degrees 05 minutes 33 seconds East, 236.13 feet; 7.) North 37 degrees 45 minutes 11 seconds
. East, 342.13 feet 1o the east line of the West Half of said Southeast Quarter of Section 32; thence
South:00.dégrees 08 minutes 09 seconds West, on said east line of the West Half of the Southeast
Quarter of Section 32, a distance of 1135.29 feet o 2 stone marking the southeast comner of Lot § of
the Southwest Qumer of said Southeast Quarter of Section 32, reference being had to the assessor's
plal thereof in the St. Clair County Recorder's Office in Assessor's Plat “Lands North No.2" on page
27, said.point being the northeast corner of South Half of said Southwest Quarter of the Southcast
Quarter of Section 32; thence North 89 degrees 08 minutes 04 scconds West, on the southerly linc of
said Lot 8 6fthe Southwest Quarter of Southeast Quarter of Section 32, said line being the south line
of the:North Half of said Southwest Quarter of the Southcast Quarter of Section 32, a.distance of
131578 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 51.92 acres, more or less.
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4 s 0.00
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20 s 1,281.00
21 3.0843.00
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“Yo be compleled by the Chial County Assessment Oicer !
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'DESCRIPTION OF PARGEL 2 NORTH OF PROPOSED ROW
CLIENT: REGIONS

JOB NO.: D00OT0504

MARCH 12, 2008

Part of the South Half. of the Soisthwest Quartsr of the Southiaast uarter of
Section 32, Township. 2 North, Range 7 Wes! and pant of the Noriheast
Quatter of Seotlon S, Townsivp 1.North, Rainge 7-West of the Third Principa)

dian, Counly of- St. Clakr, Stale ‘of. Winois, lying northwesterly of and

'adhﬁir,néimeno_‘rmp@s’iqty,ﬂg_m.of;vmy-m_‘a-ihg propassd extension of-Frank

Sool Parkway and being more particalanty described as foliows:
Beginning al a concrete monument that marks the southwest tomer of said-

Southoast Quarter of Section 32; thenca North 00 dagreas 03 minutes: 27
saconds Wes!, on the easl ine of sald Southwest Quarter of Section 32, g
distance of 672,43 foet 15 tha narthwes! comer of Lot 9, refarence baing-had to
the plat thereof In the Sl Clalr County Recorder's Office In Assessor’s Plal
CLands North' 2° on page 27; thenca South 89 degrees 08 minutes 04
seconds East, on ihe north fne.of sald South Half of-the Southwes! Quarter of -
the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, also being the north iine of said Lot 9, a
dislance of 1313,78 feet 10 a stona &l the northeasl-comer of sald South Half of
the Southwes!. Quarter of the Southeast Quartar of Section. 32; lhence
Soulh-00 degrass 08 minutes 09-seconds West, on the east line of said South
‘Hall of the Southwest Quarter of Section 32, a distance of 134.71.Jeet (o sald
nocthweslterly right of way_(ine of the proposed extsnsion of Frank Scoft
Parkway; lhence on said -northwesierly right of way lwe of the proposed
extonsion of Frank Scoft Parkway, the following -nine (8) cowrses. and
dislancas; 1.) 242.24.fesl oh a ron-langential curve lo the lefi having a fadius
of 2550.00 faet, the chord of sald curve bears South 60 degrees 26 minutes 31
seconds Woes!, a distance of 242,15 feet; 2,)South 89 degrees 46 minules 62
seconds West, 168.21 .fesl; 3.) South68 degreas 13 minules 33
seconds West, 150,33 . fest; 4) South64 dagrees 24 minutes 42
~seconds West, 200,00 feet 6.) South-53 depiess 08 minisies 06
soconds West, 101.88 feet; 6. South 58 degrees 42 minules 04
seconds West, 201.00 fest, 7.) Soulh64 degress 24 minules 42,
soconds West, 100.00 feel B) Soulh53 degrees 08 minulas 06
soconds Wesl, 101.98 feet 9.) South64 degrees 24 minutes. 42
seconds Wesl, 19140 feel lo the west line of sald Northeas! Quarter. of
Section §; hence North 60 degrees 01 minutes 56 seconds West, on sald west
Bf"roa :lgaﬂmg Noriheast Quarter of Saction 5, a dislance of 62:68 feat.o the Point
of ng.

Said parce! conlains 11.73 acres, more or less of which 0.07 acres, more or .
lass, are within-exisling right of way..

Subject to existing roadways and road gt of way, _

FApdO08 heyion frant LOGD iy Bomriguion e WD form CFF 15 Ragions Trss SUGOUNEF dac W300080 11 1
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Also:

.Part of Lot 76 ‘of the Northwast Quartsr. of Section 5, Township 1 North, Range
7 West.of the Third Principal Meridian, County of SI Clair, State. of Wanols,
reforence being-had (o ihe Assessor’s plat thereof in the St Clalr County
Recorder's. Office.in. Plal Book A:on- page 244, lyling- nortiwestarly of. and
adjoining the noritweslerly right of way of the proposed Frank Scott Parkway.

Beginning at-a concrele monument that morks. the northaast comer of said
northwest quarter of Seclion- 5; thence South 00 degress 01 minutes 68
saconds East, on the eas! Hne of sald norhwest quarter of Section 5, 8
distanca of 62.68 fael 1o said northweslerly righl. of way fne of the propased
extension. of Frank Scoll Parkway; thence on sald northwastery fight of the

proposed exlension. of: Frank Seott: Patkway, the lollowity {2) courses and

distancas: 1.) South 64 dagrees 24 minutes 42 seconds West, 250,51 feet;:2)
Norh. 76, degreas 35 minilas. 22 secorids Wesl, 45.61 foal; thance-North 43
degrees 36 minuies 53 seconds West, on a-ine that s 15.00 feet northeastery
of and parafiel with the northaasterty right of way lne of Counly- Highway 43,
referénce being had. to the plat thereol, recorded in the Si Clair County
Recorder's Office in Plai Book 45 on pages 120 and 121, a distance of 259.03
feet o-the north line of said Northwest Quarter of Section 5; thenoe South 89
degress 05 minutés 08 seconds Easi, on 88K - north line of .he Northwest

Quarter of Seclion 5, a distance of 485,58 feet to the. Point of Beginning,
Sald parcel contains 1.34 acres, more of loss,
Sublect lo exisling roadways and road Aight of way,

rwmtmw Doxcripring fe S hven 4P oo Krgiuma Troas $UEHGI dica TR0 i g
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»

PTAX-203

B ]

1816. OLD . 0" FALLON ROAD

/] lliinois Real Estate
Transfer Declaration

Ple_.aéé'- réad:the instrictions bofore completing this form.
This o ¢an becoriplated alactronicaty a tax Hinois.govirety:

‘Step:1: “Identity.the property and sale information.
1:

oN,

Sitast addreak ol pioparty {or 11 adaovics, i avataie)
SHILOH

62269

Ciry o0 1 g
SHILOH VALLEY

aP

Towahip

Wrlle the tolal numger-of p/cels 1 b iransforred, __

Wiite the parcet danlifying aumBacs an It $i20s or acreage.
Lot size or ocronge
1.04 ACRES

Pazcel identilying number
04-~32-0-300-011

o e

d

-

Wiile addRiondl parost idortifiars ard Xt sizes or acreage nShpa.

Datoofinstrument; _© S / 2 0 0 8
Fuoith o
Type af MSIrENemt Mok wibk sn X ); X Waranty dead

i Quit ¢l3im dago Emacur_or degd ____ Truslee deed

-, Boneficial BMergst Other (pecity):

e Y05 XN W it proporty b9 the buyers princpal resienca?
Yes _X_ NoWas the proparty stvartised for saie?
LA, MUTEL, Sity. FEM RN, Wit}

Identity I8 properly's cusrent pad intended peimary vse,

Cunerd friencked Iark only ok itemn per column with an=x%
a ——. Landoz only
b_¥ X_ Resitencs (ume-hmby, cinderinkum oanhams, o Qu ik
c iobile homa residence
d Aparmefil buBding  uts vrvss) fn ot vty

Aparimert bisding ot 6 une)
i
. —_. Retag establishmant

N, of sie

. Cormenaroial buitding peay; ;
e InWUStTIS] Ui

Joe . Farm
K. ____ Otherigaicim:

T

e

ore

LETL DN

i+

Counly:

ko)
5]
—
"

L4
[ el
3
-
o

Yol ,

Z
3§ Paga:

Racsivad by:

10

9 Identity any sigrhlﬂcent phfsical changes in 1ha proparty since

Jamuary 1 of ha previous year ard writs the date of the change.

Dats of signilicart change:

YAtk wrikh am XY

- Demoliondamage  ____ Acdtions
. —__ New construction

s (VO [0

BN A TS © e mre—— —— e rra—t

Yot

idantily onty the lkems that apply {0 this sale. e withan x5
a Fulfitment of ingtaliment contracl — year contract

wiiateo :

—— Sale between ralatod individuals or corporate affifater
Tranater of igss than 100 parcent intarest

Sale in ligu of dorechasure

b

c

d ... Courl-ardered sate
e

{

Condemnation
g . Auchon sals

h ___ Sefierbuyer i a reidcation company

i Saflenbuyes is a Boancal nsituten or JOVSTITMeNt BNy
i —— Buyaris a mal estale iInvesimang tnys

K ____ Buyeris a pansion fund
b ____ Buyer is an adjacant praperly ownar
m____ Diryar is execising an aption to purchasse
n ... Trade ol propeny (simutlanagus)
0
p

—, Jakr-taasoback
wename. WA (R0

8 e HOMESHad omomplions on most receat 1gx be:

1 GaneraliAllgrnatieg
2 Sonior Gitizens .
3 Ssnior Citizens Azsessment Freaze §

3 0.00
s 0.00
Q.00

Step 2: Calculats the-amount of transfer tax due.
Note: Round Lines %1 through 18 10 he next highast whole dallar, I e amocst o0 Lina 11 is quae $ |
abwe is markad e 17 g, h, 1" or 'K, complete Form PTAX-208-4,
a benpliciad imerost iranslar. do not complate ths step. Complabe Form PTAX-203-1, llinoss Real €

11

Full actudi considdsstion

123 Armount of personal property included in tho purchase

12b Was

14

15
16
17
1"

20
21

PTAX 203 (R-B.Th)

the value of a mobile home icluded oo Ling 1237

Subleact Line 128 Irom Ling 11. Tis & the net cansidsration for 1aal progerty,

Amaunt, (or other real propesty irnslerrsd to the seller &in & simulanoows axchange)
as part of the full aciual consideraticn on Ling 13
Ouistanding mongage amount 10 which the transfemad roat fropenty remaing subject

H Lhéa transter is gxyamet, ysa-an "X 1o wWantify the provision.

iinais Ras Estale Transier Ueclaration S

Subiract Lingg 14 arid 15 o Laa 13, This Is tha net consideration subject to transier lax.
Divide Ling 17 by 500. Round the rasult to the nexi highas whoie NMDEr1a.g. 81 (02 npm 13 621,

Hinols tee stamps — multiply Ling 18 by 0,56,
County tax stamps — multiply Line 18 by .25,

Add Lines 19 and 20, Thiz is the wotatamount of transfer tax due.

THE em i stttz (0 Bocondsm e wivy 18 1L
it REQUERED Tris toim haz peen donimve iy

C5 U018 4r-meg. DEazAG ol hey ml G an
$he Fefans Managoman) Caradr

_ R’ |

4
|

I0:INT, Declaratiarn Humber:

MI12Q-R973-HAIS - T29

4/

malion and the pIepeayy ¢eent use onling B
vpplmanial Farn A if you arg reotrding
siate Transler Declaraikza Supplementyl Form B

it g 400,000.00
2a § .00
12b  ___ Yes _XK_ No
13 s 400, 000.00
14 s @.00
15 s 0.00
16 — Lk m
17 s 400,005 . 00
19 _ 800 .00
19 § 400.00
20 § 200,00
21 s 600, DO
ATTACHMENT 2~ ™




Sfep 3: Write the legal description from the deed. Wi, type fminimum 10-paint font requited), o atach ke legal description
from the deed. I you prokde, submit an 84" x 137 copy of the extended Ia?a! dascription wilh this fore. You may also use the space balonr 1o
vitite-addional pifcel denfifiors and ot sizes o, acroage from Siep 1. Line 3.

SEE LEGAL DESCRIP‘I‘IOH ATTACHED hS EXHIBIT *aA“.

Stap 4y ctsmpieta the requested information.

Twm °"M'-33"20'%"W & Mt-au mgwm &n%mrunamlcm%eg&w% a0 B i meng’e mmnc m
e

y h
G e L i %&r@% R 3:,“1
d ot His ﬁéﬁ:"" m‘é g fg ;:r.» b W m i 1B alss..lnlnm mm ;lhnmmm ¢ grantae
L] eunorbr loimﬂ&'dtdﬁ' m#ﬁ

Wiy
A
Sener ln!ormaﬂbn (measo prinL)
BRADLEY AND SHELLY ETTLING

Setters or rtmipe rame Setnrs el murber {8 apphaably'- nol v S5M or FEIN)
1516 ° OLD O FALLON ROAD SHILOH L1, 62269
Sy S D
{ 618 3 62¢-5637 Bxt .
irufa Setler's dayvma phong
Buyer Information {Hunsa prinL)
REGIONS. BAMK, R.4., TRUSTEE 01-9%30-H315-00G
5 af mﬂrbu‘:. naMms Buirpr'y turth nuserttrne (1 sgiotesbie - nol ph SSvor R
SOUTH CHURCP STREET BELLEVILLE . G2220
' Ciy S0 e
..-J&uz.?’ {618 ) 236-4434 Exr .
, / ' Buyry daysms pheaw '
fAait Lo bilf 10r
REGIONS . RANY, ¥.A., TRUST 1 SOUTH CHURCH STREET BELLEVILLE I, 62220
tHame o company Bveo niikieess Ciy LAPAT F
Preparer Information (Plesse print}
KURT 5. SCHROEDER
P mpirors ared corpdny s nmme Freporers ¥4 numbes (il apghabiy) -
23. PUB;.IC SQUARE, SUITE 300 ) BELLEVILLE IL 82220
: Ciy Sowe e
_ { 618 )Y 233-%800 Exe.
v Preaiors crytme phise
kschroadcr@mm:q com
Pricdeary o-mpi RS a8 i€ oadnhwey
Identity any required documengszsubmmeu with this form. thek wizan %1 Exiendged legal dascriplion e F O PTAX-203-A
ﬂcmrzod list of persona! groperly  ____Form PTAX.203-B
To be compleled by the Chief County Assessment Officar i
e e e e e e 3 Yosrpriortwsale .
E. Courty  Touwsmp  Cavs Cavertin Code! Coges 3. Does the sake involve & mobile nOMQ. A5S0aset 42
2 Board of Reviews mat assesses volue for ihe Brsassment yaar cant ealate? YRS NO
prior ko the yoar of sale. 5 Comments :
Land e e b . —— —— 1 e e
Buikdings e ¢ —— s — — s
Towd e

Tab number

winois Deﬁa'rtment of Revenue Use

P of a° ’ ATT ACIMNT-:SS(R-mm




‘Part-of the Southwest Quarler of Saction 32, Township 2 North, Range 7 West of the Third Principat
“Meridian, County. of St. Clair, State of Hiinois and being mare particularly described as foliows:

Beginning at a conicrete monument that marks the southwest comer of said: Southeast Quarter of
-Section 32; thence North 89 degrees 06 minutes 08 seconds West,.on.the south line of said Southwest
-Quiarter.of Saction 32, ‘3 distarice: of 132.00 faet to the southeast corner of a tract of land described in
-Deed Bodk. 2745 on page 689; thence North 00 degrees 03 minutes. 27 seconds West, otvthe easterly
tine: of said tract of iand recorded in Degd Book 2745 on page 689, a distance of 342:80 feet fo the
southerly line of & tract of land dascribad in Deed Book 1395 on page 54; thence South.89 degress 08
minutes 08 seconds Easl, on said southerly line of a tract of fand descritied in Desd Book 1395 an
. page 54, a distance of 132.00 fest o the east line of said Southwest Quarter of Seclion 32: thence
" South 00 degrees 03 minutes 27 saconds East, on said east line of the Southwest Quarter of Section

. 32, a'distance of: 342.80 feet to the Point of Beginning.

- Said parcel conlains 1.04 acres, more or less,

EXHIBIT

ATTACHMENT 2




PTAX-203

llinois Real Estate
Transfer.Declaration

Pleasa raad the insiructions before compiating this Torm
Thig'fgrm-can be completed afactionicat at 1ax fHfinols.goviend,
Step'1: ':ld'éntify;-iﬁhe:'p;qp'erty and sale infoimation.
1 1508 OLD O'FALLCH ROAD

ot £0N0RR 01 goperiy (or D11 adiresa, i Avsiohis)

] & ! L'.-,.;"hﬁ
3 N T M -
RER Il
\%.If&f%:’é'} -

BT

SHILOH 62269
Chy arviige zip
SHILOH VALLEY

TewnsHn
2 Weite the fotal number of parols to bo transtermd, 1
3 Write fhe pancel ideptilying numbers and 11 sizes o anreaga,

Parcal ldentitying number Lot size or ocreags
a_ 04-12-0-300-010 1.04 ACRES
b
c
R

-Write adiional pircs) idontifiars and kot sizes or acroage o1 Step 4.
4 Daeolingromenk _ 0 5.7 2 0 ¢ 3§

PP Vis
5 Typoof instrument Moncwithan "X} ~_Wartenly deed
weea QUL Sl 0360 Executor desd — __Trusies desd

e SONGTIA BtOrosE Other {sschy;
6 Yoo _X_ No Wilthe proptsty bo the buyar’s principal residenca?

T o Yes X _ Nowag tha property adveritad for sale?
. li.e, meda, 3530, AN artrEow, rophe)

laantify ihe propeny’s current and intended prifury uso,

Cwrent Intenaed aark only one ilem per column vam an XY
— . Landilot only
L Aesidence (snge-famiy, condaminlom. anhama_os dupka)
msn. MODilE s residence
e Bpagtment bufiding o6 units ar kssf Mo, of urirg:
— hpanr_ﬁenf builldhng e b unim Mool unas:
. Cfice ' '
i P23 gstablishmant
oo, COMMYGRSRY bUGING 1pechy) .
i UGS Building
| R o 1
¥ e O fipasity);

; Goonty

Lol
2
b

=]
&
==
=]

VYol.:

congRlle i iparea.

g Page:

Rocerced hy:

9 - idantily any significant physical changss w the properly since
January 1 of ihe previous yeat and write the date of the change,
Dato of sigrificgmchangs:_ _ f e

{Mork wih an X M !

Demaottlondamaga . Asditions e MOE ORI

— . New conatrection  ___ Other (peciiy):

Identify only the ftams that apply 10 this e, pdam athan %)

B8 _____ Fulfliment of ingtalimen contrast = year contract

initiated : ___ 0

b . Sate botweon relstod individuals or corporale atfiiates

¢ ... Tansler ol lass (han 100 percen! intaraes!

d _ . Court-orderid sate

@

1

10

- Sale in lieu of tareciopre
.. Congemnation
g .. Auttion sale
h ____ Sellenbuyer iz a reiocation OBy
I ____ Selieefouryer s & linarcial bxstitution ar PoVRINMETS Ggoncy
I .. Buyaris aceal eslaie Invesiment trust
k ____ Buyevis a pansion fund
I .. Buyeris an adjacent properly ownar
M., . .. Buyed is exercismg an optian io purchase
O e Tresde of propeny {simultanecus)
O . SAU-IASODALK
p

emenss O (1t -

Q .. HOmMestoad axemplions on most recont tax al Tl
1 QeneravAllernative %
2 Senior Chlizans k3
3 Sanioy Caizans Azsessment Fropza S

<400
o.4an
g.g0

of _iransfer-i-'tax‘ due.

Step 2: Calculate the amount

Note: Round Lings 11 frough 1810 the next highest whols codes. If fhe amaumé en Ling 13 & vuse $1 milfon and the propenty’s current uze onLne @
aoove 15 marked 8,37 g "h,' i or "W complata Form PTAX-203-4, Hiinois Reaf Eetate Meneier Qudaraiion Supplemental Fomm A, I you are teconting

& benelicial interes wicster, do not compiate 1hs step. Complate

Form PYAX-203-8, ithols Real Exlalp Transer Qeclaration Supmlements! Form B,

11  Ful actual considedation 11 5 400,000.00
12a Amaun of parsonsi property #rctuded In the purchase 12a 5 0.06
120 Was the valie of & moblie home tncluded on Line 1287 12b _ Yet _¥ No
13 Suvbiract Line 12a frem Line 11, Thig is e ngt considaration lor real property. 13§ 400,000, 00
14 Amount dor other real proporty tanglerrad 1o the seller fin 3 simutanesys axchange) '

as part of B full acudl consideralion o Ling 11 14§ 0.00
15 Ounstending mortgage amount 1o vhich the astermag real proporsy remaing subject t5 3 C.6a
16 this wmnater is exempt, use an “X" [o identity the provisian, 1% b k.. m
17 Suteact Lines 14 and 15 froen Lave 13 This is the net consideration subject to transier tax. 17 3 430,000, 00
T Uivide Ling 17 by 500; Aound tha sasult to tha rext higheast whole RUMber (e.9. 61.002 munds b 677, 18 80D. 00

Jlinom ek stamps = rulliply e 18 by .50, 19 § 408,480
20 Couniy thx Stamps wm muhtipty Ling 18 by 0,25, 20 s 200.00
21 Acdiines 19 aad 20. This 75 the 1otal amount of transter tex due. 21 s 500,40

RYAN-20) 54105 v FRECARRED. Thir fyrm s, bosn approved iy tha

Tech Ledt) by s gROrd Do 51 aomedaens witn 38 ILES 2001 1, of 54q. Thoo i wa 0! Ris inbematkan
Foimz Management Contar,  [1L.4B10257

o

ATTACHMENT% '**
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Sléﬁ 3: Write the lagal descrlgtlon from the deed. Write, typa (minimum 10-point tomt required), or attach the lagal description
frigen the' deed. If your préder, submib sa &' x §1* copy of the axtended. !eﬁxaidascnpewn with this form. You may aiso 036 the space below 1g
wirife additional parce! idonlifioss-ass lots sizes or acreage from Step 1, Line 3.

$BE LEGAL UESCRIPTION ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT AR,

Step 4: Complete the requested information.
r e s o R

e dood or 3 fienl of ical myteronain siand | gutliherizsd 1
A ;% e e SR ey
1'5 @ mwrc Hie ikt

n.'-.-w a?bu: miseireang l{?
haliba guily o' I Wio $esl Ditenss and bt A mhdmanﬁf m&uuonf

Seller lnformatio_n (Pleaze prinl)
TERREHCE AND DRBRA KORTE
Elkys o Hustoo's ramp

Sebars tngl aurber (1 ifpienhle - not xm SSHor Fogy)

1508 OLD Q'FALLON BUAD SHELGH I, 62269
Biren agress {after ey ”'Z— City 2 0s 7P
%’ﬂ Lol { ‘%/ : . L 5148 y 533-9677 Exg .
Safens o oyewsnigssivd | 0 % Salr's 0yt phone
Buyer Information (Pieaze print.)
REGICHS BABNEK, W¥.A.. TRUSTEE 1~90-H315-40

‘D Ul Qs v Buyct S rut rumber 1 apptoabic « Aot an SSN or FEIX}

SQUTH CHURCH STREET SLLLEVILLE IL 62220

Sreqt addtass (ghtop saky Cuy faw b
%M*ﬁmgf (528 ) 2356-4434 Ext.
urs dragent's dgnntues / Cuyur'a dylime prene -

tAas! tax oeli te:
BEGYOGNS BANK, N.A., TRUST 1| SOUTH CHURCH STREET BELLEVILLE I, 82220

Hamn ar ey Svard addregs Ciny

Preparer Information (Pleass print.)
KURT &. SCHROEDER

Proparce’s arv 00MRnW s A3 M

23 PUBLIC S0UARE, SUITE apo BELLEVILLE IL 62220
Stiegs s City Staw e
/ ' _ { 618 ) 239-%8¢0 Ext .

Pepares sryaling Prapacars daytine pharw
Kachroedexrdmmra, cam
Prapume ks ¢ el drldea s (B 0 Totivg

Idenlity any required documesis submitied with this farm. pamswoan X ____ Extanded legal descriplion Form PTAX-203-A
s l1EMIZED k21 0 personal property Form PTAX-203-8

Prappmmes [ traeged il appticside)

_ completed by the Chiel County Assessment Officer o =
Y e e e 3 Year priceto sen —
Couriy Yowmbip Cryzs ook Mircr Code1 CoooZ 4 Doas tho sals imvoivh a mobite hamp assnssad 218
2 Bouard of Rawew's fnal assessed value for tha assessmant yaar redat astalg? e Yas _ Mo
pmor 10 the yaar of saje, 5 Commants
Lard U
i Biiidings e e & it e —
Tonatk e e e )
=0 == mEEEEE == = W . '
ratnais Department of Revenue Usea Tab number

£YAS :-&:un-a.n*.

Faya 3
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.'Pa[t of the Southwesl Quarter of Section 32, Township 2 Nosth, Range 7 West of the Third Principal-
Meridian. County 'of St Clair. State of Hinois and treing more panticulary described as follows:

Commancing at a concrete monument that marks the southwest comer of sag Southeast Quarter of
‘Section’3Z; thence . North 89 degrees 06 minutes 08 seconds West, on the soulh fine of said. Southwest
Qusartgr:of Section 32, a distance of 132,00 feet to'tha Point of ‘Beginning. |
From said Poini of Beginning; thence continuing North 89 degrees 06 minuies 08 seconds Wesl, on said
south ling ofthe Southwest Quarter of Section 32, a distance of 132.00 feet to the southeast corner of a
tract of land recorded in Deed Book 1834 on page 314; thence North 00 degrees 03 minutes 27 seconds
West, an the easterly line of said tract of fand described in Deed Soak 1834 on page 314 and the
norlherdy exiension thersof, a distance 342.80 fest to the southwest corner of a wact of fand recorded in
Deed Book 1395 on page 54; thence South 39 dearees 06 minutes 08 seconds East, on the southerly
line 'of 'said ract of fand described in Dead Book 1395 on page 54, a dislance of 132.00 feat to the
noriheast comer.of a tract.of tand described in Documen| Number 401771273 thence South 00 degrees
03 minutes. 27 seconds East, an the ‘weslerly fine of said tract of land described in Document Numbtyer
AQT771273. a distance of 342.80 feef to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel conlains 1.04 acres, mare of less.

ATTACHMENT 2




1) Minois Real Estate
> _Transfer Declaration

Pleage read tha instructions before complating this form, .

Thiis.forrm can bio completad sféctronically ot taxifinols.govivetd,
Step:1: Identify fhe property and salé information,
t 1412 CROSS STREET

1hls area,

‘Da not virile

Sitect oddross of redierly (or 91 oddrecsr, f avainig)

"‘?

; Caunly;

8 USE

3

rda
ot .
s & 2 §
2 & n g
-4
[ o]

Colnty Hoco

Begaived by,

EHILOK 62269
Cliy o vilpge np
SHILOR VALLEY
Tormeghin o

W N

- Vetitg tha parce! identifying rernbers and lot sizes of BCreaga.
- Parcelidentitying number

g B4a-32-0-300-025 ° 4.59 MCREg

Writa the o1s! sumber of parcels 10 ba wansfarrad. L

Lot size or acreage

b

d

Date of inglrument; _0
' raprs
5 Tweof EVESRITEL DL LY, wth 8 Y Y,
Quit claim deed JExocutor deed | X Vrusiea deed
i, BOGBAICIL IniRRSY _ OMNer oty

6 /. 2 © 0 a
Yaar

Wiito adyilionsl parcol idontifars andl b sizs o acresga in Step 3,

) Warranty deed

6 . Yes_ % _No Wil tha preparty be the buyeds pinspal residence?

7 Yas _X__ MNo wWes the proparty advariised for sale?
{le, madta zign, newopaner, rextio
identity Ihe propeety’s curment andg intended primary uso,
Cuirent Intemied (Mark ONIY OMG (tewh Par COINMA wih antxY
-] — Landfin gnly
b X

MobRe homa: rgsidence

C
O FRINImOnk DUl (& wmits or B} No. of unia,
O AOENNCnd BOAG 1w 6 ol o, of wes.
f e, OARED

g — . Relgil cstablishment
h

—

X _ Residsrce jinghe-tamey, contbrrum, komstom, o Ay

HAS s pohrar

e COMIMERCIL DUNENG fepomty :
s IVEUSTISS Duifding

g

tdentify any significant plyysical changes in the propenty sincs.
January 1 of the previous yoar and write the date of the change,

Date of significant chanys: ¢ _—
¥ ert ek 20 9} Hoats Yew
Demciiiontamage ___ Addtions Major reenodaing

Naw constrection ___ Othar Gspeaiy:

- 10 Identify only tha itams that apply to this sale. ek witsan !

Fulfitment of insta8men contract — year contract
Wilated > ___ _

b ____ Safa between related individuals or corporate affilates
¢ Trenster of lecd than 100 parcant interest
¢ __ _ Count-ordesed sale

e __ Salain fieu of foractosume

1 ____ Condemnation -

Q . Auchion salg

h ____ Selerbuyer is a relocation company
i

i

Kk

I

m

n

o

p

—— Sedorouyer i 5 Bnancial mstiaion of Governrmgnt anany
. Buier is & roal petate nvestment ndst ‘
wemens BUYEF TS B pEnShon fund

e BUYEC 2 81 BOjECEN] propecty ownaes

~—- BUyer {8 exerclaing an oplion to purchase

womer JrAGR Of propady (simultaneous)

e SEID-IBREEGACK

. ONEY ppectyy

q Homeelead exempiiens an most recent tax bilt:

1 GensralfAltesnative $ 8Jva 0.00

| IR 2 Senior Ciizens $ . 159 0.00
Ko RN frpaairy: 3 Semor Cizans Assessmeat Fraaze .00

Step 2: Calculate the ameunt of transfer tax duo,

Note: Rood Limas 11 Heough 1810 816 nox) Mghest whotly Galiar It e amuau om Ling 11 is coar 31 milion and the propany’s carent ves on Line &
Abive I8 Marked el 1,7y, " N or K, complele Fom PTAX-203-A, Hincis Raal Estate Transtor Declaration Suppemanta Form A.if you am feconding
a beneficial Nferest ranslen, do rei compiair this slep. Compiale Forn PTAX-203-8. filivwls Real Eslate Transfer Datiarston Suppsmansat Form 8.

11 Full actual consldaratian 11 3 930, 000.00
12a. Amount of parsonal property Inciudad m the purchase 128 $ 9.9¢
12b Was the vatue of a mobile homa includad on Line §2a7 2b _ Yas _ X _He
13 Subtiact Line 12a from Line 1t This s the nst considatation for reai propeny, 13 s 330, 000.00
14 Amoun forother reaf property vansiacrad 1o the salier {in a simuliansous axchange) ‘

&5 part of the fulf sctual comaidaration on Line 14 14 s 0. 40
15 Qutatanding morigege amount 1& which the Uransterrad real propesty ramains subject 15 s 0.90
16 Itnls ranster is exempt, use en X" 10 identity 1he provison, 1 _ b __k ___ m
17 Subtiacl Lines ¥4 and 15 tom Line 1. This s the net consideration subject Lo ransfer tax, 17§ 939,000.00

Divide Line 17 by 500. Pound the result 1o the dext Mahest whole number (eg. 51002 rounss 10 521, 18 1,860.00

IBinoIS 18X KaMNS — mufiply Line 18 by 0.50, 19 & 930.00
20  County tax stamps — multipty Line 1B by 0.25. 20 ¢ 465_00
21 Addmes 19 ang 20, This is the 1018t amount of iranster ax doe. 21 s 1,3%5.00

- R o s e S o2 o A O -

RTAY: i = £0. Thit, & 13 : s Fumy Maoegerest Cenjnr. ' o j
essatm =R ATTACHMENT 5%
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Step 3: Write the legal: descﬂgtion from the decd. Wris, type (minimym 10-poini font requirnd), or attach the legal description

from the deed. if you ?rafer submd an 8% x.11" ¢opy of the axtendad le 3
“wrile atditional paicsl idamtifiars and lots sizes or ACGACH from Step 1,

SEE . LEGAL DESCRI’PTJ‘ON ATTAECHED AS EXHIBIT A.

al des-cnpuon wilh this. form. You may also use the space below Lo
1]

Slep 4 Complete the requesled Informatlon.

me %M&ﬂm&f 1!7 lhn! !3 !::Ef p;l'mmm

Seiler information {(Ploase griny)
FLORINE AND - CHARLES WHOBREY, TRUSTEES

mzsbm.»! msmrmmum an:rkg_.-.hmln this o
E*3

rmnﬁ'&g«u:m 2 \ﬂui!a Telr knoted) & Sy ¥ iha b, o¥n Co
a ) W\ nulhazfzw gsl »urm{imuﬂ’!ﬂm o

mk*oyumi:s mm 3wmnf“udwzmnnmmmwpm?-m:§m

,,,,ﬁm.. ;% ,ﬁmw LKL, framm,m.
eili b g ,:wm&“’ lg‘amm l ah% a&mug‘:maﬁ%

M% DM 3 e SAxinmont oancemiog T oenl

SE16rs 97 FUsoe's nome

Stiar's tuzt murbor € 3ppabie - nal = S5H oy FEN)

1412 -CROSS -STREET SHILOH IL 82369
Strent atiese (sher gy) ] City Save b
J/"ﬂ/ {618} 636-2087  put.
Jabar's or wmars shytane Setors doyume proay

Buyer fnfon'nation {Pleaza print.)
REGIONS BANK, M.4.. TRUSTER

01-90-H315-00

*5 Of rusIed's. nama

Buyers kudl reahar (T appleands - ndk an S50 o FEIFY

.. SOUTH CHURCH STREET BELLEYILLE IL 62220
- . Gy S e
m {618  § 236-4434 Bxt .
: o) Bue's duime. phong
Phall 1ax DIl Los ) X _ '
RESICNS BANK, H.h. . TRUST 1 SOUTH CHURCH STREET BELLEVELRLE JL 62224
Nome < company : Street adroes Gy Shaw brd 4
Preparer Informatlon (Pisase print.}
KUET 5. SCHRUEDER
Pergpnrgry. BrugLnen ppey s nnm(- Propasers Mie numoer {1 Aggicabh)
23 PLFBLIC SQUH.RE SUITE 300 BELLEVILLE il 62220
Chy Stk Fil
.72~ {618 }234-5800 Ext.
: il ’ J Preparers doytrng phne
ks r:hro::de m!mmrg . Gom
Preparerse. mod oo Ut i)
fdentify any required documents submitted wilh Ihis form. deem win X Exiended tegal desariplion Form PTAX-203-4 .

— Itermzed #st of pearsonal property —.Foirn PTAX-203-B

e ) iy i

ounty Assessment Officar

e EwUD e e s, NPT I,

cvﬂl,uﬂf Teanshe {inss Coor-Miscr Cem 1l Cedp 2
2 Bogrd of Revee's linal assessod valpe for the assossment pear

priee10 Ahe yoar of salg.

Lang

Builthngs |

Tenal e e e e e e

Minois Deparlmem of Revenue Use

3 Yearpiortosale —_

4 Does the satp :m»atve 2 mobite hone gstessed ag
real estale? e YRS MO

5 Commenis

Tah number

Frga 2 gty
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Panof the Lol 7 of the Southwest Quarter of Section, 32, ‘Tewnship 2 North, Range 7

Wesl. of the Third: Principal Metidian, County of St. Clair, State of Hlinois and being more
particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a concrete monument that marks the southeast corner of said
Seuthwest-Quarter of Sdction 32; thence North 89 degrees 06 minutes 08 seconds West
on the south fine of said Southwest Quarter of Section. 32, a distance of 576.74 feet to
the .centeriine of County Highway 43 (A.K.A. Cross Street, S.A. Route No. 2, Shifoh-
O'Fallon--Road); reference being had to the plat thereof in the St. Clair County
Recotders Office in Plat Book 45 on pages 120 and 121: thence North 43 degrees 36
minutes 53 seconds West, on said centérline of County Highway 43, a- distance of
1426.20 fest 10 the westerly-extension of the southerly iine of Parcel Three as described
in Document Number AQ1969751, also being the wesledy extension of the northerly line
of a tract of tand described in Deed Book 1395 on page 53; thence North 89 degrees 26
minutes 42 seconds East, on said wesierly extension of the southerly iine of Parcel Two
as ‘described in Document. Number AQ1969751, a distance of 68.42 feet o the
northeasterly right of way line of said County Highway 43 and the Point of Beginning.

From said Point of Beginning lhence on said northeastedy right of way fine of County
Highway 43; \hence North 43 degreas 36 minutes 53 seconds West, 21.65 feet to a
bend in the northeasterty right of way iine of County Highway 43; reference being had to
the plal thereof, recorded in the St. Clair County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 84 on
page 22; thence North 33 degrees 39 minutes 22 seconds West, on said notheasterly
right 'of way line of County Highway 43; reference being had lo the plat thereof, recorded
in the St. Clair County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 64 on page 22, a distance of
754.21 feét-to the intersection of the southery right of way line of F.A.lL Routa 84,

raferance being had o the plat thereof in the St Clair County Recorder’'s Office: in Plat

Book 64 on page 22 and said northeasterly right of way line of County Highway 43, aiso
being the most nartherly corner of said Patcel Three as describad in Document Number
AQ1969751; thence South 88 degrees 19 minutes 47 seconds East, on the northeasterty
line of said Parcel Three described in Document Number AQ1968751, a distance of
695,95 feet to the northeast corner of Parcel One as described in Document Number
AD1969751; thence South-03 degrees 51 minutes 06 seconds East, on the easterly fine
of said Parcet Two as described in Document Numbsr AO1969751, a distance of 385.02
feet lo said southery line of said Parcel Two as descrived in Document Number
AG1969751, also being the northery line of a tract of tand described in Deed Book 1395
on page 53, thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 42 seconds Wast, on said southedy
line southerly tine of said Parcet Two as described in Document Number A01969751, a
distance of 239.72 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel contains 4.59 acres, mote of less.
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Y PTAX-203 |
37/ llinois Real Estate E
S24 Transfer Declaration

Please read the Instruction's befora completing this form, |58 Dot No
Tnis'form €an b complated lsctranically at tak ifinois.govirerd; Eg
Step1: Identify the property and sala information. 5z o
1 CROSS STREET , ) 82 page:
‘Sireel adcreas of priperty (o 911 address, It avalare) 8
SHILOR 52269 Recetved by:
Cily or vitaps 2P — —
_E,“::O'H VALLEY : 9 ideniify any significan: physicat changes in the propeny since
s S ' January 1 of | date of the éhi
2 MWrta he tolat nurtber of parcels to be anstemed, oz . :marry[ r.»'_ ‘ths_- Qrgvlags‘ year.and writs the date of the énange..
3 Wrig 0 parest onlifying numbers and ot sixes o acreage, 2ea s w,“m Change"*"i}‘m*ﬁ““ fore T ear
" Parcel identilying number Lot size or acroage Glar miin X -
a_ 04-32-0-3604008 17.97 mus., POTOONdAmMage Addfions | Ma)armmmrg
b 08-32-0-300-007 2.00 ” we. Naw construction Olherymsoty: ...~
¢ — N 10 isentify only the items thal apply to this sale. ey wim gn ;]
d : - a Fulfiliment of instaliment contract — yaar comract

inigated :
——. Sala between retataq individusts. or corparite atfitates
e Transter of tpas than 100 percen! intgrest
—_ Courl-ondered zalo
——— S#le in lleu of loraciosure

4 Daeofingtrument. O _4 + 2 o0 g
Manth Yhor
Fepa ofinslrumeant s wim E St _£ _¥iaranty doogd
e Quit claim dond ____ Exeutor deoad —_Trustee dead
winmme, BODSGCEL interast . OMGr ispeciyy: — Condemnatian
Yo X MNo Wthe propoy bee the buyer's principal residence?? Atclion sale

Write addilionat parce identiflers and iot sizas of acreage 1 Siep 3. .
8
¢
d
&
f
g
T e Yot _X_ Nowasthe property admlﬁ.ed Br pale? b . Sellesbuyeris a relosation Company
i
i
k
{
m

-}

e SEIBHDUYer (5 & nandal istitdion o govemmers, sosnty

Jdle. megla sim, NEWIPRON, TBIIGH|
identil 3 ry's cutrent and inleraed pri Ary , .
! tha property ' Rrendsy use o1 5 a el astete invasiment nst

Curment inkrand {Marc-only one Hern per column wti ag ") ———
8. X, _X_ Land%1only — . BUYEN i5 @ pEnSion fund

b... .___ Rosidence {eiplo-limity, concominm. kwphene, or dupies) — Buyer is an adjacent proporty gwnar

€ e . Mobila home residence —— Buyev it axerdising an opfion to purchase
d. . ... Apastmant BUNGNg (6 unis er feacy 1. of unzs: - R _X_ Trege of Property {eimultanegus)

] Sale-loateback

G s s ApRiMon| building fover 5 untst  Ha of waia: —

t . Offico P . Otfer jpeeiyi:

8 . Rela¥ osiablishment

e Commamsial building fspecay : 9 . Homesipad exemptions an mos! recent tax bill:

Vo . Industria) budding 1 Ganeral/Allgenative 5. 0.4a0
} e Farm 2 Senlor Cilirens 3 6.09
Kk . Othereeedty):_ 3 Senlor Citirons Assessment Fraeze § 0.00

Step 2: Calculate the amount of transfer tax due.

Note: Round Lines 11 thraugh 18 b the next hvghest viate dollar, i the amaunt on Line 11 is over §1 million and the propenys eLmrent e on Linesg
-ihove b marked e g hUE ork” compiata Form PTAX-203-A, Ninois Real Estate Transfer Declaration Supplemental Foem A, M yoy ar reconding
 berieticial ntarest sansidy, 4o net completa this step. Compliste Fanm PIAY-203B, ¥inoris Reat Egiate Tohskr Declamation Sipxolsmenial Form B

"11  Fill aciual conaiderston 11 s 1.830,000.00
128" Armouni of presonal property ineludd in the puichase 123 § L D.0C
12 Vias the vakve of a mob2a home included on Line 1227 12b as _X_ Mo
13 Subtract Linp 12a from Line 11. This i the nat consideration for rea) proparty. 13 s 1.,830,000.00
14 Amownt for other reai property transferred to the geliee fina etmultaneous exchangs)

as part of the-fubl achsal considerstion on Ling 11 14 & 1,155,008, 00
15 OQutstanding morigage araourt to.which the transferred reat roperty romaing subjecs 15 s g0.40

18 Hities transter Iz exompl. use-an "X" {0 identidy tha provision, ' % b % __ m
17 Subirect Lines 14 and 5 frgm Line 3. This ta.the net consideration subject to transter tax. 17 s 75,0006.00
*7  DiideLins 17 by 500 Round the result o the raxt highest whos UINBSE (0.0, 65002 rauns 10 6. 18 1,350.00

linois 1ax stamps ~ multiply Line 18 by 0.50. 18 s__ 675.40
20 County tax stamps — r=dliply Lina 18 by (125, 20 s___ 137 .50
21 AddLies 19 and 20. This is the total 2mount of transfer-iax due. 21 s__ 1,012.50
I R o s e B D | "
R - ATTACHMENT?
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Step 3: Write the legal descrlptian from the deed. write, type (mnievzyt 10-point for raquirsd}, or atlach the fegal descriplion

rgin he-goad. if you-praldr, submit an

"y % 117 copy of Ihg.axiended fogal Sescriplion with this form. You may also w=e the $pace below 1o
vt acdtionat porcel identifiers andiots sizes or acmage from Stap 1, Line 3. ' '
SEB LBGAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHED HERBTO AS RXMIBIT "An.

Step 4. Complate tha requested mformation.
irfs Fuzﬁf%ﬂr}ﬁ{dﬂh%;ﬁé [ ?‘%’ﬁ
mmd =3

08 !Iﬂ mtucwa

'Seller Inl‘ormatlon (Fleaaa prfnt.)
0 PALLON .SPORTSMEN'S. CLUB, 1INC.

waw mmum art betiel, £ fill ooty

S R "'ww'zm'w"?’msm%m Dt

wh‘lnmnjm

’ . o
real m'w‘wl? !56 ﬁ x &‘ l?lnn:: “:,;nm r:nnnm witkiy Mnsarmm“ 1y 4 o%mudx:t r;i'}'i%n L
_ﬁ ﬂo 4 Clam ¢ Jm Saror 1§t*ldll‘mﬂe:m %AMSW """*‘“;@(’ v Zoncoe e e

amﬁunmtmandwm it

mgﬁ%ﬁ&n

Sofar & wussu name.

S-;icr':; 1Peil Zhurttets Hmph:&ﬁu - nol 3n S5V or PERY)

707 SOUTH AUGUSEA .~ O'FALLON IL_ 62269
SATQ Sk [aNgr Ee)’ b/ City Siwr e
) ; - { 6i8 )} 632-6000 ExXt .

5 o agent's gnais Stlars dzptime chang

uyer Information {Pease print.)
GLONS BANK H.A_, TRUSTEE

01-90-H315=00

2 01 HyZAA0% s

Burnrs IRl numbar it apgdicnts - not nn 35 or FEN)

SOUTH CHURCH STREET ) o BELLEVILLE IL 62220
Slrect adAEs Ghopsddoly . City Saye e
_ .5 , ,;fﬂ_ {638 3 226-4424 Ext .
'y oimnu sgmabure Birperz dapme prono
Mgl tox bill 10
REGIONS BAMK, H.A., TRUST i1 SOOTH CHURCH STREEY BELLEVILLE IL 622207
Numé 4 compary Siroct adress ity == T
Preparet Information (Plesss print.)
KURT '§... SCHRDHDER
Pfcmmﬁswmmrgama Propatars fie numboe it sppficatie}
231 PUBLIC SQURRE, .SUITE apo BELLEVILLE IL 62220
SIQHT auirgds 4 “F ' City Stare 2
{ 618 )} 234-9860 Ext .

v , —

st Y
PEACT SNGIR
kschrondergmmrg . com
Praparirg e-mall e drery {d svoidbi)

identify any required doctmants submitted with this lorm. MamwthenX3 ____ Exiended kegak description
- ' ltemizad ¥31 of parsongl properly

Prapioress; éayvime phene

e PO PTAX 2004
e PO PTAX:203.8

unty Assessment Dfficer

Caunty  Towretp GClags
2 Board ol Review's final assessed value for the assesement year
priot 1o tha yesr of aale.

mmcus Dapariment of Revenue Use

e i Coge1 Cozez

Langd —— b e e et 8 e e e v s

3 Yearpdortosale, e

4 Doos the sile involva 3 mop#e home assasced gs
el ¢Hiake? o Yas __ NO

5 Cammans

Tab nﬁmber.

Frivgra 2 gi 4
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Part of the Sauthwest Quarier of Section 32. Township 2 North, Range 7 West of the
Third Priocipal Meridian, County of St Clatr. Siate of [Hircis and being more
‘pasticularly described as follows:

Commencing.al a concréte momnnent that marks the southwest corner ol said Southeast
Quarter of Section 32: thence Nonh 00 deglees 03 minules 27 seconds West. an the east
line of said, Southwest Quarter of Section 32 u disince of 342 80 fert to the northeast
corner of A tract of Lind desceibed in D(mmiem Number A01771273 and she Point of
Beginning:

Feomt said Foint of Begimning: (hence Narth §9 degrees 06 riinutes 08 seconds Wesl, on
the nartherly lines of said tract of land described in Document Number A1 771273 and a
tract of fand des¢ribed in Deed Book 2745 on page 689, a distance of 264.00 [eet to the
northwest comer of said tract of land described in Deed Book 2745 on page 689, thence
South 00 degrees 03 winutes 27 seconds East. on the westerly line of said tract of land
descnibed in Deed Book 2743 on page 689, a distance of 47.64 feet 1o the northeast
cotner of a tract of fand described in Deed Book 1834 an page 314: thence Narih 89
degrees 06 minutes O8 seconds West, on the northerty tHne of said iract-of land described
in [_Jccd Baok 1834 on pape 314, a distarnce of 205 14 feer 1o the nonhwest comer of said
tract of tand describad in Deed Book 1834 on page 314, thence South 00 degrees 03
minutes 27 scconds East. on the westerly fine of said tact of land described in Deed.
Bock 1834 on page 311, a distance of 240.79 r“ﬂu 10 the northezseedy cight of wiry line of
County Highway 43 (A, KA. Cross Sireet, . Rowte No 2. Shuloh-CO Fallen Road).
relerence being had to the plat thereof in lht St Clair County Recnrder’s Office in Plat
Book 45 on pages 120 and 121 thence North 43 degrees 36 minutes §3 secands West, on
said northeasterly right of way line of County Highway 43, a distance of 135241 feat 10 a
northerty hine of a tract of land described in' Deed Book 1395 on page 53; thence
Naorth 89 dcgn,es 26 minuies 42 seconds East, on said northerly line of a tract of fand
described in Deed Book 1395 on page 53, a distance of 1491.06 feet 10 said east line of
the Southwest Quarter of Section 32; thence South 00 degrees 03 minutes 27
seconds East, on said cast lire of the Southwest. Quarter of Section 32, a distance of
713.92 feet (0 the Point of Beginning.

Said parcel containg 19,97 acres, more or less.
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File Number 6775-531-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

L, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

METRO-EAST SERVICES, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON MARCH 17, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. -

In Testimony Wher eof, 1 hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of

the State of Mllinois, this 17TH
’ .
'y dayof ~ MARCH AD, 201
{
uthentication #: 110760 . ] ’ M W
‘:’c:'?fy ;t Mvw;cytlktl:fdﬂvii-?::ois.com SECRETARY OF m C NT 3
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MEMORIAL
GROUP &

March 17, 2011

Tllinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
Springfield, IL
To Whom It May Concern:

I hereby certify that the proposed site for Memorial Hospital-East is not located in a
special flood hazard area.

Sincerely,

Mark J .4m:r

President & CEO

TACHMENT 5
4500 Memorial Drive « Belleville, llinois 62226 * (618) 2%—] 0 « FAX: (618) 257-% ¢ “wwiw.memhosp.com
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Ilinois Historic
——=—u=w Preservation Agency

MI. 1 Old State Capilol Plaza + Springfietd, Hlincis 62701-1512 www.illinois-history.gov

St. Clair County PLEASE REFER TQ: IHPA LOG H006050710

Shiloh
Cross Street, NW of N Main Street
CON - New Construction

May 11, 2010

Jacob Axel

Axel & Assocliates, Inc.
675 North Court, Suite 210
Palatine, IL 500&7

Dear Mr. Axel:

The Illinois Historic Preservation Agency is required by the Illinois State Agency Histori¢ Resources
Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420, as amended, 17 IAC 4180} to review all state funded, permitted or
licensed undertakings for their effect on cultural resources. Pursuant to this, we have received
information regarding the referenced project for our comment.

Our staff has reviewed the specifications under the state law and assessed the impact of the project as
submitted by your office. We have determined, based on the available information, that no significant
historic, architectural or archaeological resources are located within the proposed project area.

According to the information you have provided concerning your proposed project, apparently there is no
federal involvement in your project. However, please note that the state law is less restrictive than
the federal cultural resource laws concerning axchaeclogy. If your project will use federal loans or
grants, need federal agency permits, use federal property, or involve assistance from a federal agency,
then your project must bDe reviewed under the National Historic Pregervation Act of 1966, as amended.
Please notify us immediately if such is the case.

This clearance remains in effect for two {2) years from date of issuance. It does not pertain to any
digcovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for purposes of the IL Human Skeletal Remains
Protection Act {20 ILCS 3440).

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with the Illinois State Agency
Historic Resources Preservation Act.

Sincerely,

Anne E. Haaker
Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

AEH o

ATTACHMENT 6

A teletypewriter for the speech/hearing impaired is avaifable at 217-524-7128. it is not a voice or fax line.
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ITEMIZATION OF PROJECT COSTS

Preplanning Costs ($1,615,000)
Evaluation of alternatives and feasibility assessments.

Site Survey and Soil Investigation ($50,000)
Surveying of site and evaluation of the ground’s ability to support the proposed
construction.

Site Preparation ($3,690.000)
Site grading and earth movement, development of surface level parking,
instatlation of exterior signage and lighting, and landscaping

Off Site Costs ($6,000,000)
Costs associated with sewer and utility services, and roadway, driveway and
walkway construction.

New Construction Contracts ($69,835.354)
Construction, consistent with ATTACHMENT 76c.

Contingencies ($5.757.450)
New construction-related contingencies, estimated at an average of $24.72/sf.

Architectural and Engineering Fees ($3,390,000)
Professional fees associated with the project design, preparation of all documents,
and interface with IDPH and local authorities, through the project’s completion.

Consulting and Other Fees ($400,000)

CON-related consulting and review fees, IDPH and municipal review fees,
environmental impact assessment, project management services, reimbursables, IT
consulting services, site security, permits, insurance, materials testing, interior design
consultant and miscellaneous costs.

Moveable and Other Equipment ($23,556.000)

Furnishing, fixtures and all non-fixed clinical and non-clinical equipment,
including IT.

ATTACEMENT 7
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MEMORIAL
GROUP ™

. Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL 62761

To Whom It May Concern:

In accordance with Review Criterion 1110.230.b, Background of the Applicant, we are
submitting this letter assuring the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board that:

1. Neither Memorial Group, Inc. nor any of its subsidiary entities have had any
adverse actions taken against it or any facility owned and operated by and co-
applicant during the three (3) year period prior to the filing of this application, and

2. Memonal Group, Inc. authorizes the State Board and Agency access to
information to verify documentation or information submitted in response to the
requirements of Review Criterion 1110.230.b or to obtain any documentation or
information which the State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this application.

If we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any
other issue relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me.

Sincerely,

mer
President & CEO

NOTARIZED: 7 /%,/ﬂ,( P

.

"OFFICIAL SEAL
J.A. Smithson

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINQIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 6-30-12
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The purpose of this project is to provide a contemporary inpatient treatment

setting for residents of Belleville and the surrounding communities that have traditionally
received their inpatient care at Memorial Hospital. As a result, the bed need projections
associated with this project do not assume any shift in market share from Illinois
hospitais, other than Memorial Hospital-Belleville. Rather, utilization is based solely
upon: 1) current utilization rates (patient days/1,000), 2) the impact of demographic
changes to Memorial Hospital’s traditional service area, and 3) an anticipated reduction
in the out-migration of planning area residents to Missouri hospitals. The comerstone of
Memorial’s decision to proceed with the project is the desire to locate all inpatients in

private rooimns.

In addition, and because of the nature of the project—the establishment of a
satellite hospital, rather than a replacement facility—accessibility to health care services,
including Emergency Department and trauma services, for service area residents in the

communities to the north and northeast will be improved.

Because of the improved accessibility, the lower infection rates resulting from an

all-private room setting, and because of the improved patient privacy and comfort
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associated with private rooms, the applicants believe that the well being of the market

area population to be served by the project will be improved as a result of the project.

Historically, Memorial Hospital has attracted approximately 86% of its patients
from the 21 surrounding ZIP Code areas surrounding Belleville, and because it is
anticipated that the patient population to be served will not substantially change with the
establishment of the proposed hospital, no appreciable changes to that 21 ZIP Code area

are anticipated. Those ZIP Code areas include the following:

62226 Belleville 62223 Belleville 62269 O’Fallon

62221 Belleville 62208 Fairview Heights 62206 E. St. Louis/Cahokia
62220 Bellewvilie 62234 Collinsville 62232 Caseyville

62203 East St. Louis 62204 East St. Lows 62205 East St. Louis
62207 East St. Louis 62254 Lebanon 62258 Mascoutah

62260 Millstead 62243 Freeburg 62201 East St. Louis
62264 New Athens 62298 Waterloo 62040 Granite City

Memorial Hospital has historically been a primary provider of both Medicaid and
charity care services within the region, and Memorial-East will operate under the same
admissions and charity care policies currently in place at Memorial-Belleville. Based on
IDPH data, as reported in its Hospital Profiles, during 2009 Memorial Hospital accounted
for both the most Medicaid admissions (2,258) and the highest total charity care expense

($3.27 million) of all the hospitals located in Planning Area F-01.

The three primary measurements of the project’s success, all of which are
anticipated to be measurable within three months of the project’s completion are: 1)

lower infection rates than currently experienced at Memorial Hospital (though the current
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infection rates are not considered to be high), 2) shorter transport and travel times to a
hospital, and 3) higher patient satisfaction reporting than 1s currently the case at

Memorial Hospital.
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ALTERNATIVES

The project presented in this application involves the establishment of a satellite
hospital, providing 72 medical/surgical/pediatrics beds, 16 obstetrics beds, six ICU beds,
and associated support space. The goal of the project is to locate all of Memoral

Hospital’s beds in a private room setting. Three alternatives were evaluated:

Alternative 1: Build a new bed tower on the Memonal Hospital Campus

In response to the goal of transforming Memorial Hospital into an all-private
room facility, as has been the practice with many other Illinois hospitals in recent years,
the construction of a new bed tower, to be coupled with the conversion of existing semi-
private rooms into private rooms was evaluated during a 2008/2009 Master Site Planning
process. The cost of constructing a bed tower {with minimal space devoted to other
services) connected to Memorial Hospital was estimated to be in the $179-184M range,
with significant costs ass;)ciated with the construction of a sizable building on a site with

abandoned coal mines undemeath, as is the case with the existing hospital site.

The cost associated with this altermative rendered it to be impractical.

ATTACHMENT 13




Alternative 2: Build a Hospital Having 100 Medical/Surgical/Pediatrics Beds and
20 Obstetrics Beds

Consideration was given to constructing a larger hospital in order to be in
compliance with Review Criterion 1110.530.f, which identifies the minimum number of
Medical/Surgical beds and the minimum number of obstetrics beds for hospitals located
in a Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) to be 100 and 20 beds, respectively. (Note:
This cnterion relates to new hospital, modernization and expansion projects.) This

alternative was rejected for a variety of reasons:

First, with the primary purpose of the project being to locate all of Memonal’s
beds in private patient rooms, and with 164 medical/surgical and 15 obstetrics rooms
being available for continued use on the Belleville campus, it made little sense to
construct 100 medical/surgical and 20 obstetrics rooms at Memonal-East while leaving
rooms at Memorial-Belleville unused, and for the sole purpose of complying with one of

the many review criteria that proposed project would be reviewed against.

Second, the capital cost associated with this alternative exceeds that of the

selected approach by over $21M.

Third, the 20-bed and 100-bed minimums developed by the IHFSRB’s
predecessor agency are no longer consistent with the delivery of hospital services. As
reported in the 2008 IDPH Profiles, there are currently 28 hospitals located in MSAs that
provide fewer than 20 obstetrics beds. Similarly, the 100-bed minimum for

Medical/Surgical beds has evolved from an earlier review criterion (1110.320.a), which
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identified 100 as the minimum number of Medical/Surgical beds for newly established
hospitals located in a MSA.  That criterion has since been replaced by the criterion
identifying 100 as the Medical/Surgical bed minimum for newly established as well as

existing hospitals located in a MSA.  Similar to the lack of consistency with the

obstetrics criterion, excluding Long Term Acute Care Hospitals (LTACHs) and Critical
Access Hospitals (CAHs), there are 22 general hospitals having fewer than 100
medical/surgical beds that are located in Illinois MSAs, including three of the eight

hospitals located in this project’s Health Planning Area, F-01.

The basis for the 100-bed mimimum dates back to the infancy of Illinois’ CON

program, and is still referenced in the IHFSRB’s rules:
“Planning areas for acute care categories of service of medical-surgical/pediatrics,
obstetrics and intensive care must contain a minimum population of 40,000. This
population base would be sufficient to support a 100 bed hospital based upon a facility
target occupancy of 80% and an inpatient day use rate of 725 days per 1,000 population.”
(Section 1110.510.¢.7)

The most basic understanding of the delivery of hospital services since the
inception of Ilinois’ CON program in the late 1970s-early 1980s acknowledges dramatic
changes in utilization since the initial rules were developed. 2009 utilization data
contained in the recently published “Illinois Hospitals Data Summary” developed by
IDPH staff identified 5,783,730 medical-surgical/pediatrics, obstetrics and intensive care
patient days of care provided through Illinois hospitals (6,149,847 patient days if
“observation” days are included). A simple extrapolation from 2005 and 2010 population

projections developed by the Iilinois Department of Commerce and economic

Opportunity (IDCEQ) identifies a state-wide population of 13,198,279. The resultant
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experienced use rate is 438.22 days per 1,000 (46590 if “observation” days are
included), compared to the 725 days per 1,000 that provided the basis for the 100-bed
minimum. Stated another way, the population that required 100 beds when the criterion
was written, can now be served by 60-65 beds because of the lower utilization rate; and
as a result, the cost associated with the construction of the additional beds simply to

comply with the single review criterion cannot be justified.

Alternative 3: Eliminate the Planned Provision of Obstetrics Services from Either
Memorial Hospital or Memorial-East

Memorial Hospital operated with an obstetrical average daily census of
approximately 11.5 patients in 2009, and as a community hospital, obstetrics is viewed as
a primary service. That historical census supports a “need” for 16 beds, based on the
IHFSRB’s 75% occupancy target. The performance requirement noted in the discussion
of Alternative 2—the 20-bed minimum, suggests that if Memorial elects to provide
obstetrics services on both of its campuses, a minimum of 40 beds are to be provided.
Because Memorial-East is envisioned as a classic satellite hospital having a focus on
primary care services, obstetrics is absolutely consistent with that concept, and therefore
should be provided at the hospital. Alternatively, Memorial Hospital is a community
hospital that has provided obstetrics services since its founding, and the elimination of
this primary service from a community hospital setting with such a long tradition of
providing the service, is viewed as being inappropriate by the applicants. As a result, this

alternative was rejected as being inconsistent with the applicant’s mission.
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SIZE OF PROJECT

The  departmental/function-specific ~ space  allocations  presented  in
ATTACHMENTS 9 and 42C are necessary and not excessive. The project involves
167,035 DGSF and 206,618 BGSF of new construction. 118,400 of the DGSF are

assigned to “clinical” functions.

The table below identifies those areas included within the proposed project, for
which the THFSRB has adopted space standards. As can be noted from the table, each of

the eleven areas is consistent with the IHFSRB standard.

DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
Medical/Surgical 46,116 47,520 {1,404) yes
ICU 4,014 4110 (96) yes
Qbstetrics bads 5174 5280 (108) yes
LDRP 7,488 12,800 (5,312) yes
C-Section 1,808 4,150 (2,342) yes
Level 1 Nursery 2,560 2,560 - ves
Emergency Dept. 7,096 7,200 {104) yes
Card Cath/Special Proc 5010 5,200 {190) yes
Gi Lab (inc. recovery) 4,293 4,960 {667) yes
Surgery & Recavery 16,328 16,520 (192) yes
Diagnostic Imaging* 8,315 10,000 (1,685) yes
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The space program proposed for the project was developed through a series of

interactive meetings involving the project’s architectural firm, HDR, and representatives

of the hospital.

Included within the eleven functional areas identified in the table above are the
following;

s two medical/surgical units, consisting of 36 private rooms, each

¢ ab6-bedICU

e a women’s center, consisting of 8 private post partum rooms, 8 LDRPs, a 2-room
C-section suite, and a Level I nursery,

¢ an 8-station Emergency Department

e a cardiac catheterization/special procedures department, consisting of two
procedure rooms and 4 Level II recovery stations

e a GI laboratory, consisting of 2 procedure rooms, 2 Level I and 6 Level II
recovery stations

e a surgical suite, consisting of 4 Class C operating rooms and a post-surgical
recovery function consisting of 4 Level I and 12 Level II stations

¢ a diagnostic imaging department, consisting of 2 general x-ray rooms, and one
room each for fluoroscopy, CT, MR, ultrasound and nuclear medicine.

ATTACHMENT 14




PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

The table below documents that it is anticipated that each of the services included
in the proposed project, and for which the IHFSRB maintains utilization standards, will

operate consistent with the applicable standard, by Memorial Hospital-East’s second year

of operation.
Dept./ Historical PROJECTED STATE MET
Service Utilization UTILIZATION STANDARD STANDARD?
(Patient Days)
(TREATMENTS) YEAR1 YEAR 2
ETC.

Medical/Surgical n/a 65% 85% 85% yes
iCU n/a 46% 60% 60% yes
Obstetrics n/a 31% 41% 75% no
Emergency Dept. n/a 10,400 14,437 2000/staion yes
Cardiac Cath. n/a 204 282 200/year yes
Gl Lab. n/a 1,750 2,273 1,500 hrs/rm yes
Surgery n/a 3,816 4,990 1,500 hrs/OR yes
GeneralR&F n/a 21,185 27,703  8,000/unit yes
MRI n/a 1,533 2,005 2 500/unit yes
CT nfa 8,299 10,853  7,000/unit yes
Ultrasound na B,076 10,561 3,100/unit yes
Nuclear Medicine nia 2,141 2,800  2,000/unit yes

The primary purpose of providing each of the clinical services addressed in this

ATTACHMENT is to provide a necessary service to residents of the hospital’s planning
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area. In addition, and because the patient population traditionally looking to Memorial
Hospital for its care served as the basis for utilization projections, no Illinois providers,
other than Memorial Hospital, are anticipated to be impacted by this project. (Please see
discussion below on out-migration to Missouri hospitals.) As a result, this project will
not cause any other existing provider’s utilization to fall below the IDPH’s service-
specific standard, nor will it cause any provider not operating at the IDPH’s standard to

realize a decrease in utilization.

The remainder of this ATTACHMENT will address the manner in which the
utilization projections in the table above were developed, discussing both the patient
population that has traditionally received care in the planning area’s hospitals and those

planning area residents that have out-migrated to Missouri for their care.

Medical/Surgical Beds

Memorial Hospital-East will provide care to pediatrics patients on the
medical/surgical units, rather than provide a separate pediatrics unit. The applicants
decided to forego the development of a pediatrics unit due to the low pediatrics census

experienced by Memorial Hospital in recent years.

Projected utilization of the medical/surgical services was calculated for both of
Memorial’s facilities, together—Memorial Hospital-Belleville and Memorial Hospital-
East— because the project essentially re-distributes Memorial’s patients over the two

campuses. In projecting utilization, the following assumptions were made:

ATTACHMENT 15
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e ZIP Code-specific utilization rates (patient days/1,000 population) would
remain constant at their 2009 rates through 2014;

e Illinois hospitals’ market share of patients now receiving care in Illinois
would remain at the 2009 distribution; and

e that portion of the area’s population electing to leave Illinois for their care
would diminish;

As a result of the assumptions identified above, the only factors that will effect
future utilization of the two hospitals are population increases or decreases within
individual ZIP Code areas, the aging of the area’s population and diminished out-

migration to Missouri, which will be discussed separately.

a. Impact of Population Growth and Aging

Because of the significant disparity between the historical utilization rates of the
two age groups used to project patient days (0-64 and 65+), all projections were made on
an age-group basis. (The historical use rate of the 65+ age group is nearly 6 2 times that
of the younger age group). As noted above, this methodology assumes that no patients
will be “taken from” any other Illinois hospital, with the exception of Memorial Hospital-

Belleville patients moving to Memorial-East.

Two separate analyses were performed.

By applying 2009 age group and ZIP Code-specific utilization rates, as calculated
from Illinois Hospital Association CompDATA reports, to comparable 2014 populations,
as projected by GeoLytics, Inc. a proprietary demographics firm, a 7.28% increase in

non-obstetrics (medical, surgical, pediatrics and ICU) utilization was projected. This
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analysis would suggest 57,003 (53,135 x 1.0728) patient days of care to be provided by

Memomnal in 2014.

A second, and more detailed analysis was performed, that being a 2009 day-by-
day census analysis, which revealed that Memorial Hospital’s medical/surgical/pediatrics
census varied drastically over the year, from a low of 92 patients to a high of 215

patients, a 134% variance. It was also noted that the highest census days occurred during

the first quarter of the year, where the daily census never fell below 136 patients. The
day-by-day census for this period was identified and then increased by 7.28%, consistent
with the demographic-driven increases to be anticipated, and as discussed above. That
process suggested that the January-March, 2014 census will range from 146 to 241
patients, with an average daily census (ADC) of 186.5 patients, and a census of 200+

projected to be reached on eighteen days and a census of 222 or more on four days.

b. Impact of Anticipated Reduced Out-Migration to Missouri Hospitals

While some PSA residents have long-standing relationships with Missour:
physicians, resulting in admission to Missouri hospitals, local understanding suggests that
a significant number of the PSA residents that are “out-migrating” are doing so because

Missouri hospitals are more accessible than the two hospitals in Belleville.

In 2010 McManis Consulting was commissioned by Memorial to perform a
variety of planning-related analyses, including an analysis of the utilization of Missouri

hospitals by residents of Memorial’s service area.
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McManis identified a primary service area (PSA) for Memortal Hospital,

consisting of 24 ZIP Code areas (4 of which were non-residential) from which the
hospital has traditionally attracted 80-82% of its medical/surgical patients. McManis also
identified northern and southern secondary service areas (SSAs), which each have

traditionally accounted for 5-6% of Memorial’s medical/surgical patients.

For purposes of their analysis, McManis categorized medical and surgiclal DRGs
as primary, secondary or tertiary care (as opposed to a simple specialty categonzation)
and assessed where Memorial Hospital’s PSA residents received those three levels of
care. Using 2009 Missouri Hospital Association HIDI data, McManis found that :

e 36.2% of the care provided in Missouri to residents of Memorial Hospital’s PSA
was categorized as “primary”, 48.3% as “secondary” and 15.6% as “tertiary”
» when adjusted to remove obstetrics, neonates, physical rehabilitation, substance

abuse and psychiatry patients from the analysis, Memorial’s PSA saw 2,931

primary care patients and 4,337 secondary care patients seek care in Missouri.

The proposed site of Memorial Hospital-East will be much more accessible to
many of the Illinois patients obtaining care in Missouri, and as a result, it is believed that

out-migration will be reduced.

For planning purposes, Memorial Hospital is taking a very conservative approach

in projecting Memorial Hospital-East’s impact on out-migration, limiting its projections

ATTACHMENT 15
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to its PSA, only; and holding population (and more importantly, age distribution)
constant. The result is that if Memorial-East would “capture™ only 25% of the primary
care admissions and 15% of the secondary care admissions (and no tertiary care
admissions) now out-migrating to Missouri, there would be an additional 1,383
medical/surgical patients staying in Illinois. That number of incremental patients—
patients that are now being admitted to Missouri hospitals-- would, using Memorial’s

2009 average length of stay, require 20 additional medical/surgical beds.

In addition, and as is the practice at many hospitals, non-traditional inpatients
occupy inpatient beds for observation purposes or as “extended outpatients”, with those
patients typically occupying the beds during the busiest time of the day, from 10AM to

4PM. Memonal estimates that on most weekdays, 6-9 beds are used for this purpose.

As a result of the need to assure beds are available for patients during the higher
census periods—though not necessarily on the highest of projected census days—a total
of 261 medical/surgical/pediatrics beds are proposed to be provided jointly on the two
campuses: 200 beds to address the needs of “traditional” Memorial patients, adjusted for
population growth and aging, 20 beds to address the need resulting from reduced out-
migration of area residents to Missouri hospitals, and 6 beds to account for observation
and “extended outpatients” occupying an inpatient bed. Seventy-two of the beds will be
located at Memorial-East, and 189 will be located at Memorial Hospital-Belleville—a
reduction of 78 medical/surgical/pediatrics beds at Memorial-Belleville. Assuming no

un-anticipated utilization changes at Memorial-Belleville prior to the opening of
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Memorial-East, the combined medical/surgical/pediatrics bed complement would be
reduced by six beds (Memorial-Belleville is currently approved to operate 267

medical/surgical/pediatrics beds).

For planning purposes, and consistent with IHFSRB targets, the proposed beds at
Memorial-East are projected to operate at 85% occupancy (22,338 patient days) during
the second year following the hospital’s opening, and at 65% (17,082 patient days)
occupancy during the initial twelve months of the hospital’s operation, as the resuit of an

anticipated “ramp-up” period.

The calculations described above are provided in ATTACHMENT 20b3.

ICU Beds

ICU utilization at Memorial Hospital equated 9.9% of medical/surgical/pediatrics
utilization in 2009, and that ratio is projected to remain constant, when applied
cumulatively to Memorial Hospital-Belleville and Memorial Hospital-East. The rate at
Memorial-East alone, however, will be considerably lower because of an absence of an
open heart surgery program and because more complicated medical and surgical cases,
when the option is available, will be admitted to Memorial Hospital-Belleville. As a
result, and for planning purposes, the 9.9% rate is being discounted by 50%, to 4.95% at
Memorial-East. Accordingly, and based on the projected m/s/p patient days identified in
the section above, 846 and 1,106 ICU patient days are projected during the first two years

of operation, respectively.
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Obstetrical Beds

Obstetrical bed utilization was projected on a combined hospital basis, using a
methodology similar to that used to project medical/surgical bed utilization, and as
discussed above (with 86.4% of the patients continuing to come from a 24 ZIP Code-
area). All variables, inciuding market share, ZIP Code-specific utilization rates, and
average length of stay were held constant, with the only variable being allowed to change

being ZIP Code-specific population within the 15-44 year old female cohort.

As discussed in ATTACHMENT 20b3, which provides the entire methodology,
the applicants believe that by the second year of operation, and due primarily to the
“newness” factor, two-thirds of Memorial’s obstetrics patient days will be provided at
Memorial Hospital-East, or 2,973 patient days. Utilization during the first year of
Memorial-East’s operation is anticipated to approximate 75% that of the second year, or

approximately 2,230 patient days.

With the opening of the 16-bed obstetrics unit at Memorial-East, and based on
utilization at Memorial-Belleville, it is anticipated that the Bellevilie unit will be reduced

in size from 29 to 8 beds, resulting in a “net” reduction of five obstetrics beds.

Emergency Department

Memonal Hospital has expenienced significant increases in its Emergency

Department utilization, increasing from 47,255 visits in 2005 to 59,333 visits in 2009, an
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increase of 25.6%, with the annual increases ranging from a low of 4.5% to a high of
8.6%. In order to be conservative, utilization is projected to increase at a rate below the
lowest recently experienced rate, 4.5% a year. Emergency Department utilization is
projected to increase at an annual rate of 4.0% for the next five years. As a result, 2013
utilization is projected to be 72,187 visits in the second year following the opening of

Memorial-East.

Based on population distribution within the planning area and the planned clinical
capabilities of Memonal, it is anticipated that 20% of the Emergency Department volume
will be provided at Memorial-East, with the balance remaining at Memorial Hospital.
Allowing for a “ramp-up” period during the hospital’s initial year of operation, 10,400
visits are anticipated during the first year, with 14,437 being projected for the second year

of operation.

Surgery/Recovery

Surgical hours (including room turn-over) provided at Memorial Hospital
increased by 7.7% between 2005 and 2009, an average of 1.9% a year. Two
methodologies were used to identify, on a non-specialty-specific basis, the number of

operating rooms required for Memonal Hospital and Memorial Hospital-East.

The first methodology assumed that surgical hours would continue to increase,

but at a rate of only 1% per year, resulting in a projection of 18,580 hours during the
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second year of Memonal Hospital-East’s operation, and a need for 13 operating rooms,

based on the IDPH standard of 1,500 hours per OR. The second methodology used
Memorial Hospital’s 2009 inpatient cases per m/s/p day, ratio of outpatient cases per
inpatient case, and average hours of OR time used per case, to project 16,459 hours

during the same year, and a need for 11 ORs at the two hospitals.

The results of both methodologies, however, need to be adjusted to provide for
necessary “specialty” ORs, those being dedicated operating rooms to support Memorial
Hospital’s open heart surgery program (open heart surgery will not be provided at
Memorial-East). With the exception of the open heart rooms, all of Memorial Hospital’s
operating rooms have historically been designated as “general” rooms, though specialty

designations, including a cystoscopy room are used for internal purposes.

Memonal Hospital currently operates two open heart surgery and seventeen
“general” rooms, a total of nineteen operating rooms. In 2009, 7.8% of the OR hours
were provided in the open heart rooms. All of the operating rooms at Memorial-East will
be designated as “general”; and using the methodologies identified above, the projected
m/s/p patient days during the second year of operation would result in a projection of
7,4260 hours (22,338 patient days x .325 hours) of OR time at Memorial-East and a need
for five operating rooms. Because of the ability to direct outpatients to Memorial
Hospital, and as discussed above, the projected hours of OR time have been discounted
by 33%, to 4,990 hours, resulting in a need to provide only four operating rooms at

Memorial-East. Surgical utilization during the hospital’s initial year will ramp-up in a
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manner similar to that of medical/surgical utilization, and as a result, 3,816 hours of

operating room time are projected.

Recovery stations will be provided at the rate of four recovery stations per

operating room, with 25% of the stations being provided in a Phase I setting.

Imaging Department

Imaging department utilization has been projected using historical utilization
ratios from Memorial Hospital, with outpatient procedures discounted by 33%, as
discussed above. The department will consist of three radiographic/fluoroscopic rooms,

one room each for CT, MRI, ultrasound, and nuclear medicine.

Projected utilization for each of the imaging modalities is presented in the table

below.
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Year 1 m/s/p & ICU days:
Year 2 m/s/p & ICU days:

General R& F

inpt proc per m/sfp & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures’

Ultrasound

CcT

MRI

inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures

inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procadures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures

inpt proc per mis/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.™

Total procedures

Nuclear Medicine

inpt proc per mfs/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures

*discounted by 33%

17,928
23,444

0.47

151.42%

0.289

55.88%

0.18

157.18%

0.026

228.87%

0.072

65.86%

Year 1 Year 2

8,426 11,019
12,759 16,684
21,185 27,703
5,181 6,775
2,895 3,786
8,076 10,561
3,227 4220
5072 6,633
8,299 10,853
466 610
1,067 1,385
1,533 2,005
1,291 1,688
850 1,112
2141 2,800

GI Lab

g3
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A GI Lab has become a primary service offered at virtually all hospitals having
gastroenterologists on their medical staff. For each of the last two years, 82% of the GI

Lab cases at Memorial Hospital have been performed on an outpatient basis. Over the




last five years, utilization of Memorial Hospital’s GI lab has increased at an average rate
of 12.1% per year. Utilization is conservatively projected to increase at an average rate
of 10.0% a year, for the next five years, through the second year of operation for
Memorial-East. As a result, 11,367 hours of GI Lab time are projected, and 20% of those
hours are anticipated to ultimately be provided at Memorial-East. Providing for a “ramp
up” period during the hospital’s imtial year of operatior, 1,750 hours of GI Lab time are
anticipated to be used in the first year of operation, and 2,273 hours will be used in the
second year. Two procedure rooms (and six Phase II recovery stations) will be provided,

to allow for the efficient use of the gastroenterologist’s time.

Cardiac Catheternization

A cardiac catheterization laboratory will be provided, consistent waith
contemporary practices. Historically, the ED at Memorial Hospital-Belleville has
generated approximately 17 cardiac catheterizations for every 1,000 patients seen. For
planning purpose, the rate through the ED at Memorial Hospital-East is anticipated to be
approximately the same as experienced at Memorial-Belleville, 17 per 1,000 ED patients.
Historically, approximately 5% of the diagnostic catheterizations performed at Memorial-
Bellville were performed on patients taken directly from the ED to the cath lab, with
approximately 95% being performed on a “scheduled” basis. At Memorial-East, the
“scheduled” rate is anticipated to be similar to that experienced at Memorial Hospital-
Believille. As a result, and based primarily upon projected ED utilization, 186 and 258
cardiac catheterizations are anticipated to be performed at Memorial-East during its first

two years of operation.
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One procedure room dedicated to cardiac catheterization will be provided.

Staff in this area will also support the special procedures room.

Special Procedures

A single special procedures room will be provided adjacent to the diagnostic
imaging department. The most common procedures to be performed in the special
procedure room, based on the experience at Memorial Hospital will include: aortograms,
peripheral angioplasty, stent insertion, fistulograms and venacavagrams. Using the ratios
of one inpatient procedure per 115.2 m/s/p patient days, as experienced at Memorial
Hospital and 81 outpatient procedures performed for every 100 inpatient procedures, a
total of 194 inpatient and 157 outpatient procedures are anticipated to be performed at
Memorial Hospital-East during the second year following the hospital’s opening.
Allowing for a ramp-up period, utilization of the special procedures room during the
hospital’s first year of operation is projected to approximate 50% of the second year’s

utilization, or 82 inpatient and 78 outpatient procedures,

As noted above, the cardiac catheterization lab and the special procedures rooms

will share staff.
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Respiratory Therapy/Pulmonary Function

Respiratory therapy and pulmonary function treatments, 91.8% of which are
provided on an inpatient basis at Memorial Hospital, are anticipated to be performed at
the rate of 1.91 treatments per m/s/p and ICU patient day, as is the experience at
Memorial Hospital. Accordingly, the following respiratory therapy/pulmonary function

volumes, in terms of treatments are anticipated:

Year 1 Year?2

Inpatient 31,927 41,751
Outpatient 2.852 3,730
Total 34,779 45,481

Non-Invasive Cardiology

Non-Invasive Cardiology services are provided more frequently on an outpatient
than an inpatient basis at Memorial Hospital, and that practice is anticipated to duplicate
itself at Memorial Hospital-East. Consistent with the utilization at Memorial Hospital,
non-invasive cardiology procedures are projected to be performed on an inpatient basis at
the rate of one procedure per 3.6 m/s/p and ICU patient days, and 1.3 outpatient
procedures are projected to be performed for each inpatient procedure. As a result, and

based on projected patient days, the following utilization is anticipated:

Year 1 Year?2

Inpatient 5,058 6,614
QOutpatient 6.575 8,599
Total 11,633 15,213
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PLANNING AREA NEED

St. Clair County is located in IHFSRB-designated Planning Area F-01. The
January 18, 2011 Ujpdate of the IDPH’s Imventory identifies excesses of 527

medical/surgical/pediatrics beds, 128 obstetrics beds, and 23 ICU beds within the area.

The proposed project and the subsequent reduction of beds at memorial Hospital-
Belleville will result in a net reduction of approximately 11* medical/surgical/pediatrics
and obstetrics beds (please see table below). The medical/surgical/pediatrics and
obstetrics beds will be removed from Memorial Hospital-Belleville upon the opening of
Memorial Hospital-East. The 16 obstetrics beds are being provided consistent with
Memorial Hospital-East’s mission as a satellite community hospital located in an area

with a significant demand for obstetrics services.

Current Proposed Net
{Belleville) Belleville  Shiloh Change
M/S/P 267 189* 72 6
OB 29 a* 16** -5

* approximate, to be determined
*“* includes 8 LDRPs

The net increase of five ICU beds (6 to be provided at Memorial-East and one to

be removed from Memorial Hospital) is consistent with the ICU bed need projection
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provided in ATTACHMENT 20b3, and in response to Memoral Hospital’s historical

utilization rate, which has exceeded the IDPH’s target level in each of the last five years.
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SERVICE TO PLANNING AREA RESIDENTS

The proposed site is located in [DPH-designated Planning Area F-01, which
consists of Madison and St. Clair Counties, Monroe County Precincts 2, 3,4, 5,7, 10, 11,
14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, and 22; and the Clinton County Townships of Sugar Creek,
Looking Glass, Germantown, Breese, St. Rose, Wheatfield, Wade, Santa Fe, Lake,
Irishtown, Carlyle, and Clement. Planning Area F-01 is the designated planning area for
ecach bed category of service included in the proposed project (medical/surgical,
obstetrical and ICU). Health Services Area X1 serves as the IDPH-designated planning
area for the only other category of service included in the proposed project, that being

cardiac catheterization.

The primary purpose of the project in general, and of each of the four proposed
categories of service, individually, is to serve the residents of the planning areas

identifited above.

The anticipated patient origin of medical, surgical, pediatrics, ICU and cardiac
catheterization patients using Memorial Hospital-East (as well as patients using other
non-obstetrics-related services) is anticipated to be simmlar to that currently being

experienced by Memorial Hospital, and as depicted in the table below, with the exception
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of admission of a portion of the planning area’s patient population currently “out-

migrating” to Missouri for care (please see discussion in ATTACHMENT 15).

Origin of Medical/Surgical, Pediatrics, ICU
and Cardiac Catheterization Patients

ZIP % Cum %
Code Community of Adm of Adm
62226 Belleville 13.4% 13.4%
62223 Belleville 8.9% 222%
62269 (O'Fallon 7.7% 29.9%
62221 Belleview 6.7% 36.7%
62208 Fairview Heights 6.5% 43.1%
62206 Cahokia 6.1% 49.3%
62220 Belleville 51% 54.4%
62234 Collinsville 3.9% 58.3%
62232 Caseyville 3.4% 61.7%
62203 E. St Louis 3.3% 65.0%
62204 E. St Louis 3.3% 68.3%
62205 E. St. Louis 2.9% 71.1%
62207 E. St Louis 2.6% 73.7%
62254 Lebanon 22% 75.9%
62258 Mascoutah 2.0% 77.9%
62260 Millstead 1.9% 79.8%
62243 Freeburg 1.4% 81.2%
62201 E. St. Louis 1.3% 82.5%
62264 New Athens 1.2% 83.7%
62298 Waterloo 1.2% 84.9%
62040 Granite City 1.1% 86.0%

<1.0% 14.0%  100.0%

Similarly, the anticipated patient origin of the obstetrics patients using Memorial
Hospital-East is anticipated to be very similar to that currently being experienced by

Memorial Hospital, and as depicted in the table below.
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Origin of Obstetrics Patients

ZIP
Code

62226
62221
62269
62220
62206
62223
62208
62234
62203
62207
- 62204
62205
62258
62201
62243
62285
62278
62298
62260
62264
62232
62254
62257
62040

Community

Bellevilie
Belleville
O'Fallon
Belleville
Cahokia

Bellevills

Fairview Heights

Collinsville
E. St. Louis
E. St. Louis
E. St. Louis
E. St. Louis
Mascoutah
E. St. Louis
Freeburg
Smithton
Red Bud
Waterloo
Millstadt
New Athens
Caseyville
Lebanon
Marissa
Granite City
<1.0%

%

of Adm

10.6%
7.9%
7.8%
6.8%
6.7%
6.0%
5.2%
3.7%
3.4%
3.2%
3.0%
2.8%
21%
21%
2.0%
2.0%
1.7%
1.6%
1.5%
1.5%
1.3%
1.2%
1.2%
1.1%

13.6%

Cum %
of Adm

10.6%
18.4%
26.3%
33.1%
39.8%
45.8%
51.0%
54.8%
58.2%
61.4%
64.4%
67.2%
69.3%
71.4%
73.4%
75.3%
77.1%
78.7%
80.2%
B81.6%
82.9%
84.1%
85.3%
86.4%
100.0%

Consistent with the information provided in the tables above, a minimum of 50%

of the patients anticipated to utilize each of the proposed categories of service at

Memorial Hospital-East will be residents of the applicable IDPH-designated planning

area, whether that be Planning Area F-01 or Health Systems Area XI.
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SERVICE DEMAND
ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Memorial Hospital-East will provide four categories of service, each of which is
currently (and will continue to be) provided at Memorial Hospital-Belleville:
medical/surgical beds, ICU beds, obstetrics beds, and cardiac catheterization. In addition,
and as discussed in other attachments to this application, Memonal-East is being
established to enable Memorial Hospital to locate all of its beds in private rooms, and the
bed “need” analyses used to identify the number of beds to be provided are based

primarily on the current utilization of Memorial Hospital.

For these reasons a technical assistance conference, consistent with IHFSRB rules
was held with State Agency Staff on May 14, 2010 to discuss the most appropriate way
for the applicants to address Review Criterion 1110.530(b)(3). Consistent with that
conference, documentation of two years of historical utilization at Memorial Hospital,
and a certification that the information provided is true and correct are being provided in
the form of a letter from Mark J. Turner, President and CEQO of Memorial Hospital, to

satisfy this Review Criterion.
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4500 MEMORIAL DrivE

BELLEVILLE, ILLINOIS 62226-5399

oy MN[EMORIAL

FAX: (618) 257-5658 . Dedication. Compassion. Innovation.
WWW MEMHOSP.COM :

Mark J. TURNER, PRESIDENT

March 17, 2011

Ilitnois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
Springfield, Iilinois

RE: Review Criterion 1110.530(b)(3)
To Whom It May Concemn:
This letter is being provided to fulfill the requirements of the above-noted review
criterton, and consistent with a Technical Assistance conference held with State Agency
staff on May 14, 2010, and documented in accord with I[HFSRB requirements.
The table below identifies Memorial Hospital’s past two years’ utilization of each

“category of service” to be provided at Memorial Hospital-East. The data provided in the
table 1s true and correct, to the best of my knowledge.

2008 2009
Patient Patient
Admissions Days Procedures Admissions Days Procedures
medical/surgical beds* 12386 53,536 nfa 12,414 53,135 n/a
ICU beds 1,718 5,284 n/a 1,730 5,330 n/a
obstetrics beds 2,079 4,988 n/a 2,050 2,050 n/a
cardiac cath nfa nfa 1,531 n/a nfa 1,835
*includes pediatrics

Please do not hesitate to call me, should any additional documentation be required to
satisfy the requirements of the review criterion.

2

Mark J
President & CEO -

Notanzed: //%tc‘[ 20/

AP

"FFiC.'AL |
JA. Smithson ITME
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF !Lﬁ%‘l? ; NT 2003
‘;' ZOMMISSION EXPIRES 6-30-12

An affiliate of Memorial Group, Inc.




PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

1. Medical/Surgical Beds

Memorial Hospital-East will provide care to pediatrics patients on the
medical/surgical units, rather than provide a separate pediatrics unit. The applicants
decided to forego the development of a pediatrics unit due to the low pediatrics census

experienced by Memorial Hospital in recent years.

Projected utilization of the medical/surgical services was calculated for both of
Memorial’s facilities—Memorial Hospital-Belleville and Memorial Hospital-East—
together because the project essentially re-distributes Memorial’s patients over the two
campuses. In projecting utilization, the following assumptions were made:

o ZIP Code-specific utilization rates (patient days/1,000 population) would
remain constant at their 2009 rates through 2014;

o Illinois hospitals’ market share of patients now receiving care in Illinois
would remain at the 2009 distribution; and

« that portion of the area’s population electing to leave Illinois for their care
would diminish;

As a result of the assumptions identified above, the only factors that will effect
future utilization of the two hospitals are population increases or decreases within
individual ZIP Code areas, the aging of the area’s population and diminished out-

migration to Missouri, which will be discussed separately.
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a. Impact of Population Growth and Aging

Because of the significant disparity between the historical utilization rates of the
two age groups used to project patient days (0-64 and 65+), all projections were made on
an age-group basis. (The historical use rate of the 65+ age group is nearly 6 ' times that
of the younger age group). As noted above, this methodology assumes that no patients
will be “taken from” any other Illinois hospital, with the exception of Memorial Hospital-

Belleville patients moving to Memonal-East.
Two separate analyses were performed.

By applying 2009 age group and ZIP Code-specific utilization rates, as calculated
from Illinois Hospital Association CompDATA reports, to comparable 2014 populations,
as projected by GeoLytics, Inc. a proprietary demographics firm, a 7.28% increase in
non-obstetrics (medical, surgical, pediatrics and ICU) utilization was projected. This
analysis would suggest 57,003 (53,135 x 1.0728) patient days of care to be provided by

Memoral in 2014.
The calculations described above are provided at the end of this ATTACHMENT.

A second, and more detailed analysis was performed, that being a 2009 day-by-
day census analysis, which revealed that Memorial Hospital’s medical/surgical/pediatrics
census varied drastically over the year, from a low of 92 patients to a high of 215

patients, a 134% variance. It was also noted that the highest census days occurred during
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the first quarter of the year, where the daily census never fell below 136 patients. The
day-by-day census for this period was identified and then increased by 7.28%, consistent
with the demographic-driven increases to be anticipated, and as discussed above. That
process suggested that that January-March, 2014 census will range from 146 to 241
patients, with an average daily census (ADC) of 186.5 patients, and with a census of

200+ projected to be reached on eighteen days and a census of 222 or more on four days.

b. Impact of Anticipated Reduced Out-Migration to Missouri Hospitals

While some PSA residents have long-standing relationships with Missouri
physicians, resulting in admission to Missouri hospitals, local understanding suggests that
a significant number of the PSA residents that are “out-migrating” are doing so because

Missouri hospitals are more accessible than the two hospitals in Belleville.

In 2010 McManis Consulting was commissioned by Memornal to perform a
variety of planning-related analyses, including an analysis of the utilization of Missouri

hospitals by residents of Memorial’s service area.

McManis identified a primary service area (PSA) for Memorial Hospital,
consisting of 24 ZIP Code areas (4 of which were non-residential) from which the
hospital has traditionally attracted 80-82% of its medical/surgical patients. McManis also
identified northern and southern secondary service areas (SSAs), which each have

traditionally accounted for 5-6% of Memorial’s medical/surgical patients.
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For purposes of their analysis, McManis categorized medical and surgical DRGs
as primary, secondary or tertiary care (as opposed to a simple specialty categorization),
and assessed where Memorial Hospital’s PSA residents received those three levels of
care. Using 2009 Missouri Hospital Association HIDI data, McManis found that :

e 36.2% of the care provided in Missouri to residents of Memorial Hospital’s PSA
was categorized as “primary”, 48.3% as “secondary” and 15.6% as “tertiary”
o when adjusted to remove obstetrics, neonates, physical rehabilitation, substance

abuse and psychiatry patients from the analysis, Memorial’s PSA saw 2,931

primary care patients and 4,337 secondary care patients seek care in Missouri.

The proposed site of Memorial Hospital-East will be much more accessible to
many of the Illinois patients obtaining care in Missouri, and as a result, it is believed that

out-migration will be reduced.

For planning purposes, Memorial is taking a very conservative approach in
projecting Memorial Hospital-East’s impact on out-migration, limiting its projections to
its PSA, only; and holding population (and more importantly, age distribution) constant.
The result is that if Memorial-East would “capture” only 25% of the pnmary care
admissions and 15% of the secondary care admissions (no tertiary care admissions) now
out-migrating to Missouri, the result would be an additional 1,383 medical/surgical
patients staying in Illinois. That number of incremental patients—patients that are now
being admitted to Missouri hospitals-- would, using Memorial’s 2009 average length of

stay, require 20 additional medical/surgical beds.
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In addition, and as is the practice at many hospitals, non-traditional inpatients
occupy inpatient beds for observation purposes or as “extended outpatients”, with those
patients typically occupying the beds during the busiest time of the day, from 10AM to

4PM. Memorial estimates that on most weekdays, 6-9 beds are used for this purpose.

As a result of the need to assure beds are available for patients during the higher
census periods—though not necessarily on the highest of projected census days—a total
of 261 medical/surgical/pediatrics beds are proposed to be provided jointly on the two
campuses: 200 beds to address the needs of “traditional” Memorial patients, adjusted for
population growth and aging, 20 beds to address the need resulting from reduced out-
migration of area residents to Missouri hospitals, and 6 beds to account for observation
and “extended outpatients” occupying an inpatient bed. Seventy-two of the beds will be
located at Memorial-East, and 189 will be located at Memorial Hospital-Belleville—a
reduction of 78 medical/surgical/pediatrics beds at Memorial-Belleville. Assuming no
un-anticipated utilization changés at Memorial-Belleville prior to the opening of
Memorial-East, the combined medical/surgical/pediatrics bed complement would be
reduced by six beds (Memorial-Belleville is currently approved to operate 267

medical/surgical/pediatrics beds).

For planning purposes, and consistent with JHFSRB targets, the proposed beds at
Memorial-East are projected to operate at 85% occupancy (22,338 patient days) during

the second year following the hospital’s opening, and at 65% (17,082 patient days)
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occupancy during the initial twelve months of the hospital’s operation, as the result of an

anticipated “ramp-up” period.

2.ICU Beds

ICU utilization at Memorial Hospital equaled 9.9% of medical/surgical/pediatrics
utilization in 2009, and that ratio is projected to remain constant, when applied
cumulatively to Memorial Hospital-Belleville and Memorial Hospital-East. The rate at
Memorial-East alone, however, will be considerably lower because of an absence of an
open heart surgery program and because more complicated medical and surgical cases,
when the option is available, will be admitted to Memorial Hospital. As a result, and for
planning purposes, the 9.9% rate is being discounted by 50%, to 4.95% at Memorial-East.
Accordingly, and based on the projected m/s/p patient days identified in the section
above, 846 and 1,106 ICU patient days are projected during the first two years of

operation, respectively, and six ICU beds are being provided.

3. Obstetrical Beds

Obstetrical bed utilization was projected on a combined hospital basis, using a
methodology similar to that used to project medical/surgical bed utilization, and as
discussed above. All varables, including market share, ZIP Code-specific utilization
rates, and average length of stay were held constant, with the only variable being allowed
to change being ZIP Code-specific population within the 15-44 year old female cobort.
The methodology indicates that Memorial will provide 4,438 obstetrics patient days by

the second year of Memorial-East’s operation.
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The applicants believe that by the second year of operation, and due primarily to
the “newness™ factor, two-thirds of Memorial’s obstetrics patient days will be provided at
Memorial Hospital-East, or 2,973 patient days. Utilization during the first year of
Memorial-East’s operation is anticipated to approximate 75% that of the second year, or

approximately 2,230 patient days.

The calculations described above are provided at the end of this ATTACHMENT.
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| [l l
Medical/Surgical/Pediatrice Bed Need Projection
Non-OB {ages 0-64) 2009 Totai* 2008 MH MH
ZIp 2009 Total® Use rate Pt Days | Use rate 2014 Projected
Code Community Pop Pt Days )days/1,000 at MH |(days/1,0600) Pop Pt. Days
82228 {Belleville 23,892 6,933 290.181 2,910 121.798 24,233 2,952
€62223 |Belleville 13,161 4,330 320.002 1,914 145.430 13,125 1,909
62269 |Q'Falton 22,998 4912 213.6802 2,118 92.146 23,512 2,167
62221 |Belleville 22,598 4,840 214.178 1,845 B1.644 24,022 1,961
62208 |Fairview Heights 14,020 3074 219.258 1,449 103.352 14,747 1,524
62206 |E. 5t Lou./Cahokia 16,417 5,655 344.460 1,814 116,586 17,045 1,087
62220 |Belleville 17,698 4,847 273.873 1,185 66.957 18,239 1,221
62234 [Collinsville 28,020 5,250 187.366 1,017 36.296 28,286 1,027
62232 [Caseyville 7,143 1,501 210.136 788 110.318 7,475 825
62203 |E. 8t Louis 9,303 2522 271.095 1,004 107.922 9,260 999
62204 |E. St. Louls 9,703 3,905 402.556 1,215 125,219 9,738 1,219
62205 [E. 8t Louis 8,032 3,497 435.383 805 100.224 7,940 797
62207 [E. St. Louis 9,245 2,632 284.694 947 102.434 2,680 992
82254 |Lebanon 4,431 877 197.924 382 86.211 4,331 373
62258 |Mascoutah 5,304 1,627 301.631 613 113.645 5218 593
62260 |Millstead 5,646 821 145.413 362 64.116 5773 370
62243 |Freeburg 6,407 857 133.760 322 50.258 6,874 345
62201 [E. St Louis 8,572 2,139 248.533 425 48.580 8,267 459
62264 [New Athens 4,266 508 119.316 235 55.087 4,596 253
62298 [Waterloo 13,147 952 72.412 203 15.441 14,001 216
62040 |[Granite City 38,4786 11,458 287.744 322 8.369 38,184 320
288,567 73,137 | 253.44894 21976 78.156 295,556 22 508
2014
Non-OB (ages B5+) 2009 Total" 2009 MH MH
ZIP 2002 Total* Use rate Pt Days | Use rate 2014 Projected
Code Community Pap Pt Days [days/1,000 at MH _ [{days/1,000) Pop Pt. Days
62226 {Belleville 4,042 6933 1715.240 2,910 719.841 4,351 3,132
62223  |Belleville 3,062 4,330 1414.108 1,914 625.082 3,218 2,012
€62269 |O'Fallon 2,850 4912| 1665.085 2,119 718.305 3,788 2,721
62221 |Believille 2 564 4,840] 1BB7.676 1,845 719.579 3,228 2,323
62208 |Fairview Heights 2,690 3,074 1142.751 1,449 538.662 3,035 1,635
62208 |E. St Lou./Cahokia 1,887 5,655| 2896.820 1914 1014.308 2,058 2,009
62220 |Bellgville 2674 4,847 18142.640 1,185 443.156 3,014 1,336
62234 |Coliinsville 4,745 5,260 110.643 1,017 214.331 5294 1,135
62232 |[Caseyville 1,241 1,504 1211.826 788 534.972 1,418 900
62203 |E. St. Louis 1,258 2,522 2004.769 1,004 798.092 1,375 1,097
62204 |E. St Louis 993 3,906] 3833.535 1,215 1223.565 1,103 1,350
62205 |E. 8t. Louis 1,561 3,478 2228.700 805 515.695 1,489 768
62207 [E. St Louis 1,211 2,632] 2173.410 947 781.998 1,223 856
62264 [Lebanon 670 877| 1308.955 382 570.149 721 411
62258 [Mascoutah 863 1,627 1885.284 613 710.313 905 643
62260 |Milistead 1,112 821 738.300 382 325.540 1,254 408
62243 iFreeburg 828 857| 1035.024 322 388.889 1,011 393
62201 |E. St. Louis 957 2,193 2291.536 495 517.241 1,005 520
52264 |New Athens 730 509] 697.260 235 321.918 868 279
62208 [Woaterloo 2197 952] 433.318 203 §2.399 2,763 255
62040 |Granite City 5,869 11,4568| 1667.783 322 46,877 7,380 348
45,104 73.178| 1622.384 22,046 488.781 50,513 24,720
*|in llinocis hospitals
patient days, all ages: 47,228
adj for patients from other ZIPS @ 14% 54,916
adj for ICU (|@|92.2% = projected MIS!IT pt days 50,633
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[
OB/Gyn Bed Need Projection
2014
OB only 2000 2009 Total* 2009 MH 2014 MH

Zip F'male Pop| Total* Use rate Pt Days | Userate | |F'male Pop| Projected

Code Community 1544 Pt Days |days/1,000 at MH |{days/1,000) 15-44 Pt. Days
62201 |East St. Louis 2,070 388 187.44 g7 46.86 2,298 108
62203 |East St. Louis 2,240 337 150.45 147 65.63 2,268 148
62204 |East St. Louis 2,384 465 184.24 154 §4.33 2,455 158
62205 |East St Louvis 1,883 349 185.34 130 69.04 1,803 131
62208 |E. St. LoulsfCahokia 4,078 671 164.54 289 70.87 4,257 302
62207 |East St. Louis 2,231 421 188.70 161 72.16 2,402 173
62208 |Fairview Heights 3,212 428 133.25 220 68.49 3,366 231
62220 |Belleville 4,240 613 144.58 202 88.87 4,328 288
62221 |Belleville 5637 812 146.65 334 60.32 5,653 341
62223 |Belleville 2,954 408 137.44 254 85.99 2,988 257
62226 |Belleville 5622 827 147.10 477 84.85 5,646 479
62232 |Caseyville 1,681 215 127.90 50 20.74 1,750 52
62234 |Collinsville 6619 1032 155.91 157 23.72 6,644 158
62243 |Freeberg 1,502 104 69.24 iyl 53.93 1,624 [i}:]
62254 |Lebanon 1,078 i15 106.68 47 43.80 1,050 46
62257 [Marissa 743 104 139.97 45 60.57 888 54
62258 |Mascoutah 1,281 257 200.62 a9 69.48 1,446 100
62260 |Milistadt 1,254 100 79.74 54 43.06 1,308 56
62264 |New Athens 988 101 102.12 57 57.63 1,073 62
62269 |O'Fallon 5,301 766 144.50 320 60.37 5,430 328
62278 |Red Bud 1,311 121 92.30 73 55.68 1,351 75
62285 |Smithton 663 115 173.45 79 119.16 719 86
62288 [Waterloo 3,067 108 34.67 60 19.63 3,290 65
62040 |Granite City 9,136 1244 136.16 40 4,38 9,064 40
71,076 3,707 73,200 3,835
*lin illinois hospitals adj for cther ZIPS @ 13.6% 4,438
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SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The proposed project is limited to thie establishment of a satellite hospital, and as
a result, 1t will improve accessibility to hospital services for residents of Shiloh, O’Fallon,
Fairview Heights and the communities to the north and northeast of Belleville, through a

broader distribution of beds within the planning area.

While, with the opening of Memorial Hospital-East the bed complement of
Memorial Hospital-Belleville will be reduced significantly, accessibility to beds will not
be compromised, as a result of the number of excess beds currently available in Planning

Area F-01.

Because of the nature of the project—the establishment of a satellite hospital—the
services proposed to be provided are those services found in virtually every hospital
located in a metropolitan area, and as a result, the proposed project does not involve the
establishment of any services not located in the planning area. In addition, and as is also
the case in all metropolitan areas of the state, the area is not disadvantaged by limited

admissions practices.
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UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The 30-minute driving area surrounding the proposed Memorial Hospital-East site
extends generally to Leclaire on the north, approximately a mile southwest of Highland to
the northeast, between New Baden and Bartelso to the east, to Johannisburg on the
southeast, two miles past Smithson on the south, to Rodemich on the southwest and the
Mississippi River on the west. The ZIP Codes included in that area, and the populations

of each of those ZIP Code areas are provided in the table below.
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30-Minute Drive Time Population

ZIP 2009
Code Population
62034 16,302
62040 45,345
62201 9,529
62202 10,561
62204 10,696
62205 9,593
62206 18,304
62207 10,456
62208 16,710
62216 1,538
62220 20,372
62221 25162
62223 16,233
62226 27,934
62232 8,384
62234 32,765
62239 3,842
62243 7,235
62254 5,101
62258 6,257
62260 6,758
62265 6,022
62269 25,946
62275 3,956
62285 3,288
62289 77
62293 657
62294 10,926
359,989
Source: Geolytics, Inc.

Within the geographic area described above, there are four hospital providers of
the IDPH-designated categories of service included in the proposed project. Those
hospitals and the beds/cardiac cath labs provided by each are identified in the table

below.
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Med/Sug Obstetrics ICU Cath

Beds Beds Beds Labs
Memorial Hospital Belleville 253 29 20 4
St. Elizabeth's Hospital Belleville 202 - 30 24 3
Touchette Regional Hosp. E. St. Louis 66 33 8 0
Gateway Comm. Hosp. Granite City 167 27 12 1
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MAL-DISTRIBUTION

The proposed project will not cause or result in a mal-distribution of services.

As discussed 1n other attachments to this application, the planning focus of this
project is the patient population that has traditionally utilized Memorial Hospital, and no
market shift away from other Illinois hospitals has been incorporated into the bed need
projections. Rather, a “de-centralizing” of services will occur, with a portion of
Memorial Hospital-Belleville’s bed complement being re-located to the Memorial-East
campus. By definition, a relocation of services away from the highest concentration of
services in the planning area (Belleville) cannot cause or result in a mal-distribution of

SErvices.

The project will involve four IDPH-designated categories of service:

1. The number of medical/surgical and pediatrics beds provided at Memorial
Hospital and Memorial Hospital-East combined will be reduced by approximately
6 beds from the number currently provided at Memorial Hospital, alone.

2. Approximately 8 of the 29 existing obstetrics beds will remain at Memorial-

Belleville, and sixteen will be “re-located” to Memorial-East. Approximately five
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beds will be “discontinued”. Eight of the sixteen beds at Memorial Hospital-East
will be LDRPs.

3. A minimally-sized ICU, consisting of six beds will be located at Memorial
Hospital-East, primarily to support the hospital’s Emergency Department, which
will seek IDPH designation as a “comprehensive” Emergency Department.
Memorial Hospital-Belleville, which has historically expenenced an ICU
occupancy rate of near 80% (compared to the IDPH target of 60%) will reduce its
ICU bed complement from 20 to 19, with the total number of beds, being
justifiable based on projected ICU utilization.

4, A single cardiac catheterization procedure room will be provided at Memorial-

East, consistent with contemporary hospital practices in a metropolitan area.

The table below compares the ratio of beds:population in Planning area F-1,

compared to that of Illinois, as a whole.

Beds per 1,000

Planning Area F-01 Illinois
med/surg/peds 222 1.80
obstetrics* 1.67 1.03
ICU 0.19 0.25

#2015 population data used, women, ages 15-44, only

The data in the table above confirms that the proposed project will not result in a
“maldistribution” of beds pursuant to the “maldistribution” definition contained in
Section 1110.1530.c. As noted from the data above, the ratio of
medical/surgical/pediatrics beds as well as obstetrics beds in Planning Area F-01 exceeds

those of Illinois as a whole. As discussed in ATTACHMENT 20b3, the number of
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medical/surgical/pediatrics beds at the two hospitals combined will be fewer than the
number of approved beds currently at Memorial Hospital-Belleville, and as a result the

Planning Area’s Bed:population ratio will actually diminish.

The project involves no net increase in obstetrics beds. Rather, sixteen obstetrics
beds will be re-located from Memorial Hospital to Memorial-East, and approximately 5
will be “discontinued”. The Planning Area’s obstetrics bed:population ratio already
surpasses the definition of maldistribution, and therefore, the project cannot result in a

maldistnbution of obstetrics beds.

Last, the ICU bed: population ratio in Planning Area F-01 is 24% below that of
the State as a whole, and with the proposed project, the Planning Area’s ratio will

continue to be below that of the State.

In conclusion, because the proposed project will result in a net decrease in the
number of acute care beds provided in the Planning Area, the project cannot result in a
“maldistribution” of beds; but rather, the distribution of beds and accessibility will be

improved by the dispersion of beds within the Planning Area.
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IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

By design, the proposed establishment of Memorial Hospital-East will have a
significant impact upon the utilization of its sister hospital, Memorial Hospital-Belleville,
but will not have an impact on other Illinois providers. The impact on Memorial
Hospital-Belleville is a direct result of the applicants’ goal of transforming Memorial
Hospital-Belleville into an all-private room hospital, and in doing so, the hospital’s bed
complement will be significantly reduced with the establishment of Memorial Hospital-
East. More significant, many of the patients who have traditionally come to Memorial

Hospital-Belleville for their care will “re-locate” to Memorial-East.

The medical/surgical utilization projections and resultant bed need calculations
assume no shift in market share among the Illinois hospitals—with the exception of the
planned Memorial Hospital-Belleville to Memorial-East shift—and the methodology
itself incorporates no changes to Memorial’s market share penetrations into any of the 21
ZIP Code areas that have traditionally accounted for approximately 86% of Memonal

Hospital’s medical, surgical and pediatrics patient days, or any other ZIP Code areas.

As a result, it is not anticipated that the project will lower the utilization of any

other area hospital below the IDPH-specified occupancy standards, nor will it further
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lower the utilization of any area hospital not currently operating at the [DPH-specified

occupancy standards.

The proposed project, however, is anticipated to reduce the out-migration of
Iilinois residents to Missouri hospitals, with that impact projected to be in the 1,300-
1,400 annual admission range. Please refer to ATTACHMENT 15 for a discussion of

anticipated reductions in out-migration.
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STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Clinical and professional staffing needs were considered by the applicants during
the planning of this project, and the applicants are confident that all licensure and
accreditation-related staffing requirements will be met or surpassed, and that no unusual

difficulties will be experienced in the recruitment of qualified staff.

Memorial Hospital enjoys a reputation of being an exceptional place to work, has
received Magnet designation by the American Nurses Credentialing Center, and is the

only Illinois hospital south of Springfield to receive this recognition.

As discussed in other parts of this application, many patients traditionally served
by Memorial Hospital will be using Memorial Hospital-East, as a significant portion of
Memorial Hospital’s capacity is re-located to Memorial-East. It is fully anticipated that a
significant portion of the staff required to operate Memorial-East, particularly in the
clinical areas, will be transferred from Memorial Hospital. In addition to the “transfer” of
staff from Memorial to Memorial-East, normal recruitment avenues, such as newspaper
advertisements and professional publications will be used to recruit staff. Memorial
currently has in excess of 2,200 full- and part-time employees, and is among the largest

employers in Belleville.
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To the extent possible, administrative and support functions will be combined for
the two hospitals, with Memonal-East operating as a “satellite” hospital, and with the
goal being to minimize duplicative staffing. In addition, and particularly in selected
clinical areas such as imaging, ED, and surgery, it is anticipated that designated
employees will “float” between the two hospitals on a shift-by-shift or week-by-week
basis, depending on a variety of factors including patient census, in-service training

requirements, and vacation scheduling.

Staff recruitment will begin in eamest 2-3 months prior to the opening of
Memorial-East, with much of the orentation process being provided at Memoral
Hospital. Staff that is “re-located” from Memorial-Belleville, will retain all seniority and

accrued benefits.
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PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

The proposed project is consistent with the performance requirement for ICU
beds, that being a minimum of four beds for hospitals located in a Metropolitan Statistical
Area (MSA). The project is proposing 72 medical/surgical and 16 obstetrics beds,
compared to the performance requirements of 100 and 20 beds, respectively for hospitals

located in a MSA.

Consideration, and as discussed as an alternative in ATTACHMENT 13, was
given to constructing a larger hospital in order to be in compliance with Review Criterion
1110.530.f, which addresses the 100 and 20 bed minimums, but the alternative was

dismissed. (Note: This cnterion relates to new hospital, modernization and expansion

projects.) This alternative, and compliance with the associated two performance

requirements was rejected for a variety of reasons:

First, with the primary purpose of the project being to locate all of Memorial’s
beds in private patient rooms, and with 164 medical/surgical and 15 obstetrics rooms
being available for continued use on the Belleville campus, it made little sense to
construct 100 medical/surgical and 20 obstetrics rooms at Memorial-East while leaving
rooms at Memorial-Belleville unused, and for the sole purpose of complying with one of

the many review criteria that proposed project would be reviewed against.
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Second, the capital cost associated with building the additional patient rooms and
associated support space in order to conform with the performance requirement review
criterion for medical/surgical and obstetrics beds would unnecessarily add $21 million to

the project cost, without adding any value to the project.

Third, the 20-bed and 100-bed minimums developed by the IHFSRB’s
predecessor agency are no longer consistent with the delivery of hospital services. As
reported in the 2008 IDPH Profiles, there are currently 28 hospitals located in MSAs, and
providing fewer than 20 obstetrics beds. Similarly, the 100-bed minimum for
Medical/Surgical beds has evolved from an earlier review criterion (1110.320.a), which
identified 100 as the minimum number of Medical/Surgical beds for newly established
hospitals located in a MSA.  That criterion has since been replaced by the criterion
identifying 100 as the Medical/Surgical bed minimum for newly established as well as

existing hospitals located in a MSA.  Similar to the lack of consistency with the

obstetrics criterion, excluding Long Term Acute Care Hospitals (LTACHs) and Cnitical
Access Hospitals (CAHs), there are 22 general hospitals having fewer than 100
medical/surgical beds, that are located in Illinois MSAs, including three of the eight

hospitals located in this project’s Health Planning Area, F-01.

The basis for the 100-bed minimum dates back to the infancy of Illinois’ CON
program, and is still referenced in the ITHFSRB’s rules:

“Planning areas for acute care categories of service of medical-surgical/pediatrics,
obstetrics and intemsive care must contain a minimum population of 40,000. This
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population base would be sufficient to support a 100 bed hospital based upon a facility
target occupancy of 80% and an inpatient day use rate of 725 days per 1,000 population.”
(Section 1110.510.¢.7)

The most basic understanding of the delivery of hospital services since the
inception of Iilinois> CON program in the late 1970s-early 1980s acknowledges dramatic
changes in utilization since the initial rules were developed. 2009 utilization data
contained in the recently published “Illinois Hospitals Data Summary” developed by
IDPH staff identified 5,783,730 medical-surgical/pediatrics, obstetrics and intensive care
patient days of care provided through Hlinois hospitals (6,149,847 patient days if
“observation” days are included). A simple extrapolation from 2005 and 2010 population
projections developed by the Illinois Department of Commerce and economic
Opportunity (IDCEO) identifies a state-wide population of 13,198,279, The resultant
experienced use rate is 438.22 days per 1,000 (46590 if “observation” days are
included), compared to the 725 days per 1,000 that provided the basis for the 100-bed
minimum. Stated another way, the population that required 100 beds when the criterion
was written, can now be served by 60-65 beds because of the lower utilization rate; and
as a result, the cost associated with the construction of the additional beds simply to

comply with the single review criterion cannot be justified.

In conclusion, while the co-applicants acknowledge that the proposed project is
not consistent with Review Criterion 1110.530.f for the medical/surgical and obstetrics
beds components of the project, the leaving of patient rooms at Memorial-Belleville
vacant, the cost associated with compliance, and the out-dated nature of the review

criterion render compliance, as related to this project, to be imprudent.
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MEMORIAL
GROUP ¢

ASSURANCES

Iilinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board
Springfield, IL

To Whom It May Concern:

Please be advised that it is the anticipation of the applicants that each [DPH-designated
category of service to be provided at Memorial Hospital-East will operate at or above the
THFSRB’s target occupancy/utilization rate by the second year of operation, following
the opening of Memorial Hospital-East.

Sincerely

Pl ) Lt

Mark J. Turner
President and CEO

/e ATTACHMENT 20g
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PEER REVIEW

As noted elsewhere in this application, Memorial Hospital-East will operate under
the same policies and procedures used at Memonal Hospital in Belleville. A copy of the

| policy currently in use at the Belleville hospital is attached.
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MEMORIAL ~ gieseees
Revised:
HOSPITAL Reviewed:

Dedication. Compassion, Innovation,

Type: Cardiac Catheterization Lab
Policy No.: CCL 160
Effective Date: 6/8/10

Administrator: Ruth Holmes

Purpose: Ensure that the hospital, through the activities of the Medical Staff Quality

The Goals of Peer Review are:

Policy:

CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION LAB

CARDIOVASCULAR PEER REVIEW

Improvement Commiittee, assesses the performance of individuals and
departments granted clinical privileges and uses the results of such assessments

to improve the guality of care.

Improve the quality of care provided by practitioners and staff,

Monitor the performance of practitioners and staff who have privileges,

Identify opportunities for performance improvement,

Monitor significant trends by analyzing aggregate data, and

Assure that the process for peer review is clearly defined, fair, defensible, timely and

useful.

All peer review information is priviteged and confidential in accordance with medical
staff and hospital bylaws, state and federal laws, and regulations pertaining to
confidentiality and non-discoverability.

The involved practitioner, department or staff will receive specific feedback on a
routine basis.

The Cardiovascular Department will use the peer review results as appropriate, inits
performance improvement activities.

The hospital will keep peer review and other quality information in a secure, locked
file or secure access database. Provider-specific peer review information consists of

. information related to:

« Performance data for all dimensions of performance measured

= Sentinel events, significant incidents or near misses.

» Risk assessment, comments regarding performance, plan of action to improve
process, or corrective action.
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CCL 160

Peer review information is available only to authorized individuals who have a
legitimate need to know this information based upon their responsibilities as
practitioner's, hospital employee or EMS who work with ACS/ chest pain patients.
However, they shall have access to the information only to the extent necessary to
carry out their assigned responsibilities. Only the following individuals shall have
access to Cardiovascular peer review information and only for purposes of quality
improvement:

Cardiovascular Department Managers

STEMI Committee

Chest Pain Committee

Medical Director

Medical staff services and quality management professionals to the extent
access to this information is necessary for collecting data or to improve process
or quality of care.

= |ndividuals with a legitimate purpose for access as determined by the medical
staff, legal counsel, President of the Hospital, and/or Board of Trustees.

No copies of peer review documents will be created and distributed unless
authorized by the Cardiovascular Department and /or hospital policy.

Definitions:

1.

Peer Review —~ "Peer review" is the evaluation of EMS, Memorial Hospital staff or
practitioner's professional performance and includes the identification of opportunities to
improve a process or performance.

Peer review is conducted using multiple sources of information including:

s The review of individual cases,

» The review of aggregate data for compliance with general rules of the CMS, Chest
Pain Society, ACC/NCDR and Action registry or medical staff and clinica! standards,

= The use of rates in comparison with established benchmarks or norms

The evaluation is based on generally recognized standards of care. Through this
process, staff and practitioners receive feedback for personal improvement or
confirmation of personal achievement related to the effectiveness of their professional,
technical, and interpersonal skills in providing patient care.

Peer - A "peer” is an individual practicing in the same profession and who has expertise
in the appropriate subject matter. The level of subject matter expertise required to
provide meaningful evaluation of a staff or practitioner's performance will determine what
“practicing in the same profession” means on a case-by-case basis. For example, for
quality issues related to general medical care, a physician (MD or DO} may review the
care of another physician. For specialty-specific clinical issues, such as evaluating the
technique of a specialized surgical procedure, a peer is an individual who is competent
in that surgical specialty.

Peer Review Body — The “medical staff quality improvement committee” designated to
perform the initial review or its designee will determine the degree of subject matter

expertise required for a provider to be considered a peer for all peer reviews performed
by or on behalf of the hospital. The ACS /chest pain peer review body will be the Chest

2

/1§

ATTACHMENT 25a




CCL 160

Pain or STEMI Committee unless otherwise designated for specific circumstances by the
Medical Staff Executive Committee.

4. Practitioner — A practitioner is used to refer to any physician (MD, DO, dentist or
podiatrist) or allied health professional covered by the Allied Health Professional Manual
with staff privileges.

5. Peer Review Quality Indicators — The Quality Indicators will be categorized as a Rule,
Rate or Review indicator. The Cardiovascular Department and STEMI or Chest Pain
Committee will review and approve all the active quality indicators. A current list of all
active indicators will be maintained in the Quality Improvement Department.

Department and practitioner related clinical quality of care issues that do not readily
meet the current criteria for a quality indicator will be reviewed by the Department
Manager(s) before being referred to the Quality Management.

A. Review Indicators — Review Indicators represent an event of such
magnitude or complexity that medical record review and analysis is required
to determine cause, effect and severity.

B. Rule Indicators — Rule Indicators represent the recognized professional
standards of professional conduct expected of EMS, Memorial Hospital staff
and practitioners.

C. Rate Indicators — Rate Indicators are occurrences that can be effectively
counted and reported as either a percentage or average. Rate indicators do
not require individual chart review rather the data is compared to an
established target or benchmark.

Quality Management:

In accordance with Memorial Hospital's Peer review policy, may submit a special report
to the Medical Staff Executive Committee in circumstances of immediate concern such
as the following:

« Atrend strongly suggestive of a repetitive problem or poor patient outcomes.

» Suspected risk to patient safety.

» Demeanor or conduct that is contrary to the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and
Regulation or below the applicable professiona! standards.

Indicators:
1. Case Referrals
A. Case referrals can be received from any referral source. The Quality
Management Department will review the referral, screen the medical record, and
triage the case according to the issues identified. Only those referrals that have
issues related to the clinical quality of care related to ACS/chest pain will be
addressed through the STEMI Peer Review process.

B. This case assignment will occur within six.(6) weeks of discharge.
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CCL 160

1.

C. Concerns raised through monitoring will be referred to the appropriate
Department Chair for any necessary plan of action to be reported back to the
appropriate committee at the next meeting.

Deficiency of Care Determination

If the Cardiovascular Department determines there was a deficiency of care, they will
prepare a case summary.

A. and schedule a discussion for the earliest appropriate meeting.

B. Input from the involved EMS, Memorial Hospital staff or practitioner(s) will be
sought on the key issues of a case before a final deficiency of care determination
is made. This input can be accomplished prior to Committee discussion. The
committee Chair will review the case, agree with the issues, and concur with the
questions posed to those involved before a case is presented for discussion.

C. Arisk assessment will be completed and a plan of action is to be submitted by
the department(s) involved and reported back to the appropriate committee.

Reporting:

The Cardiovascular Department will submit quarterly reports to the Medical
Staff Quality Improvement Committee outlining the following:

= Quality issues identified by rule or rate indicators, and any recommendations
* Quality concerns involving system issues.

In addition, the Cardiovascular Department may submit a special report to Quality
Management for review in circumstances of immediate concern such as the
following:

= A trend strongly suggestive of a repetitive problem or poor patient outcomes,

= Suspected risk to patient safety, or

» Demeanor or conduct that is contrary to the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and
Regulations or below the applicable professional standards.
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ESTABLISHMENT OR EXPANSION OF
CARDIAC CATHETERIZAION SERVICE

There are currently six cardiac catheterization services in operation in HSA X[

Those services, their location, and their 2009 utilization are provided in the table below.

2009 Cardiac Catheterizations

in HSA XI
Hospital Location Procedures
Alton Memorial Hospital Alton 967
Anderson Hospital . Maryville 554
Gateway Regional Medical Center Granite City 477
Memorial Hospital Belleville 2,015
St. Anthony's Hospital Alton 494
St. Elizabeth's Hospital Belleville 4,090

A map, identifying the location of each of the hospitals in the table above is

provided in the following page.

Because the proposed project involves the establishment of a new hospital,
documentation related to patients transferred for the purposes of receiving a

catheterization is not applicable.
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UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

During 2009 2,015 procedures were performed in Memorial Hospital-Belleville’s
cardiac catheterization lab. As discussed in ATTACHMENT 15, the proposed project is
anticipated to have minimal impact on the utilization of any area hospital, other than
Memorial-Belleville. As a result of the historical utilization of Memorial-Belleville’s
cardiac cathetenization lab, and the expectation that the cardiac catheterization lab at
Memorial Hospital-East will primarily support that hospital’s Emergency Department, it
is not anticipated that the establishment of the proposed lab will cause any existing

program’s utilization to be reduced to fewer than 200 procedures a year.
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SUPPORT SERVICES

Memorial Hospital-East will have each of the support services identified in
Section 1110.1330.e available either “in house™ or “on call” 24 hours a day, 365 days a

year.
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STAFFING

The cardiac catheterization programs at Memonal Hospital-Belleville and
Memorial Hospital-East will have a common cardiac catheterization laboratory team,
developed through the expanding of the team currently in place at Memorial Hospital-
Belleville. That team includes all of the clinical specialties identified in Section
1110.1330.g. The staff will be expanded 2-4 months prior to the opening of Memorial
Hospital-East, and it is anticipated that many of the staff members will “rotate” between
the two facilities. Training for the new employees will be conducted at Memorial

Hospital-Belleville.

Additional required staff will be recruited through the hospital’s normal means:
word of mouth, advertisements in local publications and advertisements in national

specialty publications and journals.
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THiS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of
the later of 20™ day of March, 2011, or the execution of the Agreement by both
parties (the “Effective Date”) between Metro-East Services, Inc., an Illinois
not-for-profit hospital d/b/a Memorial Hospital East and Protestant Memorial
Medical Center, Inc., an Illinois not-for-profit corporation d/b/a Memorial
Hospital and are sometimes individually referred to herein as “facility” and
collectively as “facilities.”

RECITALS:

A.  The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement governing the
transfer of patients between the two facilities located in the State of Illinois.

B.  The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to
specify the rights and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for
ensuring the timely transfer of patients between the facilities.

Now, THEREFORE, to facilitate the continuity of care and the timely
transfer of patients and records between the facilities, the parties hereto agree as
follows:

1. TRANSFER OF PATIENTS. In the event any patient of either facility is
deemed by that facility (“Transferring Facility”) as requiring the services of
the other facility (“Receiving Facility”) and the transfer is deemed medically
appropriate, a member of the nursing staff of the Transferring Facility or the
patient’s attending physician will contact the admitting office or Emergency
Department of the Receiving Facility to arrange for appropriate treatment as
contemplated herein. All transfers between the facilities shall be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the
standards of The Joint Commission (“JCO™), Health Facilities Accreditation
Program (“HFAP”), and any other applicable accrediting bodies, and
reasonable policies and procedures of the facilities. Neither the decision to
transfer a patient nor the decision to not accept a request to transfer a patient
shall be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or unlawful discrimination.
The Receiving Facility’s responsibility for the patient’s care shall begin
when the patient is admitted to the Receiving Facility.
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TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the later of
20" day of March, 2011, or the execution of the Agreement by both parties (the “Effective Date™)
between Metro-East Services, Inc., an Illinois not-for-profit hospital d/b/a Memorial Hospital
East and Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc., an Illinois not-for-profit corporation d/b/a
Memorial Hospital and are sometimes individually referred to herein as “facility” and
collectively as “facilities.”

RECITALS:

A, The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement governing the transfer of
patients between the two facilities located in the State of Illinois.

B. The parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement in order to specify the rights
and duties of each of the parties and to specify the procedure for ensuring the timely transfer of
patients between the facilities.

Now, THEREFORE, to facilitate the continuity of care and the timely transfer of patients
and records between the facilities, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. TRANSFER OF PATIENTS. In the event any patient of either facility is deemed by that
- facility (“Transferring Facility™) as requiring the services of the other facility (“Receiving
Facility™) and the transfer is deemed medically appropriate, a member of the nursing staff
of the Transferring Facility or the patient’s attending physician will contact the admitting
office or Emergency Department of the Receiving Facility to arrange for appropriate
treatment as contemplated herein. All transfers between the facilities shall be made in
accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, the standards of The
Joint Commission (“JCO”), Health Facilities Accreditation Program (“HFAP”), and any
other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable policies and procedures of the
facilities. Neither the decision to transfer a patient nor the decision to not accept a
request to transfer a patient shall be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or unlawful
discrimination. The Receiving Facility’s responsibility for the patient’s care shall begin
when the patient is admitted to the Receiving Facility.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TRANSFERRING FACILITY. The Transferring Facility shali be
responsible for performing or ensuring performance of the following:

a. Provide, within its capabilities, for the medical screening and stabilizing treatment
of the patient prior to transfer.

b. Arrange for appropriate and safe transportation and care of the patient during
transfer, in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations.

C. Designate a person who has authority to represent the Transferring Facility and
coordinate the transfer of the patient from the facility.

d. Notify the Receiving Facility’s designated representative prior to transfer to
receive confirmation as to availability of appropriate facilities, services, and staff
necessary to provide care to the patient.

e. Prior to patient transfer, the transferring physician shall contact and secure a
receiving physician at the Receiving Facility who shall attend to the medical needs
of the patient and who will accept responsibility for the patient’s medical
treatment and hospital care.

f. Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment, and services to
assist the transferring physician with the coordination and transfer of the patient.

g. Provide, within its capabilities, personnel, equipment, and life support measures
determined appropriate for the transfer of the patient by the transferring physician.

h. Forward to the receiving physician and the Receiving Facility a copy of those
portions of the patient’s medical record that are available and relevant to the
transfer and continued care of the patient, including records related to the patient’s
condition, observations of signs or symptoms, preliminary diagnosis, treatment
provided, results of any tests, and, with respect to a patient with an emergency
medical condition that has not been stabilized, a copy of the patient’s informed
consent to the transfer or physician certification that the medical benefits of the
transfer outweigh the risk of transfer. If all necessary and relevant medical
records are not available at the time the patient is transferred, then the records will
be forwarded by the Transferring Facility as soon as possible.

1. Transfer the patient’s personal effects, including, without limitation, money and
valuables, and information related to those items.

J. Provide the Receiving Facility any information that is available concerning the
patient’s coverage or eligibility under a third party coverage plan, Medicare or
‘Medicaid, or a health care assistance program established by a county, public
hospital, or hospital district. '
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Notify the Receiving Facility of the estimated time of arrival of the patient.

Provide for the completion of a certification statement, summarizing the risk and
benefits of the transfer of a patient with an emergency condition that has not been
stabilized, by the transferring physician or other qualified personnel, if the
physician is not physically present at the facility at the time of transfer.

Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated
provider.

Recognize the right of a patient to request to transfer into the care of a physician
and hospital of the patient’s choosing.

Recognize the right of a patient to refuse consent to treatment or transfer.

Complete, execute, and forward an authorization for patient transfer and
physician's certificate of medical necessity form to the Receiving Facility for
every patient who is transferred.

Establish a policy and/or protocols (i) for maintaining the confidentiality of the
patient’s medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law and
(ii) for the inventory and safekeeping of any patient valuables sent with the patient
to the Receiving Facility.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE RECEIVING FaciLiTy. The Receiving Facility shall be
responsible for performing or ensuring performance of the following:

a.

Provide, as promptly as possible, confirmation to the Transferring Facility
regarding the availability of bed(s), appropriate facilities, services, and staff
necessary to treat the patient and confirmation that the Receiving Facility has
agreed to accept transfer of the patient. The Receiving Facility shall respond to
the Transferring Facility within thirty (30} minutes for Level One trauma cases
and within sixty (60) minutes for all other cases after receipt of the request to
transfer a patient with an emergency medical condition or in active labor.

Provide, within its capabilities, appropriate personnel, equipment, and services to
assist the receiving physician with the receipt and treatment of the patient
transferred, maintain a call roster of physicians at the Receiving Facility and
provide, on request, the names of on-call physicians to the Transferring Facility.

Reserve beds, facilities, and services as appropriate for patients being transferred
from the Transferring Facility who have been accepted by the Receiving Facility
and a receiving physician, if deemed necessary by a transferring physician unless
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such are needed by the Receiving Facility for an emergency.

d. Designate a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the transfer and
receipt of patients into the facility.

e. When appropriate and within its capabilities, assist with the transportation of the
patient as determined appropriate by the transferring or receiving physician.

f. Provide the Transferring Facility with a copy of the medical records of the patient
that were generated at the Receiving Facility, if the patient is returned to the
Transferring Facility by the Receiving Facility.

g. Maintain the confidentiality of the patient’s medical records in accordance with
applicable state and federal law.

h. Establish a policy and/or protocols (i) for maintaining the confidentiality of the
patient’s medical records in accordance with applicable state and federal law, (ii)
for the receipt of the patient into the facility, and (iii) for the acknowledgment and
inventory of any patient valuables transported with the patient.

i Provide for the return transfer of patients to the Transferring Facility when
requested by the patient or the Transferring Facility and ordered by the patient’s
attending/transferring physician, if the Transferring Facility has a statutory or
regulatory obligation to provide health care assistance to the patient, and if
transferred back to the Transferring Facility, provide the items and services
specified in Section 2 of this Agreement.

J. Upon request, provide current information concerning its eligibility standards and
payment practices to the Transferring Facility and patient.

k. Acknowledge any contractual obligations and comply with any statutory or
regulatory obligations that might exist between a patient and a designated
provider.

L. Complete, execute, and return the memorandum of transfer form to the
Transferring Facility.

4, BILLING. All charges incurred with respect to any services performed by either facility

for patients received from the other facility pursuant to this Agreement shall be billed and
collected by the facility providing such services directly from the patient, third party
coverage, Medicare or Medicaid, or other sources normally billed by that facility.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the move of a stable patient from one facility to the other
facility is not considered to be a transfer under this Agreement if it is the understanding
and intent of both facilities that the patient is going to the second facility for tests, the
patient will not remain overnight at the second facility, and the patient will return to the
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first facility. In this event, the second facility shall bill the first facility for services
provided by the second facility. In addition, it is understood that professional fees will be
billed by the physicians or other professional providers that may participate in the care
and treatment of the patient at usual and customary charges. Each facility agrees to
provide information in its possession to the other facility and such physicians/providers
sufficient to enable them to bill the patient, responsible party, or appropriate third party

payor.

RETRANSFER; DISCHARGE. At such time as the patient is ready for transfer back to the
Transferring Facility or another health care facility or discharge from the Receiving
Facility, in accordance with the direction from the Transferring Facility and with the
proper notification of the patient’s family or guardian, the patient will be transferred to
the agreed upon location. If the patient is to be transferred back to the Transferring
Facility, the Receiving Facility will be responsible for the care of the patient up untii the
time the patient is re-admitted to the Transferring Facility.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW. Both facilities shall comply with all applicable federal and
state laws, rules and regulations, including, without limitation, those laws and regulations
governing the maintenance of medical records and confidentiality of patient information
as well as with all standards promulgated by any relevant accrediting agency. Both
facilities agree to comply with the applicable provisions of the Administrative
Sirnplification section of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996,
as codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1320 through d-8 (“HIPAA™), and the requirements of any
regulations promulgated thereunder including, without limitation, the federal privacy
regulations as contained in 45 CFR Part 164, and the federal security standards as
contained in 45 CFR Part 142 (collectively, the “Regulations”).  Both facilities shall not
use or further disclose any protected health information, as defined in 45 CFR 164.504, or
individually identifiable health information, as defined in 42 US.C § 1320d
(collectively, the “Protected Health Information™), other than as permitted by this
Agreement and the requirements of HIPAA or the Regulations. Both facilities will
implement appropriate safeguards to prevent the use or disclosure of Protected Health
Information other than as contemplated by this Agreement. Each facility will promptly
report to the other facility any use or disclosures, of which either facility becomes aware,
of Protected Health Information in violation of HIPAA or the Regulations. In the event a
facility contracts with any agents to whom such facility provides Protected Health
Information, such facility shall include provisions in such agreements pursuant to which
the receiving facility and such agents agree to the same restrictions and conditions that
apply to the receiving facility with respect to Protected Health Information. Both
facilities will make their respective internal practices, books, and records relating to the
use and disclosure of Protected Health Information available to the Secretary of Health
and Human Services to the extent required for determining compliance with HIPAA and
the Regulations. No attorney-client, accountant-client, or other legal or equitable
privilege shall be deemed to have been waived by either facility by virtue of this Section.

RESPONSIBILITY; INSURANCE. The facilities shall each be responsible for their own acts
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10.

11

and omissions in the performance of their duties hereunder, and the acts and omissions of
their own employees and agents. In addition, each party shall maintain, throughout the
term of this Agreement, comprehensive general and professional liability insurance and
property damage insurance coverage in amounts reasonably acceptable to the other party,
and shall provide evidence of such coverage upon request.

TeERM. The term of this Agreement (“Term”), shall be Three (3) year(s) commencing on
the Effective Date. At the end of the Term and any Term Extension (as defined herein),
the Term shall be automatically extended for additional terms of one (1) year each (a
“Term Extension”), unless either party provides the other with written notice of
termination as provided herein. As used herein, “Term” shall mean the period of time
beginning on the Effective Date and ending on the last day of either the Term or the last
Term Extension, as applicable.

TERMINATION, Either party may terminate this Agreement-without cause upon 30 days’
written notice to the other party. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon breach
by the other party of any material provision of this Agreement, provided such breach
continues for five days after receipt by the breaching party of written notice of such
breach from the non-breaching party. This Agreement may be terminated immediately
upon the occurrence of any of the following events: (i) either facility closes or
discontinues operation to such an extent that patient care cannot be carried out
adequately.; (i) either facility loses its license, is convicted of a criminal offense related
to health care, or is listed by a federal agency as being debarred, excluded or otherwise
ineligible for federal program participation.

ARBITRATION. Any dispute or controversy arising under, out of or in connection with, or
in relation to this Agreement, or any amendment hereof, or the breach hereof shall be
determined and settled by final and binding arbitration in the county in which the
Facilities are Jocated in accordance with the Commercial Rules of Arbitration (“Rules”)
of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services (“JAMS”) before one arbitrator
applying the laws of the State. The parties shall attempt to mutually select the arbitrator.
In the event they are unable to mutually agree, the arbitrator shall be selected by the
procedures prescribed by the JAMS Rules. Any award rendered by the arbitrator shall be
final and binding upon each of the parties, and judgment thereof may be entered in any
court having jurisdiction thereof. The costs shall be borne equally by both parties. The
provisions set forth herein shall survive expiration or other termination of this
Agreement, regardless of the cause of such termination.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION; GOVERNING LAw, COUNTERPARTS; NOTICES,
WAIVER; BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements, oral
or written, and all other communications between the parties relating to such subject
matter. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except by mutual written
agreement. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State
and shall survive the expiration or other termination of this Agreement. This Agreement
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12.

13.

14.

may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which together shall constitute only
one Agreement. All notices hereunder shall be in writing, delivered personally, by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight courier, and shall be
deemed to have been duly given when delivered personally or when deposited in the
United States mail, postage prepaid, or deposited with the overnight courier, addressed at
the place identified on the signature page below. A waiver by either party of a breach or
failure to perform hereunder shall not constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or
failure. Facilities shall not assign or transfer, in whole or in part, this Agreement or any
of the facilities rights, duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of Hospital, and any assignment or transfer by any facility without such
consent shall be null and void. This Agreement is assignable by Hospital without consent
or notice.

REFERRALS. The parties acknowledge that none of the benefits granted to each other
hereunder are conditioned on any requirement that any party make referrals to, be in a
position to make or influence referrals to, or otherwise generate business for the other
party or its affiliates.

Compliance. The parties have received, read, understood, and shall abide by Memorial’s
Standards of Conduct. The parties to this Agreement shall comply with Memorial’s
Regutatory Compliance Program and its policies and procedures related to the Deficit
Reduction Act of 2005, Anti-Kickback Statute, False Claims Act and the Stark Law.

EXCLUSION LISTS SCREENING. The facilities shall screen all of its current and
prospective owners, legal entities, officers, directors, employees, contractors, and agents
(“Screened Persons™) against (a) the United States Department of Health and Human
Services/Office of Inspector General List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (available
through the Internet at http://www.oighhs.gov), and (b) the General Services
Administration’s List of Parties Excluded from Federal Programs (available through the
Internet at http://www.epls.gov) (collectively, the “Exclusion Lists”) to ensure that none
of the Screened Persons are currently excluded, debarred, suspended, or otherwise
ineligible to participate in Federal healthcare programs or in Federal procurement or non-
procurement programs, or have been convicted of a criminal offense that falls within the
ambit of 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7(a), but have not yet been excluded, debarred, suspended, or
otherwise declared ineligible (each, an “Ineligible Person”). If, at any time during the
term of this Agreement any Screened Person becomes an Ineligible Person or proposed to
be an Ineligible Person, facilities shall immediately notify Hospital of the same. Screened
Persons shall not include any employee, contractor or agent who is not providing services
under this Agreement.
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Metro-East Services, Inc.
d/b/a Memorial Hospital East

By: MZWA

Mark ¥ Turner, President

Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc.
d/b/a Memorial Hospital

By: Wﬂwaﬂ

Mark J. ﬁrner, President
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CLINICAL SERVICE AREAS OTHER
THAN CATEGORIES OF SERVICE

Memorial Hospital-East will provide a number of clinical services that have not
been designated as “categories of service” by the IDPH, and those services are identified

in the table below.

Surgery

Class C 4

Class B 0]
Recovery

Phase | 4

Phase || 12
LDRP 8
C-Section 2
Level | Nursery nia
Observation/Holding 6
Emergency Dept. 8
imaging

General R&F 3

Ultrasound 1

CT 1

| MRI 1

Nuclear Medicine 1
Cardiac Cath/Specials 2
Lab n/a
Morgue n/a
Gl lab 2
Non-Invasive Cardiol. n/a
Resp. Ther./Pul. Fx. n/a
PT/OT nfa
Pharmacy nfa
Central Sterile Supply nfa
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Utilization projections were developed in most instances using historical
procedure;patient day ratios experienced by Memorial Hospital in 2009. In some
instances, outpatient utilization projections for Memorial-East are less than the utilization
rates of Memorial Hospital-Belleville. Memorial Hospital-Belleville and Memorial-East
are anticipated to operate a common outpatient scheduling function, and rather than
unnecessarily duplicate existing capacity at Memorial-Belleville, a disproportional share
of the selective outpatient diagnostic and treatment services, such as the imaging
modalities and surgery, will be scheduled at Memorial Hospital-Belleville. The
outpatient procedure rates at Memorial Hospital were discounted by 25-33% for each of
the following services, in projecting the utilization of the service at Memorial Hospital-

East; surgery, general imaging, ultrasound, CT, MRI, and nuclear medicine.

The remainder of the ATTACHMENT addresses Memorial Hospital-East’s
clinical services that are not IDPH-designated “categories of service”. As appropriate
and available, five years of historical utilization data is used in the development of the 5-

year projections, to the second year of Memorial-East’s operations.

Emergency Department

Memorial Hospital has experienced significant increases in its Emergency
Department utilization, increasing from 47,255 visits in 2005 to 59,333 visits in 2009, an
increase of 25.6%, with the annual increases ranging from a low of 4.5% to a high of

8.6%. In order to be conservative, utilization is projected to increase at a rate below the

. lowest recently-experienced rate, 4.5% a year. Emergency Department utilization 1is
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projected to increase at an annual rate of 4.0% for the next five years. As a result, 2013
utilization is projected to be 72,187 visits in the second year following the opening of
Memorial-East. Memorial Hospital-Bellville’s Emergency Department will reach its
function capacity by 2012/2013, necessitating expansion, if the proposed capacity at

Memorial-East is not available.

Based on population distribution within the planning area and the planned clinical
capabilities of Memorial-Belleville and Memorial-East, it is anticipated that 20% of the
Emergency Department volume will be provided at Memorial-East, with the balance
remaining at Memorial Hospital-Belleville. Allowing for a “ramp-up” period during the
hospital’s initial year of operation, 10,400 visits are anticipated during the first year, with

14,437 being projected for the second year of operation.

Eight treatment stations will be provided.

Surgery/Recovery

Surgical hours (including room turn-over) provided at Memorial Hospital
increased by 7.7% between 2005 and 2009, an average of 1.9% a year. Two
methodologies were used to identify, on a non-specialty-specific basis, the number of

operating rooms required for Memorial Hospital and Memorial Hospital-East.

The first methodology assumed that surgical hours would continue to increase,

but at a rate of only 1% per year, resulting in a projection of 18,580 hours during the

ATTACHMENT 37




second year of Memorial Hospital-East’s operation, and a need for 13 operating rooms,
based on the IDPH standard of 1,500 hours per OR. The second methodology used
Memorial Hospital’s 2009 inpatient cases per m/s/p day, ratio of outpatient cases per
inpatient case, and average hours of OR time used per case, to project 16,459 hours

during the same year, and a need for 11 ORs at the two hospitals.

The results of both methodologies, however, need to be adjusted to provide for
necessary “specialty” ORs, those being dedicated operating rooms to support Memorial
Hospital’s open heart surgery program (open heart surgery will not be provided at
Memonal-East). With the exception of the open heart rooms, all of Memorial Hospital’s
operating rooms have historically been designated as “general” rooms, though specialty

designations, including a cystoscopy room are used for internal purposes.

Memorial Hospital currently operates two open heart surgery and seventeen
“general” rooms, a total of nineteen operating rooms. In 2009, 7.8% of Memorial
Hospital’s OR hours were provided in the open heart rooms. All of the operating rooms at
Memorial-East will be designated as “general”; and using the methodologies identified
above, the projected m/s/p patient days during the second year of operation would result
in a projection of 7,260 hours of OR time at Memorial-East and a need for five operating
rooms. Because of the ability to direct outpatients to Memorial Hospital, and as
discussed above, the projected hours of OR time have been discounted by 33%, to 4,862
hours, resulting in a need to provide only four operating rooms at Memorial-East.

Surgical utilization during the hospital’s initial year will ramp-up in a manner similar to
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that of medical/surgical utilization, and as a result, 3,718 hours of operating room time

are projected.

The surgery/recovery area will consist of 4 Class C operating rooms, 4 Level I

recovery stations, 12 Level Il recovery stations and required support space.

Imaging Department

Imaging department utilization has been projected using historical utilization
ratios from Memorial Hospital, with outpatient procedures discounted by 33%, as
discussed above. The department will consist of three radiographic/fluoroscopic rooms,

and one room each for CT, MRI, ultrasound, and nuclear medicine.

Projected utilization for each of the imaging modalities is presented in the table

on the following page.
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Year 1 m/s/p & ICU days:
Year 2 m/s/p & 1CU days:

General R & F
inpt proc per mis/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures

Uitrasound
inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.”

Total procedures

CT
inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.*

Total procedures

MRI
inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures:
outpt procudures as % of inpt.”

Total procedures

Nuciear Medicine
inpt proc per m/s/p & ICU day:
inpatient procedures;
outpt procudures as % of inpt.”

Total procedures

*discounted by 33%

17,928
23,444

0.47

151.42%

0.289

55.88%

0.18

157.18%

0.026

228.87%

0.072

65.86%

Year 1 Year 2

8,426 11,019
12,759 16,684
21,185 27,703
5,181 6,775
2.895 3,786
8,076 10,561
3,227 4,220
5072 65633
8,299 10,853
466 610
1,067 1,385
1,533 2,005
1,291 1,688
850 1112
2,141 2,800

GI Lab
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A GIT Lab has become a primary service offered at virtually all hospitals having

gastroenterologists on their medical staff. For each of the last two years, 82% of the GI
Lab cases at Memorial Hospital have been performed on an outpatient basis. Over the
last five years, utilization of Memorial Hospital’s GI lab has increased at an average rate
of 12.1% per year. Utilization is conservatively projected to increase at an average rate
of 10.0% a vyear, for the next five years, through the second year of operation for
Memorial-East. As a result, 11,367 hours of GI Lab time are projected, and 20% of those
hours are anticipated to ultimately be provided at Memorial-East. Providing for a “ramp
up” peniod during the hospital’s initial year of operation, 1,750 hours of GI Lab time are
anticipated to be used in the first year of operation, and 2,273 hours will be used in the
second year. Two procedure rooms two Level I and six Level I recovery stations will be

provided, to allow for the efficient use of the gastroenterologist’s time.

Cardiac Catheterization

A cardiac catheterization laboratory will be provided, consistent with
contemporary practices for hospitals in metropolitan areas. Historically, the ED at
Memorial Hospital-Belleville has generated approximately 17 cardiac catheterizations for
every 1,000 patients seen. For planning purpose, the rate through the ED at Memorial
Hospital-East is anticipated to be approximately the same as experienced at Memorial
Hospital-Bellville, 17 per 1,000 ED patients. Historically, approximately 5% of the
diagnostic catheterizations performed at Memorial Hospital-Belleville were performed on
patients taken directly from the ED to the cath lab, with approximately 95% being

performed on a “scheduled” basis. At Memorial-East, the “scheduled” rate is anticipated
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to be similar to that experienced at Memorial-Belleville. As a result, and based primarily
upon projected ED utilization, 186 and 258 cardiac catheterizations are anticipated to be
performed at Memorial-East during its first two years of operation. One procedure room

will be provided.

Staff in this area will also support the special procedures room.

A second procedure room will be provided in the cardiac cath lab for
interventional radiology procedures (“special procedures™). It is not anticipated that a
second room will be used for cardiac catheterization. The combining of these two
clinical functions, however, will allow for the sharing of staff, thereby improving
efficiency. The most common procedures to be performed in the special procedure room,
based on the experience at Memorial Hospital will include: aortograms, peripheral
angioplasty, stent msertion, fistulograms and venacavagrams. Using the ratios of one
inpatient procedure per 115.2 m/s/p patient days, as experienced at Memorial Hospital
and 81 outpatient procedures performed for every 100 inpatient procedures, a total of 194
inpatient and 157 outpatient procedures are anticipated to be performed at Memorial
Hospital-East during the second year following the hospital’s opening. Allowing for a
ramp-up period, utilization of the special procedures room during the hospital’s first year
of operation is projected to approximate 50% of the second year’s utilization, or 82

inpatient and 78 outpatient procedures.
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In addition to the two procedure rooms discussed above, four Level II recovery

stations and support space will be provided.

Respiratory Therapy/Pulmonary Function

Respiratory therapy and pulmonary function treatments, 91.8% of which are
provided on an inpatient basis at Memorial Hospital, are anticipated to be performed at
the rate of 1.91 treatments per m/s/p and ICU patient day, as is the experience at
Memorial Hospital. Accordingly, the following respiratory therapy/pulmonary function

volumes, in terms of treatments are anticipated:

Year | Year 2

Inpatient 31,927 41,751
Outpatient 2,852 3.730
Total 34,779 45,481

Non-Invasive Cardiology

Non-Invasive Cardiology services are provided in significant volume on an
outpatient basis as well as on an inpatient basis at Memorial Hospital, and that practice is
anticipated to duplicate itself at Memonal Hospital-East. Consistent with the utilization
at Memorial Hospital, non-invasive cardiology procedures are projected to be performed
on an inpatient basis at the rate of one procedure per 3.6 m/s/p and ICU patient days, and
1.3 outpatient procedures are projected to be performed for each inpatient procedure. As

a result, and based on projected patient days, the following utilization is anticipated:

Year 1 Year 2

Inpatient 5,058 6,614
Qutpatient 6.575 8,599
Total, 11,633 - 15,213

. ATTACHMENT 37
)37/




The primary purpose of providing each of the clinical services addressed in this
ATTACHMENT is to provide a necessary service to residents of the hospital’s planning
area. In addition, and because the patient population traditionally looking to Memorial
Hospital for its care served as the basis for utilization projections, no providers, other
than Memorial Hospital, are anticipated to be impacted by this project. As a result, this
project will not cause any other existing provider’s utilization to fall below the IDPH’s
service-specific standard, nor will it cause any provider not operating at the IDPH’s

standard to realize a decrease in utilization.
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A REGIONS

* March 18, 2011

Mr. Joe Lanius

Chief Financial Officer

Memorial Hospital
4500 Memorial Drive

Belleviile, IL. 62226

Re: Financial Feasibility for Certificate of Need Application

-Dear Mr, Lanius:

- For purposes of completing its Certificate of Need application, this letter will serve as

. confirmation that based npon Regions Bank review of Memorial Hospital’s current financial.
condition, we believe an application for credit support would likely be approved pending
completion of a formal due diligence process and satisfaction of lending requirements to fund the
hospital’s Shiloh medical campus project in an amount up to $115,000,000. Currently, Regions
Bank is discussing various financing structures that would satisfy the hospital’s request. The
final terms, conditions, and security for the financing will be negotiated between the hospital and
bond investors and/or credit provider, as applicable. Once this has been accomplished, a formal
commitment letter would be issued to the hospital addressing the entire structure of the financing

‘proposal.

For decision-making purposes, the interest rate would be based on one-month LIBOR “London

. Interbank Offered Rate” plus a spread of 275 to 450 basis points with an interest rate floor of
4.00%. These rate parameters are on conventional financing for a construction loan on the above
mentioned project. However, the final determination of the rate will be based upon the overall
relationship thet the hospital has with Regions Bank as well as the risk profile of the hospital.

- Should you or the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board have any questions regardmg the -
financing of your pro_]ect please call me at 314-615-3551.

Sincerely,

,%%JW

ohn F. Strasser
Vice President

ce: Keith Cook
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Memorial Group, inc. and Affiliates

Accountants’ Report and Consolidated Financial Statements
 December 31, 2009 and 2008
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
December 31, 2009 and 2008
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One Metropolitan Square
211 N. Broadway, Suite 400
5t. Louis, MO £3702-2733

CPAs & Advlsors 3142315544 Fax 314231.9731  www.bkd.com

independent Accountants’ Report

Board of Directors
Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Belleville, Ilinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates as
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then erded. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Group’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit aiso
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,

and the results of its operations, the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametica.

BKD:LOP

April 14, 2010
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‘Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Assets

Current Assets

Cash

Patient accounts and other receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible receivables of $12,353,156 in 2009 and
$10,576,094 in 2008

Balance due from Hospital Medicaid Assessment Program

Supplies

Prepaid expenses

Estimated balance due from third-party payers

Total current assets
Assets Limited As To Use
Property and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payroll taxes
Estimated balance due to third-party payers
Estimated self-insurance costs, cirrent
Total current liabilities -
Estimated Self-Insurance Costs, Net of Current Portion
Total [iabilities
Net Assets — Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net assets

Sea Notes to Consolfdated Financisl Statements
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$ 11,756,490

2008

$ 7,150,313

24,726,854 24,348,079
- 4,461,519

1,504,299 1,361,102
2322270 2,863,678
112,513 -
40,422,426 40,184,691
130,529,255 126,725,126
104,764,292 103,276,385
7,153,651 6,382,409

5 _282.869.624

$ 11,490,083

$ 276,568,611

$ 12,700,792

9,705,564 8,646,148

. 3,749,805

3,151,000 3,231,000

24,346,647 28,327,745

24,898,337 21,770,175

49,244,984 50,097,920

233,624,640 226,470,691

$ 282,869,624 $ 276,568,611
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Memorial Group, inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

Unrestricted Revenues and Qther Support
Net patient service revenue
Other

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Specialists’ fees
Medical and other supplies
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Other expense
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Depreciation

Operating Loss

Other Income
Investment return
Donations

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses

Investment Return — Change in Unrealized Gains and Losses on

Assets Limited as to Use
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year

Sea Noteos to Consolidated Financial Statements

/43

2009 008

$ 246,387,400 $ 233,396,341

7,268,210 6,645,268
253,655,610 240,041,609
94,432,940 90,988,226
36,370,187 31,416,533
11,599,752 10,864,159
42,284,740 39,036,934
2,499,855 3,568,872
5,937,285 5,280,438
6,989,082 4,348,884
34,579,733 35,697,050
14,928,192 16,018,322
13,180,189 12,712,821
262,801,955 249,932,239
(9,146,345) (9,890,630)
16,870,042 (1,241,294)
601,653 516,302
17,471,695 (724,992)
8,325,350 (10,615,622)

(1,171,401) (30,086,529)

7,153,949 (40,702,151)

226,470,691 267,172,842

$ 233,624,640 $ 226,470,691
————— e
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

2009 08
Operating Activities
Change in unrestricted net assets $ 7,153,949 § (40,702,151)
Adjustments to reconcile change in unrestricted net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities .
Depreciation 13,180,189 12,712,821
~ Net income of investee partnerships (771,242) (358,573)
Change in unrealized losses on assets limited as to use 1,171,401 30,086,529
Realized losses for other-than-temporary impairment
on assets limited as to use - 5,691,320
Changes in assets and liabilities
Patient accounts and other receivables, net (378,775) (1,532,229)
Estimated balance due from/due to third-party payers 509,201 1,406,629
Supplies : (143,197) (58,092)
Prepaid expenses 541,408 (1,275,256)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (979,066) (1,646,604)
Accrued wages and related payroll taxes 1,059,416 1,126,553
Estimated self-insurance costs 3,048,162 (5,858,560)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 24,481,446 (407,613)
Investing Activities
Change in assets limited as to use : (4,975,530) 27,597,033
Purchase of property and equipment (14,899.739) {25,252,968)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (19.875,269) 2,344,065
! Net Increase in Cash 4,606,177 1,936,452
Cash, Beginning of Year 7,150,313 5,213.861
Cash, End of Year $ 11,756,490 § 7,150,313
ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Sumhary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and include
the accounts of Memorial Group, Inc. (“MGI”) and the affiliated entities (the “Related Affiliates”™),
Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc., Memorial Foundation, Inc., Southwest lllinois Health
Ventures, Inc. and Memorial Captive Insurance Company. All corporations, except Memorial
Captive Insurance Company, are located in Belleville, Illinois. Memorial Captive Insurance
Company is domiciled in Phoenix, Arizona.

MG is the parent corporation of the Related Affiliates. MGI is the sole corporate member of
Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc., Memorial Foundation, Inc. and Southwest Iilinois
Health Ventures, Inc. Memorial Captive Insurance Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MGI.

Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc. (the “Medical Center”) includes the accounts of its two
operating units, Memorial Hospital and Memorial Care Center, which provide health care services
to residents of southwestern [linois.

Memorial Foundation, Inc. (“MFI”) is organized to support the health care services of the Medical
Center through financial and fundraising assistance.

Southwest Illinois Health Ventures, Inc. (“SIHVI”) owns and operates medical office buildings, is
a partner in a partnership organized to operate a cancer treatment center and is a partner in a
partnership organized to operate a YMCA fitness facility.

Memorial Captive Insurance Company (“MCIC”) is a captive insurance company that insures a
portion of the Medical Center’s professional liability and re-insures the professional liability for
participating physicians who are on the medical staff of the Medical Center.

Several members of the Board of Directors of MGI and the Related Affiliates serve in this capacity
for more than one of these corporations.

All significant interaffiliate accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

Patient Accounts Recelvable

The Medical Center reports patient accounts receivable for services rendered at net realizable
amounts from third-party payers, patients and others. The Medical Center provides an allowance
for doubtful accounts based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection
information and existing economic conditions. As a service to the patieat, the Medical Center bills
third-party payers directly and bills the patient when the patient’s liability is determined. Patient
accounts receivable are due in full when billed. Accounts are considered delinquent and
subsequently written off as bad debts based on individual credit evaluation and specific
circumstances of the account.
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Supplies
Supply inventories are stated at the lower of cost using the first-in, first-out method or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives.

Net Patient Service Revenue

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the
Medical Center at amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined.

{nvestments and invastment Rotum

Investments include marketable equity and debt securities which are carried at fair value. Total
investment return includes dividend, interest and other investment income and realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments. Net changes in unrealized gains and losses are
recorded as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets.

In 2009, MGI and the Related Affiliates changed the accounting classification of its investments in
equity and debt securities from non-trading to treding. This change in classification required MGI
and the Related Affiliates to recognize unrealized gains and losses on its investments in equity and
debt securities as net investment return in the statement of operations and changes in unrestricted
net assets. In previous years, changes in fair values of these investment securities were recorded as
other changes in unrestricted net assets. The net unrealized gains included in investment return for
2009 were approximately $10,996,000. The change in classification increased reported net
investment return in 2009 by approximately $1,171,000.

Prior to the classification change in 2009, MGI and the Related Affiliates evaluated investments for
conditions that indicate an other than temporary decline in fair value has occurred. In conducting
this review, numerous factors were considered which, individually or in combination, may indicate
that a decline is other than temporery. Based on this evaluation, other than temporary losses of
approximately $5,691,000 were recorded in 2008.
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{Continued) .

Income Taxes

MGI and the Related Affiliates, except MCIC, have been recognized as qualified not-for-profit,
tax-exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar
provision of state law. However, the Medical Center is subject to federal income on any unrelated
business taxable income. MCIC is a taxable corporation.

MGI and the Related Affiliates file tax returns in the U.S. federal and state jurisdictions and are no
longer subject to U.S. federal and state examinations by tax authorities for years before 2006
except for MCIC. All tax years from 2004 and forward for MCIC are open and subject to

examination.
Bank Deposits

The financial institutions holding the MGI and the Related Affiliates’ cash accounts are
participating in the FDIC’s Transaction Account Guarantee Program. Under that program, through
June 30, 2010, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully guaranteed by the FDIC for the
entire amount in the account. -

Effective October 3, 2008, the FDIC’s insurance limits increased to $250,000. The increase in
federally insured limits is currently set to expire December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2009, the
MGI and the Related Affiliates interest-bearing cash accounts did not exceed federally insured
limits.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 14, 2010, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

ATTACHMENT 39




Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 2: Charity Care

In support of its mission, the Medical Center provides care to patients who lack financial resources
and are determined to be medically indigent. Because the Medical Center does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported as net
patient service revenue. During 2009, the Medical Center implemented a discount for patients
without insurance coverage. In addition, the Medical Center provides services to other medically
indigent patients under the state Medicaid program. The program pays providers amounts that are
substantially less than the established charges for the services provided to the recipients.

The following is a summary of uncompensated charges related to these services:

2009 2008
Medicaid allowances $ 67,581,539 § 56,079,589
Charity care allowances 7,737,847 8,300,053
Uninsured discount 15,250,232 -

$ 90,569,618 $ 64,379,642

Medicaid allowances above exclude the activity of the Itlinois Hospital Medicaid Assessment
Program (see Note 3).

Note 3: Net Patient Sarvice Revenue

Under the Medicare Program’s Prospective Payment Systems, the Medical Center is reimbursed on
a fixed price per case for hospital inpatients and a fixed price per test or procedure for outpatients.

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed on a
fixed price per case for hospital inpatients and a fixed price per test or procedure for outpatients.

Approximately 38% and 39% of net patient service revenues are from participation in the Medicare
and Medicaid programs for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The Medical Center has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for
payment to the Medical Center under these agreements includes discounts from established charges
and prospectively determined fixed prices.

filinols Hospital Medicald Assessment Program

The state of Illinois implemented a three-year hospital assessment program beginning July 1, 2005,
that qualified for federal matching funds through the Ilinois Medicaid program. Under the
program, each hospital was assessed taxes based on that hospital’s adjusted gross hospitel revenue.
The assessments in part funded additional Medicaid payments.
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 3: Net Patient Service Revanue {Continued)

In December 2008 a new five-year hospital assessment program beginning July 1, 2008 was
approved. Payments related to the new program began in March 2009, Under the provisions of the
new program, the Medical Center anticipates annual net patient service revenue of approximately
$8,900,000, and annual assessment payments by the Medical Center of approximately $7,200,000.

The effects of these programs in the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the years
ended December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008

Additional Medicaid payments included in net patient service revenue $ 8,923,038 3% 9,390,315
— —  ————————] o —

Taxes assessed and included in other expense $ 7236950 $ 6,168,577
———————————| e re—

The hospital assessment program contains a sunset provision effective June 30, 2013, and there is
no assurance that the program will not be discontinued or materially modified.

Note 4: Assets Limited as to Use

Board-Designated Assets

Board-designated assets represent funds set aside for the acquisition of depreciable assets and other
capital-related purposes.

Self-insurance Fund and Memorial Captive Insurance Company
The Medical Center and MCIC maintain trust funds for the purpose of funding professional and
general liability losses. Funding of the claims is besed upon actuarial estimates of the potential

liability and the lag time in the payment of claims. Investment income is retained by the trusts and
reinvested,

Auxiliary Fund

The Auxiliary Fund provides educational assistance to students pursuing health-related careers and
is administered by the Auxiliary.
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 4: Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

Assets Limited as to Use Include:

Board-Designated Assets
Money market accounts
1.S. government and federal agency
U.S. government sponsored enterprises
Corporate obligations
Equity securities
Other assets
Amortized premiun/discount and accrued income receivable

Self-Insurance Fund
Money market accounts
U.S. government and federal agency
Equity securities

Memorial Captive Insurance Company
Money market accounts
U.S. government and federal agency
1).S. government sponsored enterprises
Equity securities
Amortized premium/discount and accrued income receivable

Auxiliary Fund
Money market accounts
Certificates of deposit
Other assets

AY

2009 08
S 4619023 S 17,320,403
4,555,592 9,045,180
22,074,959 17,595,129
13,883,145 12,569,576
60,081,047 46,054,216
112,067 112,067
68,935 189,248
105,394,768 102,885,819
116,701 141,663
733,107 753,998
1,452,324 1,553,280
2,302,132 2,448,941
1,528,346 6,798,384
3,857,671 2,625,180
7,317,016 6,167,484
8,597,733 4,298,681
57,282 11,945
21,358,048 19,901,674
249,866 235,291
1,057,294 1,044,000
167,147 209,401
1,474,307 1,488,692
$ 130,529255 $ 126,725,126
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| Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

‘ Note 4: Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

Total investment return is comprised of the following;

2009 2008

Interest and dividend income $ 3419442 3 6,330,911
Realized gains and losses on sales of securities 1,283,258 (1,880,885)
Realized losses for other-than-temporary impairments - (5,691,320)

Realized investment return 4,702,700 (1,241,294)
Net change in unrealized gains and losses 10,995,941 (30,086,529)

Total investment return § 15698,641 § (31,327,823)

= { [ ——— _ .. ]

Total investment return is reflected in the statement of operations and changes in unrestricted net

assets as follows:
2009 2008
Other non-operating income $ 16,870,042 $ (1,241,294)
Change in net unrealized gains and losses (1,171,401) (30,086,529)
Total investment return $ 15698641 § (31,327,823)
— . — - - —— ]

Note 5: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measirements, defines fair value as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure
fair value:

Level 1  Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2  Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the assets or liabilities

Level3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 5: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities {Continued)

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets measured at
fair velue on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets, as
well as the general classification of such assets pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Assets Limited as to Use

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within -
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities include money market accounts, equities and
U.S. government securities. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are
estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or
discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities include corporate and .S, government sponsored
enterprises bonds and notes. Level 3 securities include certificates of deposit.

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair
value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2009 and 2008, less
accrued interest, bank deposits, other investments and other assets of the auxiliary:

200_? Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Money market accounts $ 6,513,936 § 6,513,936 §$ - 8 -
U.S. government and
federal agency $ 9146370 $ 9,146,370 $ - 8 -
U.S. government sponsored
enterprises $ 29391975 § 7993954 § 21,398,021 § -
Corporate obligations $ 13,883,145 § - $ 13,883,145 § -
Equity securities $ 70,113,104 § 70,131,104 $ - § -
Certificates of deposit $ 1,057,294 $ - 3 - 3 1,057,294
ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008 '

Note 5: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

2008 Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Money market accounts $ 24495741 $ 24495741 § - 8 -
U.S. government and
federal agency $ 12424358 § 12424358 % - % -
U.S. government sponsored
enterprises $ 23,762,613 $ 10,507,022 § 13,255,591 § -
Corporate obligations $ 12,569,576 $ - § 12569576 $ -
Equity securities $ 51,906,177 §$ 51,906,177 § - 3 -
Certificates of deposit $ 1,044,000 $ - § - 3 1,044,000
Note 6: Property and Equipment
2009 2008
Land $§ 10278850 $ 10,278,850
Land improvements 5,282,152 4,369,478
Buildings 79,050,011 77,870,735
Fixed equipment 57,317,440 54,828,256
Movable equipment 92,993,562 01,745,417
Alterations and projects in progress 4,123,685 2,126,161
249,045,700 241,218,897
Less accumulated depreciation 144,281,408 137,942,512

$ 104,764,292 %

Note 7: Pension Plan

103,276,385

The Medical Center has a pension plan covering full and part time employees who have completed
one year of service, attained age 21 and have at least 1,000 hours of service within one year. The
plan is a defined-contribution money-purchase pian. The total pension expense was $3,816,247
and $3,593,173 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. It is the policy to
fund total pension expense incurred. Upon two years of credited service AFRTNPIINEDITANS 2

/7
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Note 7: Pension Pian (Continued)

20% vested interest; in each of the succeeding four years of credited service, the employee obtains
an additional 20% vested interest.

Note 8: Professional and General Liability

The Medical Center maintains a self-insurance program to provide for losses related to professional
and general liability claims. MCIC insures a portion of the Medical Center’s professional liability
and re-insures professional liability for participating physicians who are on the medical staff of the
Medical Center. A provision for expected losses is recorded based upon the Medical Center’s and
MCIC’s estimate of the potential liability for asserted and unasserted claims and unreported
incidents, During 2009 and 2008, MGI and the Related Affiliates charged $5,729,000 and
$2,726,000 to operations, respectively, as the Medical Center’s estimated loss for all asserted and
unasserted claims and unreported incidents. Additionally, during 2009 and 2008, MCIC charged
$961,840 and $1,325,000 to operations, respectively, as the participating physicians’ estimated loss
for all asserted and unasserted claims and unreported incidents. The ultimate resolution of these
matters may result in amounts that differ materially from those recorded at December 31, 2009.

Note 9: Functional Expenses
MGI and the Related Affiliates’ expenses as presented in the federal tax Form 990 are as follows:

2009 2008
Program services . $ 237,021,948 § 223,547,784
Management and general 25,645,983 26,257,294
Fundraising 134,024 127,161

$ 262,801,955 $ 249932239
- ——— — . e
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One Metropolitan Square
211 N. Broadway, Suite 600
ur St. Louis, MO 43102-2733

CPAs & Advisors 314.231.5544 Fax 314.2Z11.9731  wwwhbkd.com

Independent Accountants’ Report on Supplementary Information

Board of Directors
Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Belleville, Illinois

Our 2009 audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary consolidating information is presented
for purposes of additional analysis of the basic consolidated financial staternents rather than to present the
financial position and results of operations of the individual entities, and is not a required part of the basic
consolidated financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the procedures
applied in the audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

BKb;U—P

St. Louis, Missouri
April 14, 2010

15
ATTACHMENTPyaxity.:

BER +

» R
experience BKD /b Shaess e o




4 ] = _———— - - —_—
V9698782 $  (vIL'STZI'6) $  TTYSO9TT $  BLIST6ELE $  996°CER8 0§ IEC'BLEEOI $  IMLLTI6S §
1S9'EST L - - 159°¢S1°L - - -

T6THOL'POI - - €0°668°6T - L18°9Z599 I¥H'BEES

- (c08'808°8) - - - S08°'g08°e -

$ST'6TS0EI - 8P08SE 1T - oP‘8sL'8 195°959°6¥ 9L 0s
oTv TTH O (606'61) PLELOE T £61°0b€ $9s°sL 81°986°8€ 950°cE

- (606°61€) - - - 606'61€ -

gIsTI - - - - cIsz -

OLTTZET - wTels 20t°1 SL8'1 obL'e8L"l 000

66T 10S°1 - - - - . 66Z°P0S‘1 .

PS89ZLYT - S19°39p - - 6£T°8STHT -

06V 9SL T - $ $8LYTE $  689°€L $  WwrTeo'tl  $ 9so‘ot $

8IS STE 3

PeJEPIOBUOD  SUOREBUjWI] uedwo?) *au} "S8IMUBA “auj ‘auj ‘ajue’y “ou)
eouRINSY| yeen ‘uogepuno4 [edlpeiN ‘dnoun
aAnde) Sfoulll [epowaiy Iepowey [epowew
{epowenN saMInog ueisalold
‘8002 ‘1€ J9quiazaq

uopeunioju] BupepIosUCD WIM ~J9YS eduejeq Pejep)OSUOD
sajeliyy pue ouf ‘dnols) jeLiowei

519558 [RI0],

I

AgJHMENT 39

T
19N Yuomdmby pus hﬁ!ﬁn—

*3U] ‘Uonepuno,]
TULIOWSIA JO 51255V AN O W Jsatoey

35() 0], 5V papmmy] 355V
1955 JUALND [BI0,

sjene Wog NG 2
s194ed Lyred-pmy wag anp ssueeg
sosuadxa predaig
safddng
9T “53[qEATaA]
JOYI0 PUE SIUNOB WANBJ
se)
_ S)essy JuaIm)

sjassy




———————— B — ]

BL8Z6ELE $  996'€E8'8 0§ IEEBLGE9T §  IBLLTI6S §
LpI'sL89E S03°808°8 961°TIL ZEL TLE 82088

e

$79'698°Z8C $ wp'e99'TT ¢

ST6'866'S

(v1L'szI‘s) $
(508°208°8)

0V9'vT9'eET

$08'808'8 -
16€°€06°€T1 TLE'BEQ'SS

- (508°'808°8) - - -
1] R A NATA - $T6'866'S LP1°SLB9E $08°308°8

re6'vbT 6P (606°61¢) L6V'999°9] 1ELLIS 191°sT SEI‘99T 1€ 69£°680'1

7LS91E'8 -

LEER68'VT $9L.°185°91 - -

LY9°OrE'HT (606°61€) TEL'VS 1€L°L1S 1916 £95°646'TT 69€°680°1

- (606'61€) vZE L9L°0E 600°€1 - 608'SLT
000°1ST°E - - - - 000°ISTE -

#95°50L'6 - - 91p'1lL ¥99°S P1°999'6 0PETT
£80‘06¥‘11 - $ sor'tR $ 8sps'sip $ 88v'9 $ S6IYZEI'!l  §  0ZT'I6L 3

pejepjosuon  suopeuIW]I Auedwo?) DU ‘SSJIMIMOA ou| *ou| Jejusn ‘auj
eJurInsuy| yyeoH ‘uopepuno4d [e3lpeN ‘dnoas
eanded soul IBHOWo N jepowenN feuouety

Jepowsy isamynog juejseijold

£32558 10U pwe SIWI[IGET] §9IOL
50558 10U Eﬁ.M

SIUMGE [RoL

TOII0 JUALM)) JO
19N “SIS00) B0URMST]-J]35 PAIBUisT

SanNIQEN] 1UALMD THOL,

/SF

Sayer|ye O ancy
LN

*S1S00 2OURIMSUI-J[8 PIrEwinsg
53X8)}
Jjozied pajeral pus s3fem pantooy
sasuadxs
panoe pue ojquded sumoxoy
SINIqel] Jualmy)

$1355Y 33N PUB SININGEIE




(Sve'opl'e) § <So6'SEk 8 (656'€r9) §  0ZTOo6Z  § (00686S)  §  19891ZL  §  (LY9KRSD) 8 (s07) smoou Buy

wmo;oa.%m  (os5'8¥5D) 1E9°1Eb'E - L6E0T8E 006°86S SEI'ESO'THT g.ﬁ»..n_

681 a: I - e YEO6Y6 1 - - G ATEEE - vomeoasdag
.T6L'8TE'YI e - - _ - Tet'szevt 0 - ms_ssu_nnﬁ_agho.:o_ﬁoa ‘
EEL'6LS'PE (9gy's11°D) 16L°069 . ¥BL'8I9 9Y8'9LY 996°97L°61 - T8LYBISY . - osuads WO
-T30'686'9 (000°000°1)- ov8'opLT. ‘868°8€ 0sL'l 61L°70T'S SL8T . SouRIney]

‘,__,,..Mnau...maw - - LeEeT - $88'TLL'S -

R 13 Ko - - - 020029 - SE8'6LS'[ - i

,._cﬁ.an.nvu - - - - OvL'YST'TY - sa1rddns Japo puy _N._ﬁoE ,

. TEL'66S 11 - - - - TSL'66S' 11 - 533 sisi[e1dadg e
LBI'OLE9E . L8Y'O¥1 - - SLY'EL 00912 £09°CTL09€ TSI sigamaq aakodwy Hu.

OVETEY'P6 69€'€TY - T 68E°5SE POL'86 $8T°710°¢6 £61°EYS sofem pue saue[es
: - sasuadxy

_oiwmo_nmn (SLoTN'sL TLY'LBLT - LI9'0TEY - 966'698°8¥T -

01Z°89T L (SL9TI'T) TLYL8LT L1901V - 965'T8P'T - DO
oov'L8E'HT § - $ - $ - s - $ oov'istHwT § - $ SMUDAYI 2014135 Jusped 19N
. uoddng Jaqu0) pue sndASY paOLYSITU[)

pajepjjosuon  suopEUIMY|Y h._a&:ou *ou] ‘saInjuep 3| oy Jejued auy
souBInsuy| \Bleey ‘uogepunoy [eoIPON ‘dnosg
eApde) sjoupli- lepowew [epoway (epOWoW
[eLowe Jsemnos Jungesioly

600Z ‘i€ Jequedeq papu3 JeoA
uojjeurioju) m:auu__o»:oo BIM - Ecmm( amz uj seBueyo pue n:o:a._ono JO Juswajess pajepljosuo)

sajel|idY pue "ou| ‘dnois) [eLIowap




= ———— ]

0v9vz9ce § (S08'8088) § SC6866'S § LVI'SLE9E § SOSBOBE  §  96ITILTEl § CLEBEOSS
1690Lvo . 66D SLY'659'Y LT6'PST'IE LY6'6E8°L T£0'LZL'YZ1 857°676 09
6¥6°ES1'L (858°896) 0SY'6£ET 0ZZ'0TL 858'896 $9L°C86'L (988'068°7)
- (858°396) - - - 858896 -
6V6°EST'L - 0SP'6£€°1 0zZZ'0ZL 858896 LOE'910'L (988°068°7)
- - - 000°0EY - {€sT1'98Y°L) £S1°950°L
(To¥'1L1°D) - LPE LIV - (1sL'L0$) 606°LY1'[ (506'2T°€)
0SE'SZE'S - (L68°1L) 02Z'062 609°9LP°1 1SS PSEET (ect'veL'e)
S69 1LY L1 (S06'cER) 790°TLS - 60§°SL0°T 069°LET’9 6£€°TTL6
£59°109 (6p1'£6E) - - 106219 106°18€ -
o‘ols8'9l  §  (9SL'TY) $ woTs 0§ - $ 809THT § 68LSSL'S 8§ 6EETTLLG
pajepfiosuos  suopjeujwia Auedwon U] ‘sanuep -y} *3u| 0juen Y|
: GIURINSGY| yyeeH ‘uopepUNC {eo|paN ‘dnos
aagde) sioulll feyJoulely jetrowep {epowen

{eOWweN semyInog

Jue)8004d

f=))
TeaK 30 pug .aa_..ﬁoz
Ted X yo Suraurdag ¢ N
SI2S5V 19N [BI0], W SBYD
<
| *0] ‘opepunO4 [eLOWS o
269 JON U 359 uy oFued)y
- 51955y JON pajornsay AjLmeioduia g,

SJISSY 1N
PRALASATN) W (PERAIN() ISBALIT]

saerjuge (o) WOR SIAJSURIL
QSN 0} Se pA)IUL] 5}9558

€O 53550§ U sWed poziearm
] 9FUBY0-WIngaz JUIUGEIAUY

/Le

sasuadxy 1940
$ANUANY Jo {Adustoga(q) s599x

SUONBUO(]
WIMAT JUSURSIAT]

2WOOY] 9GO



Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

Accountants’ Report and Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
December 31, 2008 and 2007
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BKD.

CPAs & Advisors

Independent Accountants’ Report

Board of Directors
Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Belleville, llirois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates as
of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Group’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on

our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Memorial Group, Inc, and Affiliates as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
and the resuits of its operations, the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 5, in 2008, the Group changed its method of accounting for fair value measurements
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157.

BKD,ue

April 16, 2009

501 N. Broadway, Suite 00
St Louis, MD 63102-2124
314.231.5544 Fax 314 2319731 wwwhbkd.com
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Assets

Current Assets

Cash

Patient accounts and other receivables, net of aliowance
for uncollectible receivables of $10,576,094 in 2008
and $10,351,615 in 2007

Balance due from Hospital Medicaid Assessment
Program

Supplies

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets
Assets Limited As To Use
Property and Equipment, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Other

Total assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payroll taxes
Estimated balance due to third-party payers
Estimated self-insurance costs, current
Total current liabilities
Estimated Self-Insurance Costs, Net of Current Portion
Total liabilities
Net Assets — Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net assets

See Notes to Consolidaled Financial Statemenls

2008 2007

$  7,150313 $ 5,213,861
24,348,079 22,815,850
4,461,519 4,928,791
1,361,102 1,303,010
2,863,678 1,588,422
40,184,691 35,849,934
126,725,126 190,100,008
103,276,385 90,596,390
6.382.409 6,023.836
$_276568,611 $_322570,168
$ 12,700,792 $ 14,207,548
8,646,148 7,519,595
3,749,805 2,810,448
3,231,000 2,821,000
28,327,745 27,358,591
21,770,175 28,038,735
50,097,920 55,397,326
226,470,691 267,172,842
$_276,568,611 $_ 322,570,168

ATTACHMENT 3% ,




Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Unrestricted Revenues and Other Support
Net patient service revenue
Other

Expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Specialists’ fees
Medical and other supplies
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Other expense
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Depreciation

Operating Loss
Other Income

Investment return
Donations

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenses

Investment Return — Change in Unrealized Gains and Losses
on Assets Limited as to Use

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year

See Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statemenis

/6¢

$226,470,691 $267,172,842

ATTACHMENT 39

2008 2007
$ 233,396,341 $ 217,559,508
6.645.268 5.860.678
240,041,609  223.420.186
90,988,226 84,531,697
31,416,533 28,987,701
10,864,159 9,552,908
39,036,934 36,081,981
3,568,872 3,255,589
5,280,438 4,731,470
4,348,884 3,595,967
35,697,050 29,886,883
16,018,322 13,109,413
12,712,821 12,391,213
249,932,239  226.124.822
{9.890.630) (2,704.636)
(1,241,294) 12,135,932
516,302 1,418,008
(724.992) 13,553,940
(10,615,622) 10,849,304
(30,086.529) 2.219.464
(40,702,151) 13,068,768
267.172.842  254.104,074

3




Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Operating Activities
Change in unrestricted net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in unrestricted net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Net loss (income) of investee partnerships
Change in unrealized gains and losses on assets limited
as to use
Realized losses for other than temporary impairment
on assets limited as to use
Changes in assets and liabilities
Patient accounts and other receivables, net
Estimated balance due from/due to third-party payers
Supplies
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued wages and related payroll taxes
Estimated seif-insurance costs

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities
Investing Activities
Change in assets limited as to use
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Net Increase in Cash

Cash, Beginning of Year

Cash, End of Year

See Notes fo Consolidated Financial Statements

2008

—r———

2007

$ (40,702,151) $ 13,068,768

12,712,821 12,391,213
(358,573) 582,472
30,086,529 (2,219,464)
5,691,320 —
(1,532,229)  (1,566,240)
1,406,629 4,362,582
(58,092) (79,903)
(1,275,256) (172,903)
(1,646,604) 1,238,442
1,126,553 (1,107,913)
(5,858.560) 609.863
(407,613) _27.106.917
27,597,033 (11,485,200)
(25.252.968) _(14.644.955)
2,344,065 _(26.130,155)
1,936,452 976,762
5.213.861 4,237,099

$___7150313 $__5.213.86]
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and include
the accounts of Memorial Group, Inc. (“MGI”) and the affiliated entities (the “Related Affiliates™),
Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc., Memorial Foundation, Inc., Southwest Illinois Health
Ventures, Inc. and Memorial Captive Insurance Company. All corporations, except Memorial
Captive Insurance Company, have been recognized as qualified tax-exempt organizations under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are located in Belleville, Illinois. Memorial
Captive Insurance Company is a taxable corporation domiciled in Phoenix, Arizona,

MGI is the parent corporation of the Related Affiliates. MGI is the sole corporate member of
Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc., Memorial Foundation, Inc. and Southwest Illinois
Health Ventures, Inc. Memorial Captive Insurance Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of

MGIL

Protestant Memorial Medical Center, Inc. {the “Medical Center™) includes the accounts of its two
operating units, Memorial Hospital and Memorial Care Center, which provide health care services
to residents of southwestern Illinois.

Memorial Foundation, Inc. (“MFI”} is organized to support the health care services of the Medical
Center through financial and fundraising assistance.

Southwest lilinois Health Ventures, Inc. (“SIHVT”) owns and operates medical office buildings, is
a partner in a partnership organized to operate a cancer treatment center and is a partner in 2
partnership organized to operate a YMCA fitness facility.

Memorial Captive Insurance Company (“MCIC”) is a captive insurance company that insures a
portion of the Medical Center’s professional liability and resinsures the professional liability for
participating physicians who are on the medical staff of the Medical Center.

Several members of the Board of Directors of MGI and the Related Affiliates serve in this capacity
for more than one of these corporations.

All significant interaffiliate accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Patient Accounts Receivable

The Medical Center reports paticnt accounts receivable for services rendered at net realizable
amounts from third-party payers, patients and others. The Medical Center provides an allowance
for doubtful accounts based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection
information and existing economic conditions. As a service to the patient, the Medical Center bills
third-party payers directly and bills the patient when the patient’s liability is determined. Patient
accounts receivable are due in full when billed. Accounts are considered delinquent and
subsequently written off as bad debts based on individual credit evaluation and specific
circumstances of the account.

Supplies

Supply inventories are stated at the lower of cost using the first-in, first-out method or market.

Investments and Investment Return

Investments include markefable equity and debt securities which are carried at fair value. Total
investment return includes dividend, interest and other investment income and realized and
unrealized gains and losses on investments. Net changes in unrealized gains and losses are
recorded as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method
over estimated useful lives.

Net Pationt Service Revenue

The Medical Center has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the
Medical Center at amounts different from its established rates. Net patient service revenue is
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and others in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are

determined.

ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 1: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Bank Deposits

The financial institutions holding the MGI and the Related Affiliates’ cash accounts are
participating in the FDIC’s Transaction Account Guarantee Program. Under that program, through
December 31, 2009, all noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully guaranteed by the FDIC

for the entire amount in the account,

Effective October 3, 2008, the FDIC’s insurance limits increased to $250,000. The increase in
federally insured limits is currently set to expire December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2008, the
MGI and the Related Affiliates interest-bearing cash accounts exceeded federally insured limits by

approximately $257,504.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Note 2: Charity Care

In support of its mission, the Medical Center provides care to patients who lack financial resources
and are determined Lo be medically indigent. Because the Medical Center does not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported as net
patient service revenue. In addition, the Medical Center provides services to other medically
indigent patients under the state Medicaid program. The program pays providers amounts that are
substantially less than the established charges for the services provided to the recipients.

The following is a summary of uncompensated charges related to these services:

2008 2007
Medicaid allowances $ 56,079,589 $ 49,103,236
Charity care allowances 8.300.053 6395215
$_64,379.642 $_ 55498451

Medicaid allowances above exclude the activity of the lilinois Hospital Medicaid Assessment
Program (see Note 3).

ATTACHMENT 39
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 3: Net Patient Service Revenue

Under the Medicare Program’s Prospective Payment Systems, the Medical Center is reimbursed on
a fixed price per case for hospital inpatients and a fixed price per test or procedure for outpatients.

Inpatient and outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are reimbursed on a
fixed price per case for hospital inpatients and a fixed price per test or procedure for outpatients.

Approximately 39% and 42% of net patient service revenues are from participation in the Medicare
and Medicaid programs for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The Medical Center has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance
carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. The basis for
payment to the Medical Center under these agreements includes discounts from established charges
and prospectively determined fixed prices.

Hlinois Hospital Medicaid Assessment Program

The state of Illinois implemented a three-year hospital assessment program beginning July 1, 2005
that qualified for federal matching funds through the Illinois Medicaid program. Under the
program, each hospital was assessed taxes based on that hospital’s adjusted gross hospital revenue.
The assessments in part funded additional Medicaid payments.

In December 2008 a new five-year hospital assessment program beginning July 1, 2008 was
approved. Payments related to the new program began in March 2009. Under the provisions of the
new program, the Medical Center anticipates annual net patient service revenue of approximately
$8,900,000, and annual assessment payments by the Medical Center of approximately $7,200,000.

The effects of these programs in the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year
ended December 31 are as follows:

2008 2007
Additional Medicaid payments included in net patient
service Tevenue 3...9390,315 $__9,851.592
Taxes assessed and included in other expense $_._6,168577 3___5192.,520
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Note 4:

Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Assets Limited as to Use

Board-Designated Assets

Board-designated assets represent funds set aside for the acquisition of depreciable assets and other
capital-related purposes.

Self-insurance Fund and Memorial Captive Insurance Company

The Medical Center and MCIC maintain trust funds for the purpose of funding professional and
general liability losses. Funding of the claims is based upon actuarial estimates of the potential
liability and the lag time in the payment of claims. Investment income is retained by the trusts and
reinvested.

Auxiliary Fund

The Auxiliary Fund provides educational assistance to students pursuing health-related careers and
is administered by the Auxiliary.

Assets Limited as to Use Include:

Board-Designated Assets

Money market accounts

U.S. Treasury bills and notes

U.S. government agency obligations

Corporate obligations

Equity securities

Other assets

Amortized premium/discount and accrued income
receivable

Self-Insurance Fund

Money market accounts

U.S. Treasury bills and notes

U.S. government agency obligations

Corporate obligations

Equity securities

Amortized premium/discount and accrued income
receivable

$

2008 2007

17,320,403 $ 14,527,972
9,045,180 12,529,503
17,595,129 21,491,244
12,569,576 13,281,624
46,054,216 99,982,737
112,067 488,317
189,248 183,963
102.885.819  _162,485.360
141,663 305,577
753,998 829,286
—_ 702,059

— 100,927
1,553,280 3,716,439
— (37,.743)
2,448,941 5,616,545
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 4: Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

2008 2007
Memorial Captive Insurance Company
Money market accounts $ 6,798,384 § 5,335,883
U.S. Treasury bills and notes 2,625,180 990,216
U.S. government agency obligations 6,167,484 2,049,485
Equity securities 4,298,681 7,965,684
Other assets —_ 101,623
Amortized preminm/discount and accrued income
receivable 11.945 62,341
19.901.674 20,505,232
Auxiliary Fund
Money market accounts 235,291 243,213
Certificates of deposit 1,044,000 1,030,000
Other assets 209.401 219,658

1.488.692 1,492,871

$_126.725,126 $_190,100,008

Investment return is reflected in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as other
non-operating income. The net change in unrealized gains and losses is recorded as an increase or
decrease in unrestricted net assets. Total investment return is comprised of the following:

2008 2007
Interest and dividend income $ 6330911 § 6,203,210
Realized gains and losses on sales of securities (1,880,885) 5,932,722
Realized losses for other than temporary impairments (5.691,320) —
Realized investment return (1,241,294) 12,135,932
Net change in unrealized gains and losses (30.086.529) 2.219.464
Total investment return $_(31,327.823) $__ 14,355,396
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 4: Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

Certain investments in debt and marketable equity securities are reported in the financial statements
&t an amount less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at December 31,
2008, was $41,183,375 which is approximately 33% of MGI's investment portfolio. These
declines primarily resulted from recent increases in market interest rates and failure of certain
investments to maintain consistent credit quality ratings or meet projected earnings targets.

Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes in market interest rates, credit
rating information and information obtained from regulatory filings, management believes the
declines in fair value for these securities are temporary. Should the impairment of any of these
securities become other than temporary, the cost basis of the investment will be reduced and the
resulting loss recognized in the excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses.

The following table summarizes investment gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position.

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Description of Unreallzed Unrealized Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
December 31, 2008
Debt securities $ 5748591 § (495239) § 3,361,560 § (1,076,528) $ 9,110,151 % (1,571,767
Equity securities 30,532,013 (6.698,959) 1,541,211 {555,133 32,073,224 {7.254,092)
Total temporarily
impaired
securities $.36280,604 $_(7.194,198) $_4,902.771 $_(1.631.661) $41183375 $_(8.825.859)

As of March 31, 2009, approximately $4,900,000 of impairment was identified on investments
which were not considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2008.

December 31, 2007
Debt securities $ 10,483,575 § (628,801) § 6,805436 % (449,296) § 17,289,011 § (1,078,097)
Equity securities 8,570,836  (1.750,244) 1,634,559 108,757 0,205,395 859,001
Total temporarily
impaired
securities $.19.054411 $.(2379.045) $_8.439.995 8 (558,053) $27494406 $_(2,937,008)
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 5: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

Effective January 1, 2008, MGI and the Related Affiliates adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (FAS 157). FAS 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. FAS 157 has been applied prospectively as of the beginning of the year.

FAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. FAS 157
also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The standard
describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1  Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level I prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the

full term of the assets or liabilities

Level 3  Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis and recognized in the accompanying balance sheets, as well as the
general classification of such assets and liabilities pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

Assets Limited as to Use

Where quoted market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Levei | securities include equities and treasury securities. If
quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models,
quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics or discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities
include corporate and government agency bonds and notes.

The following table presents the fair value measurements of assets recognized in the accompanying
balance shects measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the FAS 157 fair
value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at December 31, 2008, less accrued
interest, bank deposits, other investments and net assets of the auxiliary:

ATTACHMENT 39 ,,

/177




Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 5: Disclosures About Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets limited as to
use $113,870,382 $89,369,198 $24,501,184 $ —
Note 6: Property and Equipment
008 007
Land $ 10,278,850 $ 3,095,409
Land improvements 4,369,478 4,346,612
Buildings 77,870,735 77,836,963
Fixed equipment 54,828,256 48,981,401
Movable equipment 91,745,417 86,783,258
Alterations and projects in progress 2,126,161 4,164,110

241,218,897 225,207,753

Less accumulated depreciation 137,942,512 134,611,363
$.103,276,385 3_90.596,390

Note 7: Pension Plan

The Medical Center has a pension plan covering full and part time employees who have completed
one year of service, attained age 21 and have at least 1,000 hours of service within one year. The
plan is a defined-contribution money-purchase plan. The total pension expense was $3,593,173
and $3,086,063 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. It is the policy to
fund total pension expense incurred. Upon three years of credited service, the employee obtains a
20% vested interest; in each of the succeeding four years of credited service, the employee obtains
an additional 20% vested interest.
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Memorial Group, Inc. and Affiliates
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Note 8: Professional and General Liability

The Medical Center maintains a self-insurance program to provide for losses related to professional
and general liability claims. MCIC insures a portion of the Medical Center’s professional liability
and re-insures professional liability for participating physicians who are on the medical staff of the
Medical Center. A provision for expected fosses is recorded based upon the Medical Center’s and
MCIC’s estimate of the potential liability for asserted and unasserted claims and unreported
incidents. During 2008 and 2007, MGI and the Related Affiliates charged $2,726,000 and
$3,041,000 to operations, respectively, as the Medical Center’s estimated loss for all asserted and
unasserted claims and unreported incidents. Additionally, during 2008 and 2007, MCIC charged
$1,325,000 and $231,151 to operations, respectively, as the participating physicians’ estimated loss
for all asserted and unasserted claims and unreported incidents. The ultimate resolution of these
matters may result in amounts that differ materially from those recorded at December 3 1, 2008.

Note 9: Functional Expenses

MGI and the Related Affiliates’ expenses as presented in the federal tax Form 990 are as follows:

2008 2007
Program services $ 223,547,784 § 201,459,810
Management and general 26,257,294 24,545,494
Fundraising 127,161 119,518

$ 249,932,239 $_226,124,822
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501 M. Broadway, Suite 500
LLP St. Louis, MO 63102-2126
342315544 Fax 3142319731 wwwbkd.com

CPAs & Advisors

independent Accountants’ Report on Supplementary Information

Board of Directors
Memorial Group, Inc, and Affiliates
Belleville, Ilinois

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary consolidating information is presented for purposes
of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than tfo present the financial position
and results of operations of the individual entities, and is not a required part of the basic consolidated
financial statements. The consolidating information has been subjected to the procedures applied in the
audits of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

BKb:u.P

St. Louis, Missouri
April 16, 2009
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Statement of Income

|Memorial Group

Total Net Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Depreciation

Interest

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income

Non Operating Revenue

Net Income (Loss)

Balance Sheet
lMemoriaI Group —]

Cash & Accounts Receivahle

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Current Portion -LT Debt
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Debt

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

Year 2
$293,001,006
6,210,008
299,211,014
275,395,013
20,438,158
7,650,509
303,483,679
-4,272,665

5,750,500

$1,477,835

Year2

$47,712,684
5,772,477

AL i £ AL

57,485,161
404,042,592
$461,527,753

33,465,819
4,454,315

s

37,920,134
123,054,161
20,476,872
143,531,033
$181,451,167

$280,076,586

$461,527,753
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Statement of Income
W‘Iemorial Group |

Total Net Revenue
Other Operating Revenue

Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Depreciation

Interest

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income

Non Operating Revenue

Net Income {Loss)

Balance Sheet
[Memorial Group J

Cash & Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Other Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Current Portion -LT Debt
Total Current Liabilities
tong Term Debt

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

2016
$293,001,006
6,210,008
299,211,014
275,395,013
20,438,158
7,650,509
303,483,679
1,272,665

5,750,500

$1,477,835

2016

547,712,684
9,772,477
57,485,161
404,042,592
$461,527,753
33,465,819
4,454,315
37,920,134
123,054,161
20,476,872
143,531,033

$181,451,167

$280,076,586

461,527,753
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Memarial Group, Inc. and Affiliates

Believille, lllinois

Consolidated Financial Statements

Criterion 1120.210{a) Financial Viabllity

2007 2008 2009 Yr 2/2018
Actual Actual Actual Projected
CURRENT RATIO 1.31 1.42 166 1.52
Current Assets 35,849,934 40,184,691 40,422,425 57,485,161
Current Liabilities 27,358,591 28,327,745 24,346,647 37,920,134
NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE 4.86% -4.42% 3.28% 0.49%
Net income (Loss) 10,849,304 -10,615,622 8,325 350 1,477 835
Net Operating Revenue 223,420,188 240,041,609 253,655 610 299,211,014
PERCENT DEBT TC
TOTAL CAPITALIZATION No L-T-D No L-T-D No L-T-D 31.3%
Long Term Debt (LTD) 0 0 0 _127,508.476
LTD + Unrestricted Net Assets 267,172,842 226,470,691 233,624,640 407,858,044
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE No L-T-D No L-T-D No L-T-D 1.98
Net Income + Deprec Exp + interest Exp 23,240,517 2,097 199 21,505 539 24,201,506
Max Annual Debt Service 0 0 0 12,372,083
DAYS CASH CON HAND 334 206 208 202
Unresir Cash + Investments X 365 195,313,869 133,875,439 142,285,745 153,177,725 |
Oper Exp - Deprec Exp 213,733,609 237,219,418 249,621,766 276,836,512
CUSHION RATIO No L-T-D No L-T-D No L-T-D 12.38
Unrestr Cash + Investments 195,313 869 133,875,439 142,285,745 153,177,725 |
Max Annual Debt Service 0 0 0 12,372,083
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MEMORIAL
GROUP ¢

Illinois Health Facilities

and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson
Springfield, IL

RE: Proposed Medical Office Building
On the Campus of Memorial Hospital
To Whom It May Concern:
The proposed project will be funded through the use of cash and debt. Please be
advised that the anticipated borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of all existing

investments and the existing short term investments being retained may be converted to
cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

QAL ) Z

Notarized: 7-/%“:(/:0//

o

"OFFICIAL SEAL"
J.A. Smithson

NOTARY PUBLIC. STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISS 11 EXPIRES 6-30-12

et e,

PQCHN[ENT 42A
4500 Memorial Drive * Belleville, lllinois 62226 * (618)233-7750 « FAX: (618) 257 5658 * wwwmemhosp.com
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MEMORIAL
GROUP =<

Illinois Health Facilities
Planning Board
Springfield, IL 62761

RE: CON APPLICATION
MEMORIL HOSPITAL-EAST

To Whom It May Concern:

The selected form of debt financing for the proposed project, and as presented in
the Application for Permit, will result in the lowest net cost available to the
applicants.

Sincerely,

QNTiee Yl B

Notarized: 7 47 .4 sorr

AL oA

“OFFICIAL SEAL"
J.A. Smithson

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
MY COMMISSICN EXPIRES 6-30-12

ATTACHMENT 42B
4500 Memorial Drive « Belleville, lllincis 62226 * (6! ™77 7750 » FAX: (618) 257-5658 * wwwmemhosp.com
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

Department A B C D E F G H YTotal
({list below) Cost/Sq. Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross §q. Ft. Const. § Mod. § Costs
New Mod. New Cire. Mod. Cire. {AxC} (B x E) {G +H)

Reviewable
Med/Surg/Peds 3 374.50 46,116 $ 17,270,442 $ 17,270,442
ICU $ 423.50 4,014 $ 1,699,929 $ 1,699,929
OB/Gyn $ 374.50 5,174 $ 1,937,663 3 1,937,663
LDRP $ 374.50 7,488 $ 2,804,256 $ 2,804,255
C-Section Suite $ 430.50 1,808 $ 778,344 $ 778,344
Level | Nursery $ 374.50 2,560 $ 958,720 $ 958,720
Observ./Holding | § 338.50 2,704 $ 918,008 3 918,008
ED 3 388.50 7,096 $ 2,756,796 $ 2,756,796
Cath $ 430.50 5,010 $ 2,156,805 $ 2,156,805
Lab 3 388.50 2,205 $ 856,643 $ 856,643
Gl Lab $ 430.50 4,293 $ 1,848,137 5 1,848,137
Surgery/Recovery | $ 430.50 16,328 $ 7,029,204 3 7,029,204
Imaging/Radiology| $ 430.50 8,215 $ 3,579,608 $ 3,579,608
Non-invas. Cardiol| $ 338.50 2,328 $ 790,356 3 790,356
Resp TherfPul Fx | § 338.50 1,008 $ 342,216 $ 342,216
Pharmacy $ 339.50 1,204 $ 408,758 $ 408,758
PT/OT 5 339.50 749 $ 254,286 $ 254,286

Total $ 391.81 118,400 $ 46,390,169 $ 46,390,169
contingency $ 30.00 5 3,552,000 $ 3,552,000
TOTAL $ 421.81 $ 49,942,169 $ 49942189
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

Department A i B c | b E | F G H Total
{list below} Cost/Sq. Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Costs
New Mod. New Circ. Mod. Circ. (A xC) {B x E) {G+H)

Non-Reviewable
Admin $ 276.50 1,505 $ 416,133 $ 416,133
Physicians’ Offices $ 276.50 14,985 $ 4,143,353 $ 4,143,353
Nursing Admin $ 276.50 252 $ 69,678 $ 69,678
Medical Records | $ 276.50 897 $ 248,021 $ 248,021
Case Mgt/Soc Ser| % 276.50 392 $ 108,388 $ 108,388
Medical Staff $ 276.50 665 $ 183,873 $ 183,873
Human Resources| % 276.50 294 $ 81,291 $ 81,291
Business Office | § 339.50 497 $ 168,732 $ 168,732
Chapel/Past. Care| $ 332.50 330 3 128,675 $ 129,675
Education $ 276.50 1,484 $ 410,326 $ 410,326
Central Sterile 8 332.50 3,272 3 1,087,940 $ 1,087 940
Kitch/Food Prep, | § 252.00 4,836 3 1,218,672 5 1,218,672
T $ 332.50 252 $ 83,790 $ 83,790
Public & Lobbles | $ 332.50 1,740 $ 578,550 $ 578,550
Admit/Quipt Reg | $ 276.50 1.680 $ 464,520 $ 464,520
Biomedical Eng. | $ 252.00 288 % 72,576 $ 72,578 |
Materials Mgt. $ 252.00 1,992 $ 501,984 $ 501,984
Mechanicals $ 255.50 9,800 $ 2,503,800 $ 2,503,900
Environ'tal Serv. | $ 252.00 702 $ 176,504 $ 176,904
Plant Operations | $ 252.00 2,712 $ 683,424 $ 683,424

Total 3 27412 48,635 $ 13,331,728 $ 13,331,728
DGSF>>>BGSF | § 255,50 39,583 $ 10,113,457 $ 10,113,457
contingency $ 25.00 88,218 $ 2,205,450 3 2,205,450
TOTAL $ 25,650,634 $ 25,650,634
PROJECT TOTAL| $ 365.86 206,618 $ 75,592,802 $ 75,592,803
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OPERATING and CAPITAL COSTS
per ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

Memorial Hospital-East
Year 2 Projections

ADJUSTED PATIENT DAYS:
$114,031 832
4,150 27,474
OPERATING COSTS
salaries & benefits $49,545,000
supplies $18.075000
TOTAL $67,620,000
[Operating cost/adjusted patient day: $2,461.21 |
CAPITAL COSTS
depreciation $5,926,000
interast $5.658.000
TOTAL $11,584,000
|Capital cost/adjusted patient day: $421.63 |
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